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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. Check the appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement

] Definitive Information Statement
and ^XCHAN:

2. Name ofRegistrant as specified in its charter CoViriA'.SSiON

WILCON DEPOT, INC. TTA TT' --
ij! H'
lll'v n;
ii\ \ 'U-

QUEZON CITY, PHILIPPINES iJV.: ;'>.

3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization!MAY 22 2019
. .-v- -

4. SEC Identification Number

CS201524712

5. BIR Tax Identification Code

009-192-878

6. Address of principal office: 90 E. RODRIGUEZ JR. AVENUE, UGONG NORTE,
QUEZON CITY

Postal Code: 1110

7. RegistiBnt's telephone number, including area code: (02} 634 8387

8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

17 JUNE 2019. 8:00 AM, RUBY 8. 4™ FLOOR, CROWNE PLAZA MANILA GALLERIA,
ORTIGAS AVENUE CORNER ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AVENUE, ORTIGAS
CENTER. QUEZON CITY, METRO MANILA.

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders:

24 MAY 2019

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the
RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock

Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

COMMON SHARES 4,099,724,116

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yes No

Ifyes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange: PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

The class of securities listed therein: COMMON SHARES
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

17 June 2019

Notice is hereby given that the annual meeting of the stockhofders of WILCON DEPOT, INC.
(the "Company") will be held on 17 June 2019 at 8:00 am at Ruby B, 4®* Roor, Crowne Plaza
Manila Galleria, Ortigas Avenue comer Asian Development Bank Avenue, Ortlgas Center,
Quezon City, Metro Manila.

The agenda of the meeting are as follows:

1. Call to Order

2. Certification of Notice and Determination of Quorum

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders held on 18 June 2018.
4. Presentation and Approval of Annual Report and Financial Statements as of 31

December 2018.

5. Ratification of all Acts and Resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management during
the Preceding Year.

6. Election of Board of Directors

7. Appointment of External Auditor
8. Consideration of such other matters as may properly come before the meeting.
9. Adjournment

A brief explanation of each agenda item which requires stockholder's approval is provided
herein. Please refer to Appendix 1.

At the meeting please present some form of identification such as passport driver's license,
company I.D and certification from respective brokers. Only stockholders of record as at the
close of business on 23 May 2019 are entitled to notice, and to vote at the meeting. The
Stock and Transfer Books of the Corporation will be closed from 24 May 2019 to 17 June
2019.

The deadline for submission of proxies Is on 7 June 2019. For your convenience a sample of
a proxy is attached herein. For a corporation, its proxy must be accompanied by its corporate
Secretary's swom certification setting the corporate officer's authority to represent the
corporation in the meeting. Proxies need not be notarized. Validation of proxies will be on 11
June 2019 at the principal address at 90 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue, Ugong Norte, Quezon City.

Registration starts at 7:00 am and will close exactly at 8:00 am. Only stockholders of record
as of 23 May 2019 shall be entitled to vote.

By Authority of the Chairman

lur R. Ponsaran

/orporate Secretary

We are not solidVng your proxy. However, if you would be unable to attend the meeting but would like to be represented
thereat, you may accomplish the enclosed proxy form and subrrtit the same on or before 7 June 2019 to the Ofhce of the
Corporate Secretary at 90 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue, Ugong Norte, Quezon Gty, AfefroManila, Philippines. Thank you.



"Appendix 1"

BRIEF DISCUSSION OF THE AGENDA FOR STOCKHOLDERS' APPROVAL

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders held on 18 June
2018.

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2018 is available at the company's website
www.wilcon.com.ph.

Remarks: A resolution on this agenda item must be approved with the majority of the votes of
the stockholders present and eligible to vote.

Presentation and Approval of Annual Report

The audited financial statements as of December 31, 2018 (AFS) will be presented for
approval by the stockholders. Prior thereto, the President-CEO, Ms. Lorraine Belo-Cincochan,
will deliver a report to the stockholders on the performance of the company in 2018 and the
outlook for 2019.

The AFS will be embodied in the Information Statement to be sent to the stockholders at least

15 business days prior to the meeting.

Remarks: A resolution on this agenda item must be approved with the majority of the votes of
the stockholders present and eligible to vote.

Ratification of All Acts of the Board and Management during the Preceding Year

Ratification by the stockholders will be sought for ail the acts and the resolutions of the Board
of Directors and Board committees taken or adopted since the annual stockholders' meeting
on 18 June 2018 to date. The acts and resolutions of the Board and its committees include

approval of contracts, agreements, and transaction entered during the same period, projects
and investments, treasury matters and acts and resolutions covered by disclosures to the
Securities and Exdiange Commission and the Philippine Stock Exchange.

Remarks: A resolution on this agenda item must be approved with the majority of the votes of
the stockholders present and eligible to vote.

Election of Board of Directors

In accordance vrith the By-laws, the Corporate Governance Manual, and pertinent SEC rules,
any stockholder, Including minority stockholders, may submit to the Nomination Committee
nominations to the Board by 7 June 2019. The Nomination Committee will determine whether
the nominees for directors, including the nominees for independent directors, have all the
qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as members of the Board before
submitting the nominees for election by the stockholders. The profiles of the nominees to the
Board will be provided in the Information Statement and in the company website for
examination by the stockholders.

Remarks: Directors shall be elected by plurality of vote at the annual meeting of the
stockholders for the year at which quorum is present At each election for directors, every
stock holder shall have the right to vote, in person or by proxy, the number of shares owned
by him for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or to cumulate his votes by
giving one candidate as many votes as the number is shares shall equal, or by distributing
such votes as the same principle among any number of candidates.



Appointment of External Auditor

The appointment of the extemal auditor, Reyes Tacandong & Co, for the ensuing year will be
endorsed to the stockholders. The profile of ttte extemal auditor will be provided in the
Information Statement and in the company website for examination by the stockholders.

Remarks: A resolution on this agenda item must be approved with the majority of the votes of
the stockholders present and eligible to vote.

Other Matters

The Chairman will inquire whether there are other relevant matters and concems to be
discussed.

Adjournment

Upon determination that there are no relevant matters to be discussed, the meeting will be
adjourned on motion duly made and seconded.



PROXY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

The undersigned, stoddiotder of WILCONDEPOT, INC. do hereby constitute and appoint as my
attomey-in-fact and proxy, to attend and represent me at the Annual Stockholders Meeting of WILCON DEPOT. INC. on 17
June 2019, and thereat to vote upon all shares of stock owned by me on the fbllowmgagenda items as I have indicated below
and any and ail business that may come before said meeting. If I fail to indicate my vote on the items specified below, my
pro)^ shall vote in accordance with the recommendation of Management Management recommerrds a TOR ALL* vote for
proposal 4, and a "FOR*vote for proposals 1 through 3 as well as for proposal 5.

ITEM NO. SUBJECT MATTER ACTION

For Against Abstain

1 • Approval of Minutes of Previous Meting

2 • Approval of Annual Report

3 • Ratification of ail Acts and Resolutions of
the Board of Directors and Management
during the Preceding Year

4 • Eiection of Directors FOR ALL* WITHHOLD

FOR ALL*

EXCEPTION

*Afl nominees listed below

1. Bertram B. Lim (Independent)
2. Ricardo S. Pascua (Independent)
3. Rolando S. Nardso (Independent)
4. DeHinL. Warren (Independent)
5. Lorraine Belo-Cincochan

6. Mark Andrew Y. Belo

7. Careen Y. Belo

Note:

To withhold authority to vote for any
in(riwdual nominee(s) of Management, please
mark Exception box and list Oie name(s)
under.

For Against Abstain

5 • Appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as
external auditor

In the absence of my pro)^, this authority is hereby conferred upon the Presiding Officer of the meeting, provided that this
proxy shall stand suspended where I am personally present thereat

This proxy revokes and supersedes all previous proxies executed by me, and the power and authority herein granted shall be
valid for said Stockholders Meeting and Adjournments thereof, unless earlier withdrawn by me written notice fited with the
Corporate Secretary of Wilcon Depot Inc.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this PROXY this of 2019 in

Name and Signature of Stockhdder/Authorized Signatory

Witnessed by:



PART I.

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

The annual stockholders meeting of Wilcon Depot, Inc. for the year 2019, has the following details:

Date: 17 June 2019

Time: 8:00 am

Place: Ruby B, 4^^ Floor, Crowne Plaza Manila Galleria, Ortlgas Avenue comer Asian
Development Bank Avenue, Ortlgas Center, Quezon City, Metro Manila.

The approximate date on which this Information Statement and accompanying Proxy Forms shall be
first sent or given to the stockholders is on 24 May 2019 in accordance with the by-laws of the
Company and the Securities and Regulation Code.

The complete mailing address of tiie principal office of the Company is at

90 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue
Ugong Norte, Quezon City

Should a stockholder wish to receive a printed copy of the Company's annual report (SEC
Form 17-A) and Definitive Information Statement (SEC 20-IS), free ofcharge, please contact:

Atty. Sheila P. Pasicolan-Camerino
Asst. Corporate Secretary
90 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue, Ugong Noite
Quezon City
Tel. No. 634-8387

Email: sheila_pasicolan.legai@wilcon.com.ph

Item 2. Dissenters* Right of Appraisal

Any stockholder of the Corporation may exercise his appraisal right against the proposed actions
which qualify as instances giving rise to the exercise of this right pursuant to and subject to the
compliance with the requirements and procedure set forth under Title X of the Revised Corporation
Code of the Philippines

There is no matter to be voted upon during the Annual Stockholders' Meeting that will trigger the
exercise by a stockholder of his/her appraisal rights provided under the Revised Corporation Code of
the Philippines

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

There is no matter to be acted upon in which any of tiie current and executive officers and those who
will be nominated as directors during the meeting is involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial
interest, other than election to office. Likevrise, no director has informed the Company in writing of
his/her opposition to any matter be acted upon.

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) The Corporation has 4,099,724,116 outstanding shares as of 31 March 2019.

(b) All stockholders of record as of 23 May 2019 are entitled to notice and to vote at
Corporation's Annual Stockholders' Meeting on 17 June 2019.



(c) Section 2.8, Article II of the By-Laws of the Corporation states that, for the purpose of
determining the stockholders entitled to notice of, or to vote at, any meeting of
stockholders or any adjournment thereof, or to receive payment of any dividend, or of
making a determination of stockholders for any other purpose, the Board of Directors may
provide that the stock and transfer books be closed for a stated period, but not to exceed,
in any case, twenty five (25) days. If the stock and transfer books be closed for the
purpose of determining stockholders entitled to notice of, or to vote at a meeting of
stockholders, such books shall be closed for at least ten (10) working days immediately
preceding such meeting. In lieu of closing and transfer l)ooks, the Board of Directors may
fix in advance a date as the record date for any such determination of stockholders. Such
date shall in no case be more than twenty five days prior to the date on which the
particular action requinng such determination of stockholders is to be taken, except in
instances where applicable rules and regulations provide otherwise.

Election of Directors

Section 2.7, Article II of the By-Laws of the Corporation states that at all meetings of
stockholders, a stockholder may vote in person or by proxy executed in writing by the
stockholders or his duly authorized attomey-in ^acL Unless otheoAnse provided in the proxy,
it shall be valid only for the meeting at which it has been presented to the Secretary.

Directors shall be elected by plurality of vote at the annual meeting of the stockholders for
the year at which quorum is present At each election for directors, every stock holder shall
have the right to vote, in person or by proxy, the number of shares owned by him for as
many person as there are directors to be elected, or to cumulate his votes by giving one
candidate as many votes as the number is shares shall equal, or by distributing such votes
as the same principle among any number of candidates.

All proxies must be in the hands of the secretary not later than five (5) days fctefore the time
set for the meeting. Such proxies filed with the Secretary may be revoked by the
stockholders either in an instrument in writing duly presented and recorded with the
Secretary at least one (1) day prior to a scheduled meeting or by their personal presence at
the meeting. The decision of the secretary on the validity of proxies shall be final and binding
until set aside by a court of competent Jurisdiction.

Moreover, Section 3.2, Article III of the By-Laws of the Corporation states that the Board of
Directors shall be elected during the regular meeting of stodcholders and shall hold office for
one (1) year and until their successor are elected and qualified.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners of more than 5% of the
Corporation's voting securities as of 31 March 2019 as follows:



Title of

Class

Common

Common

Common

Name and

addresses of

record owners and

relationship with
the Corporation

Wilcon Corporation
90 E. Rodriguez Jr.
Ave., Ugong Norte,
Quezon City
Stockholder of

Record

PCD Nominee

Corporation
Stockholder of

Record

PCD Nominee

Corporation
Stockholder of

Record

Name of beneficial

owner and

relationship with
record owner

William T. Belo

Chairman

Mark Andrew Y.

Belo

President-CEO

Lorraine Belo-

Cincochan

Treasurer-CFO

Careen Y. Belo

Stockholder

Rosy C. Belo
Stockholder

Alfredo P. Javellana
II

Stockholder

Roberto T.

Borromeo

Stockholder

Octacube, Inc.
Stockholder

Lentus Lenis, Inc.
Stockholder

Multus Lucrum, Inc.
Stockholder

Liam Ros Holdings,
Inc.

Stockholder

Loquor Locutus.
Inc.,
Stockholder

PDTC Participants
and their clients

PDTC Participants
and their clients

Citizenship

Rlipino

Filipino

Non-Filipino

Number of

shares held

2,680,317,916

734,282,158

684,436,300

Security Ownership of directors and executive officers as of 31 March 2019 is as follows:

Directors

% to Total

Outstanding

65.378%

17.911%

16.695%

Title of

Class

Beneficial

Owner

Position Citizenship Amount &

nature of

beneficial

ownership

Direct (D)
or Indirect

(1)

% to Total

Outstanding

Common Bertram B. Lim Chairman/

Independent
Director

Filipino 1 D 0.00%

Common Lorraine Belo-

Cincochan

Director Filipino 5,100,000 D 0.12%



Common Mark Andrew Y.

Belo

Director Filipino 5,100,000 D 0.12%

Common Careen Y. Belo Director Filipino 5,100,000 D 0.12%

Common Ricardo S.

Pascua

Independent
Director

Filipino 1 D 0.00%

Common Rolando S.

Narctso

Independent
Director

Filipino 1 D 0.00%

Common Delfin L. Warren Independent
Director

Filipino 1 D 0.00%

Executive Officers

Title of

Class

Beneficial

Owner

Position Citizenship Amount &

nature of

beneficial

ownership

Direct (D)
or Indirect

0)

% to Total

Outstanding

Common WiHIam T.

Belo

Chairman

Emeritus

Filipino 5,099,995 D 0.12%

Common Arthur R.

Ponsaran

Corporate
Secretary

Filipino 10,000 (1) 0.00%

Common She'tia P.
Paslcolan -

Camerino

Asst

Corporate
Secretary

Filipino 19,900 D 0.00%

Common Rosemarie

B. Ong
SEVP-COO Filipino 1,069,401 D 0.03%

Common Eden M.

GodIno

VP-Product

Development
Filipino 267,500 D 0.00%

Common Grace A.

Tiong
VP-Human
Resources

Filipino 148,700 D 0.00%

Common Michael D.

Tiong
VP-Global

Sourcing
Filipino 148,700 D 0.00%

Voting trust holders of 5% or more

There Is no person of group of persons holding more than 5% of the common shares by virtue of a
voting trust or similar agreement

Changes In control

There have been no arrangements that have been resulted In a change of control of the Company
during the period covered by this Information statement

Foreign ownership as of 31 March 2019

Total number of foreign ownership as of 31 March 2019 Is 684,886,310 common shares or 16.7057%.



Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

The following are the incumbent directors of the Company:

Name Age Nationality Petition

Bertram B. Lim 81 Filipino
Chairman of the Board/Independent
Director

Lorraine Belo-Cincochan 40 Filipino
Director, President and Chief Executive
Officer

Mark Andrew Y. Belo 37 Filipino Director, Treasurer. ClO and CRO

Careen Y. Belo 35 Rlipino Director and Chief Product Officer

Rolando S. Narciso 73 Filipino Independent Director

Ricardo S. Pascua 70 Rlipino Independent Director

Delfin L.Warren 69 Filipino Independent Director

The Board of Directors shall hold office for one (1) year and until their successors are elected and
qualified.

As of this date, the following have been endorsed for election as directors at the Annual Stockholders'
Meeting:

Lorraine Belo-Cincochan

❖ Mark Andrew Y. Belo

❖ Careen Y. Belo

Below are the profiles of the nominees for election as Directors of the Company at the Annual
Stockholders' Meeting as of the date of this report.

Lorraine Belo-Cincochan is a Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a
Director of WC. She has held various positions in the business starting out as a trainee to the
President of Wilcon Builders Supply, Inc. in 2000, headed the IT department in 2002 before being
assigned to manage the daily operations of a branch as a Depot Manager-trainee from 2003 to 2005
under WC. She was then appointed as Executive Vice President for Operations in 2005 and in 2006
was named Chief Rnance Officer, holding the position until March, 2016. In 2018, she was
recognized as one of the 2018 Forbes Asia Emergent Women Honoree. Ms. Belo-Cincochan
graduated from the University of the Philippines-Diliman in 1999 with a Bachelor's degree in Creative
Writing.

Mark Andrew Y. Belo is a Director and Treasurer. He was the Chief Financial OfRcer of the Company
for 2018 and the President and Chief Executive Officer of WC from March 2016 to the present. Under
WC, he was Assistant Vice President for Business Development from 2015 to March, 2016 and
Executive Project Management Head from January 2013 to March 2015. He was also assigned to
various positions under WBSI from July 2004 to August 2007. He graduated from the University of
Asia &the Pacific in 2004 with a bachelor's degree in Industrial Economics.

Careen Y. Belo is a Director and Chief Product Officer of the Company. She is concurrently a
Director of WC, the Executive Vice President for Sales and Product Development of Coral-Agri
Venture Farm Inc., Executive Officer of Crocodylus Porosus Phil Inc. and President of The Meatplace
Inc. She held various positions in the business having been a Business Development Manager from
2004 to 2007 of WC, Marketing and Sales Assistant from 2007 to 2014 and Executive Financial Audit
Manager from 2014 to March, 2016. Ms. Belo obtained her Bachelor of Sdence in Management from
the University of Asia & the Pacific in 2005.
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Nomination and Election of Independent Directors:

As of this date, the foilowing list of candidate for Independent Directors are as follows:

Bertram B.Lim

Rolando S. Narciso

Ricardo S. Pascua

Delfin L Warren

Independent Directors

Bertram B. Lim, is the Chairman of the Company. He is also the Chairman of the United Neon
Advertising, Inc., the largest outdoor advertising company in the Philippines and the Chairman of the
Center for Community Transformation, a Christian non-government organization, ministering to the
poor, with half a million beneficiaries. He is the Board Treasurer of the Trinity University/St Luke's
Health Sciences Consortium and a Bestselling Author.

Ricardo S. Pascua is an Independent Director of the Company since September 2016. He was Vice
Chairman of the Board and President and CEO of Metro Pacific Corporation from January 2000 until
his retirement in December 2001, a position he held also from January 1993 to July 1995. In
between, he was Vice Chairman and CEO of Fort Bonifacio Development Corporation. He was
concurrently an Executive Director of First Pacific Company Ltd. from 1982 to 2001 and as such
served in the boards of companies such as Smart Communications, inc.. United Commercial Bank in
San Francisco, Califomia, First Pacific Bank in Hong Kong and 1st eBank in Manila. Mr. Pascua
started his career in Bancom Development Corporation as Asst Vice President in 1972 and was
assigned in Bancom Intemational Ltd. in Hong Kong as Seniior Manager in 1975. Currently, Mr.
Pascua serves as an independent director in various corporations and foundations. He is likewise
involved in several businesses as Chairman of the Board of Caelum Developers Inc., Facilities &
Property Management Technologies, Inc., Ascension Phildevelopers, Inc.; Chairman of the Executive
Committee of Phoenix Land Inc. and a Director in Boulevard Holdings, Inc., Central Luzon Doctor's
Hospital, Costa de Madera Corp. and Quicksilver Satcom Ventures, Inc.; and the President of
Bancom II Consultants, Inc. Mr. Pascua has a Master of Business Management from Asian Institute
of Management obtained in 1971 and he finished his bachelor's degree major in Economics (Cum
Laude) from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1969.

Rolando S. Narciso is an Independent Director of the Company since September 2016. He was
formerly a Director and Officer of New Kanlaon Construction, Inc. from 2004 to 2014. He was
President and Chief Operating Officer of Steel Corporation of the Philippines from 1998 to 2004 and
President and Chief Executive Officer of Royal Asia Multi-Properties, Inc. from 1996 to 1997. Before
the National Steel Corporation was privatized, Mr. Narciso was its President and Chief Operating
Officer from 1989 to 1995 and concurrently ff^om 1989 was a Director of Refractories Corp. of the
Phils. And Semirara Coal Corp. up to 1994; and Integrated AirCorp. up to 1993. From 1974 to 1988,
he held various positions in National Steel and other subsidiaries of the National Development
Company. He also held various positions in the Esso Group of Companies from 1967 to 1974. He is
a member of professional organizations such as the Financial Executives, Inc. and the Management
Association of the Philippines. He obtained his Master in Business Management and Bachelor of
Science in Business Administration degrees from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1967 and 1965,
respectively.

Delfin "JIng" L. Warren, is an Independent Director of the Company. He is the founder, principal and
current Chairman of One Incentive Systems Advocates (1ISA) Group and the Warren and Nolasco
Realty Corp. He also held various positions in prestigious companies such as First Pacific
Commodities Holdings, Ltd., The Hibemia Bank of San Francisco, PT Indo Ayala Leasing Corp.,
Indonesia and Bancom Philippine Holdings, Inc. He is a licensed Chemical Engineer and he obtained
his Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering at De La Salle College, Manila in 1971. He was also
a consistent dean's lister and a recipient of Jose Rizal Scholarship.
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As of Febmary 2019, the following are the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Nationality Position

William T. Belo 73 Filipino Chairman Emeritus

Arthur R. Ponsaran 76 Filipino Corporate Secretary

Sheila Pasicolan- Camerino 32 Filipino
AssL Corporate Secretary/AVP-Corporate
Lawyer

Rosemarie B. Ong 60 Filipino SEVP-COO

Eden M. Godino 42 Filipino Vice President - Product Development

Grace A. Tiong 45 Rlipino Vice President - Human Resources

Michael D. Tiong 45 Filipino Vice President - Global Sourcing

Mary Jean G. Alger 48 Rlipino Vice President - Investor Relations

Lauro D.G Francisco 53 Filipino Chief Audit Executive

William T. Belo is the Chainnan Emeritus of the Company. He is the founder of the Wilcon business
and brand. He was Chairman and/or President of all Wilcon companies established and/or acquired
from 1977 to 2016 including the parent, WC. Currently, he is involved in other business undertakings
and serves as Director of Markeenio Realty Inc., Lomarkeen Realty inc.; the President of Coral-Agri
Venture Farm Inc., Coral Farms, WAJ Realty Development Inc.; and Treasurer of Crocodylus Porosus
Philippines Inc. He also serves as ttie Chairman of Wilcon Builders Foundation inc. He won the 2013
MVP Bossing Award, a distinction given to outstanding entrepreneurs of the country. In 2018, he was
recognized as an Outstanding Thomasian Engineer, awarded as one of the People of the Year by
People /^ia and Patriarch of Home Building Retail by the Philippine Retailers Association. Mr. Belo
graduated from the University of Sto. Tomas in 1968 vnth a Bachelor of Science degree in Electronics
and Communications Engineering.

Arthur R. Ponsaran, is the Corporate Secretary of the Company and of WC. He is a CPA-Lawyer
with over 25 years' experience in corporate law, taxation, finance and related fields. He is the
Managing Partner of Corporate Counsels, Philippines - Law Office and Director/Corporate Secretary
of various corporate clients. He obtained his LLB from the University of the Philippines, BSBA from
the University of the East and completed the MDP Program at the AIM. He is a member of the
Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Integrated Bar of the Philippines, Philippine Bar
Association and the New York (USA) Bar.

Sheila P. Pasicolan-Camerino is the in-house legal counsel of the Company and the Asst Corporate
Secretary of the Company and WC. She joined the Company in January 2016 after serving as a
Senior Associate in Sycip Gorres Velayo and Co. firom November 2014 to December 2015. Prior to
her admission to the Philippine Bar in 2015, she served as a legal intern at the Office of the Solicitor
General in 2013 and a technical assistant in the Office of the Presidential Assistant for Education of

the Office of the President of the Philippines from 2009 to 2010. She completed Bachelor of Arts in
History from University of the Philippines, Cum Laude and obtained a Master Degree in Philippine
Studies in the same university. Ms. Pasicolan-Camerino completed her Bachelor of Laws in San Beda
University in 2014.

Rosemarie Bosch-Ong is the Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company. She held this position since 2007 initially under WC, immediately prior, she was Executive
Vice President for Sales and Marketing, which she held from 1988 to 2007. She started out in the
business as a Purchasing Manager under WBSI from 1983 to 1988. She is also the President of the
Wilcon Builders Foundation Inc., which she has headed since 2008. She is a Director of the

Philippine Contractors Association, President of Philippine Retailers Association and a former
Treasurer of the Philippine Association of National Advertisers (PANA) Foundation. She is also a
regular columnist at Philippine Star property report section. Ms. Bosch-Ong has a Master's degree in
Business Administration from De La Salle University obtained in 2010 and she graduated from the
University of the East in 1986 with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics.
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Eden M. Godino is the Vice President of Product Development, She joined the department in 2007,
initially as the Asst Vice President and was appointed in her present position in 2011. Ms. Godino
joined Wilcon in 1997 and was assigned in Accounting, Purchasing and later went on to become a
Depot Manager in 2004, a position she held for three years priorto her promotion to AVP in Product
Development in 2007. She graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Accountancy from the
University of the Assumption in 1997 and obtained a short course diploma program from the De La
Salle College of St Benilde on Supply Chain Management major in Purchasing and Logistics
Operations In 2015.

Grace A. Tiong is the Vice President for Human Resources. She has been the head of Human
Resources as VP since 2008. She joined Wilcon in 1995 and was assigned in Accounting. She was
promoted to various positions within the branch and eventually became a Branch Manager in 2005.
She joined the Human Resources department as an Asst HR Manager after her stint in Operations in
2005. Ms. Tiong graduated from New Era University in 1994 with a bachelor's degree in Accountancy
and obtained diploma courses in Human Capital Management and Organizational Development from
the School of Professional and Continuing Education of the De La Salle College of St Benilde from
2014 to 2016.

Michael D. Tiong is the Vice President for Global Sourcing. Prior to his appointment as Vice
President in July, 2016, he handled Sales and Operations as an Asst Vice President since January
2011. Mr. Tiong joined Wilcon as a Salesman in 2000 and became Depot Manager in 2007 until
2009, when he was promoted to Asst Vice President for Operations. Mr. Tiong took up Bachelor of
Science in Architecture at the Far Eastern University in 1993.

Mary Jean G. Alger is the Vice President for Investor Relations. Prior to officiallyjoining Wilcon, she
was part of the advisory team for the public listing of the Company. She started her career with Petron
Corporation in 1991 as a Credit Analyst. Concurrent to her various positions in different companies
and on a consultancy basis, she was involved in project structuring, financial packaging, advisory and
issue management for public offerings and corporate rehabilitations, among others. She served
various positions in publicly listed mining and energy development companies. She was the Asst
Vice President on Corporate Planning and Budget/Deputy to tiie CFO on Corporate Finance from
January 2013 to August 2016 in Benguet Corporation and Asst. Vice President for Corporate
Planning in Basic Energy Corporation from July 2007 to January 2013. After her stint with Benguet,
she was appointed Vice President for Project Development and Planning in Marcventures Mining
Development Corporation. Ms. Alger graduated from the University of the Philippines - Diliman with a
Bachelor Degree in Business Economics and a Master in Business Administration Candidate
(academic requirements completed in 2007) at De La Salle University-Taft.

Lauro D.G. Francisco, is the Chief Audit Executive. He has an extensive experience as an intemal
audit executive. He built his intemal audit professional career with the Manila Electric Company
(MERALCO), previously managing the audit of the company's subsidiaries and affiliates and
simultaneously delegated as the Intemal Audit Head/ Assistant Vice-President for Intemal Audit of
subsidiary Meraico Industrial Engineering Services Corporation (MIESCOR). He also had an intemal
audit management tenure with GT Capital Holdings Incorporated. He is a Certified Public Accountant,
Certified Intemal Auditor, and with Certification in Risk Management Assurance. Mr. Francisco
graduated from the University of the East with a degree in Business Administration major in
Accounting (Cum Laude). He obtained his Master in Business Administration degree frcxn the Ateneo
Graduate School of Business (Gold Medal Honors). He is actively affiliated with the Institute of
Intemal Auditors - Philippines and previously held various officership positions in the organization,
foremost of which as Vice-Chairman of its Board of Tmstees.

Significant Emplovees

The Company does not believe that its business is dependent on the services of any particular
employee.
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Family Relationship

The Company's President, Lorraine Beio-Cincochan, Directors Mark Andrew Y. Belo and Careen Y.
Belo are the children of William T. Belo, Chairman Emeritus of the Company.

Mr. Michael D. Tiong is the husband of Ms. Grace A. Tiong.

Involvement In Legal Proceedings

As of date, to the best of Company's knowledge, there are no legal proceedings against ttie directors
and executive offices of the Company within the categories described in SRC Rule 12, Part IV
paragraph (A) (4).

Certain Relationship and Related Party Transactions

The Company in the ordinary course of business, engages in various transactions with related parties,
particularly with its parent company, WC.

For a detailed discussion of the material related party transactions of the Company, please see note
20-Related Party Transactions and Balances of the attached 2018 Audited Financial Statements of
the Company.

Resignation of Directors

No Director has resigned from his ofRce or declined to stand for re-election to the Board since the last
meeting of the stockholders due to any dispute or disagreement in relation to the operations,
procedures and policies of the Company.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Executive Compensation

Below is the total annual compensation of the top 5 officers and other officers of the company for the
year 2018 and projected compensation for 2019.

Key Management Officers Year Compensation Bonuses

Top 5 Officers

William T. Belo

Lorraine C. Belo-Cincochan

Mark Andrew Y. Belo

Careen Y. Beto

Rosemarie Bosch-Ong

2018 24.30M 3.83M

Other officers as a group 2018 28.87M 10.64M

Proiected for 2019

Key Management Officers Year Compensation Bonuses

Top 5 Officers

William T. Belo

Lorraine C. Beio-Cincochan

Mark Andrew Y. Belo

Careen Y. Belo

Rosemarie Bosch-Ong

2019 38.68M 6.3M

Other officers as a group 2019 41.05M 11.75M
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Compensation of Director

Standard Arrangements

Alldirectors attending physically in a committee meeting receive a per diem of Twelve Thousand Five
Hundred Pesos (PI2,500.00), per meeting and Twenty Five Thousand Pesos (f^S.OOO.OO) per Board
meeting.

Other arrangements

There are no other arrangements pursuant to which the directors are compensated directly or
indirectly, for any service provided as a director.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change in Control Arrangements

The Executive Officers of the Company are subject to polides of the company and labor laws. They
are also entitled to receive retirement benefits in accordance with the retirement plan of the Company.

There is no anangement with any executive officers to receive any compensation or benefit in case of
change-in-control of the Company.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

The Extemal Auditor of the Company is Reyes Tacandong & Co (RTCo). There has been no
disagreements on any accounting and financial disclosures. The Company is compliant with SRC
Rule 68, (3), (b), (iv), requiring the rotation of extemal auditom or engagement partners for a period of
five (5) consecutive years.

The same accounting firm will be nominated for reappointment for current fiscal year at the annual
stockholders' meeting. Representatives of RTCo. will be present at the annual stockholders' meeting
and they will have the opportunity to make statements if they desire to do so and are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

Audit Fee

Name of auditor Audit Fee

Reyes Tacandong & Co. P3,600,000.00 (2017)

Reyes Tacandong & Co. P5,050.000.00 (2018)

The aggregate fees billed by Reyes Tacandong & Co, for the audit of the financial statemente of the
Company and other services in connection with the statutory and regulatory filings (quarterly reports)
for 2017 was P3,600,000.00 while for 2018 was P5,050,000.0D.

The Company did not engage Reyes Tacandong & Co. in any non-aud'it services. Further, based on
the Audit Committee Charter of the Company, the quarterly reports and finandal statements are
reviewed and endorsed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board prior to its release and
submission to the SEC and PSE.

Item 8. Compensation Plans

There is no other type of compensation plan as of this date and for the annual stockholders' meeting
on 17 June 2019 there will be no compensation plan that will be taken up.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

There are no matters or actions to be taken up with respect to authorization or issuance of securities.
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Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

There are no matters or actions to be taken up with respect to the modification or exchange of
securities.

Item 11. Financial and Other Information

The Company incorporated by reference the following:

1. 17-A (Annual Report), attached as Annex "A"
2. 2018 Audited Financial Statements, attached as Annex "B"
3. Certification of Independent Directors, attached as Annex "C

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

There are no matters or actions to t}e taken up with respect to merger, consolidations, acquisitions
and similar matters.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

There are no matters or actions to be taken up with respect to the acquisition or disposition of
property.

Item 14. Restatement of Accounts

There are no matters or actions to be taken up with respect to the restatement of accounts.

D. OTHER MATTERS

Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

The following matters will be submitted to the stockholders for their approval:

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders held on 18 June 2018.
2. Presentation and Approval of Annual Report and Financial Statements as of 31

December 2018.

3. Ratification of ail Acts and Resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management during
the Preceding Year.

4. Election of Board of Directors

5. Appointment of Extemal Auditor

Item 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

No action is to be taken with respect to any matter, which is not required to be submitted to a cote of
security holders.

Item 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in relation to the amendment of charters, bylaws or
other documents.

Item 18. Other Proposed Action

Other than those matters mentioned above, there are no other proposed actions to be taken up dunng
the annual stockholders' meeting.

Item 19. Voting Procedures

A stockholder may vote in person by proxy executed in writing by the stockholders or his duly
authorized attomey-in-fact. All matters subject to vote in accordance with the law shall be decided by
the majority vote of the stockholders present in person or by proxy and are entitled to vote thereat and
provided a quorum is present.

16



Directors shall be elected by plurality of vote at the annual meeting of the stockholders for the year at
which quorum is present. At each election for directors, every stock holder shall have the right to vote,
in person or by proxy, the number of shares owned by him for as many person as there are directors
to be elected, or to cumulate his votes by giving one candidate as many votes as the number is
shares shall equal, or by distributing such votes as the same principle among any number of
candidates.
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PART 11.

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN A PROXY FORM

(This form shall be prepared in accordance with paragraph (5) of SRC Rule 20)

Item 1. Instructions

The Proxy Form must be properly signed, dated and returned by the stockholder on or before 7 June
2019. The proxy form Is not required to be notarized. Validation of proxies will be done at the
Company's principal office on 11 June 2019 at 4:00 pm. For corporate shareholders, the proxy form
must be accompanied by a corresponding secretary's certificate confirming the authority of the person
executing the proxy and for proxies of beneficial owners or of those shares lodged with the Philippine
Depository & Trust Corp. a certification from their respective brokers must be submitted. Validated
proxies will be voted at the meeting In accordance with the instructions of the stockholders expressed.

Item 2. Revocability of Proxy

Proxies filed may be revoked by the stockholders either In an Instrument In writing duly presented and
recorded with the Secretary at least one (1) day prior to the annual stockholders' meeting or by their
personal presence at the meeting.
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PART HI.

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to ftie best of my knowledge and belief, I ceiftfy Uiat the Information set

forth in ftils report is true, complete and correct This report is signed in Quezon City on 22 May 2019.

W1LC0N DEPOT, INC.

By:

ARIflUR R. PONSARAN

Cplporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO UiaiVuiALU i
at , Affiant exhibited to me his Passport No. P7038917A issued by DFA NCR
SOUTH valid until May 03 2028.

rage ivo. ¥• . ^ ^ i"! , Oj'ii'.'i

Seriesof2019. . - 'A. • • ^

i 3? BLOG. yif\Y3!lO CikClt:
"kGY. PujNVIcW mHD. CITY
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

Business and General Information

Wllcon Depot, Inc., doing business under the name and style of Wllcon Depot and Wilcon Home
Essentials (the Company/WDI/Wtlcon Depot) was incorporated on December 17, 2015 as a
subsidiary of Wilcon Corporation, doing business under the name and style of Wilcon City Center
(WC), formerly known as Wilcon Builder's Depot Inc. (WBDi), to operate its home improvement retail
businesses. It officially started operations on April 1,2016 >^en the retail operations including all of
the retail assets and liabilities were transferred from WC, thereby increasing WC's ownership in the
Company to 99.06%.

The Company's retailing business, which it acquired and inherited from WC, has been in existence for
over 38 years. The business, founded by Mr. William T. Belo, opened its first store in 1977, carrying
a variety of local brands of tiles and flooring, plumbing and sanitary wares, electrical and lighting
products, and hardware and tools. Mr. Belo gradually expanded the pioneer Wilcon branch as
business picked up. He opened three more branches with an average area of 2,400 sqm from 1989
to 1995. In 2002, the first store outside of Metro Manila was established in Davao City.

The first depot format store was opened in 2003, in Las Pihas. At 10,000 sqm, the Depot format was
larger than their previous 5 stores, which had an average size of 4,223 sqm. its product selection
was more comprehensive and included more intemational brands and new product lines and
categories such as fumiture, furnishings and houseware, paints, and building materials, among
others. Over the next 13 years, operations rapidly expanded with the opening of 27 more Depot
format stores around the country.

The smaller format mall-based or community-based stores were formally organized In 2009 and
operated under the brand name 'Wilcon Home Essentials". This concept was adopted by a few of
the old stores and subsequently applied to 3 more new stores from 2009 to 2013.

Corporate Restructuring

The following transactions occurred on April 1, 2016 in relation to the spin-off of the retail operations
of WC into the Company;

• The net assets comprising the retail business were transferred to the Company. The land,
intellectual property, and investment properties remained with WC, the Parent

• The Company entered into lease agreements with its Parent for the lease of land assets used
by its stores.

The spin off resulted in a 99.06% ownership of WC Inthe Company.

On March 31, 2017, the Company went public through an initial public offering with the Philippine
Stock Exchange. The Company floated thirty four percent (34.00%) or 1,393,906,200 of its capital
stock, increasing its issued and outstanding capital stock to 4,099,724,116 and diluting WC's equity
interest in the Company to 65.38%.

Bankruptcy, Receivership or Similar Proceedings

The Company and its parent, WC, have not been subject to: (i)any bankruptcy, receivership or similar
proceedings or (li) any material redasslfication, merger (other than as a survivingentity) consolidation
of purchase or sale of significant amount of assets.

Products / Business Lines

The Company caters to the fast-growing segment of middle to high-income homeowners whose
needs range from new home construction, renovation, repair and maintenance to home improvement,
fumishing and design. The Company's complete spectrum of product offerings includes local and
intemational brands of tiles and flooring, plumbingand sanitary wares, electrical and lighting products.
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hardware and tools, furniture, furnishings and houseware, paints, appliances and building materials,
among others.

Product Categories

The Company offers a broad range of products grouped into major product categories namely
plumbing and sanitary hardware and tools, tiles and flooring, electrical and lighting, furniture,
fumishing and houseware, paints, appliances, and building materials. As a matter of competitiveness,
the Company continues to develop new products and services for its customers as seen in the
launching of several in-house and exclusive products in the past

The table below enumerates the list of major product categories and its products.

Product Category
Plumbing and Sanitary wares

Hardware and Tools Products

Tiles I Flooring

Electrical and Lighting

Fumiture, Fumishings and
Houseware

Paints

Appliances

Building Materials

Description
Over 1,100 products that include bath and shower mixers,
bath fillers, faucets, shower, water systems, t>ath tubs, bidet
bowl, lavatory, pedestal, shower enclosure, urinal, water
closet and other accessories.

Products such as door essentials, hand tools and hardware
accessories, pipes, sundries, power tools and hand tools are
found in this category.
Consists of locally made tiles and tiles from different countries
such as China, Indonesia, Italy and Spain. Tiles are available
in different sizes and different types such as ceramic, glass
block, porcelain, and vinyl.
Includes electrical accessories and supplies, lamps, wiring
devices, LEDand lights.
Fumiture products include those found in the bedroom,
dining, kitchen, living room, office, and outdoor. Products
include decorative items, organizers, wall hang decors,
curtains, and blinds.
Provides a wide range of paints for different surface types.
Products include air cooler, air conditioner, electric fan,
entertainment appliances such as television, CD/DVD player,
amplifier, kitchen appliances, washing machine, and vacuum
deaner.

Products include building decors and supplies, ceiling and
wall, floorand roofing.

Among the major product categories, tiles and flooring products and plumbing and sanitary wares
historically have the highest contribution to sales.

The Company carries over 2,000 brands across the different product categories translating to 37,700
stock keeping units (SKUs) as at December 31, 2018. The Company further dassifies these brands
as: (i) in-house brands owned by the Company and exdusive intemaflonal brands that are solely
distributed by the Company, and (ii) other locally procured local and intemaflonal brands that are not
exdusively distributed by flie Company.

Store Formats

The Company operates 51 stores nationwide, as of December 31, 2018, and offers its products via
two retail formats, namely the Depot store format and Home Essentials store format

• Depots. The Company conducts its operations primarily through a format under the name
'Wilcon Depof. As of December 31, 2018, the depot format accounted for 95.8% or P20,150
million of the Company's net sales. Each Depot format store carries 90,000 to 200,000
SKUs and offers a broad variety of large-scale home and construction supply products. The
net selling space of the Company's depot stores ranges from 2,800 sqm to 16,100 sqm, with
an average net selling space of 8,700 sqm. As of December 31, 2018, the Company has 43
depots located in all the major cities across the Philippines. Project sales or sales to major

21



property developers, on the other hand, accounted for 1.3% or P272 million of total net sales
of the Company.

• Home EssenVals. The Company also operates a smaller format known as "^NWcon Home
Essentials'. The Home Essentials format was launched in 2009 as a community store-type
outiet aimed at customers who require easy access to a basic range of tools and materials for
simple housing repair and maintenance. Home Essentials stores range in size from 1,000
sqm to 5,200 sqm with an average net selling space of 740 sqm to 2,800 sqm. As of
December 31, 2018, the Company has 3 mall-based Home Essentials stores and 5 stand
alone branches for a total of 8 Home Essentials stores.

The Company has designed its stores to provide a comfortable atmosphere that will enhance the
customers' shopping experience. The Company's stores offer facilities such as free parking, ample
ventilation and air-conditioning, well-lit shopping areas, and a similar easy-to-navigate store layout in
ail its stores. For its depot-format stores the Company offers more shopping convenience like a
coffee shop or a snack bar, lounges for customers and their contractors or architects and engineers,
design hubs and a play area for kids. The Company continues to ensure the completeness of these
features in all of its depots to keep customers satisfied.

Owing to the significantly higher store count and total selling area of depots versus home essentials,
majority of the Company's revenues or 95.8% comprised of net sales generated from the depot-
format stores, 1.3% for the project sales while the remaining 2.9% was contributed by the home
essential format store.

Distribution Methods of Products

The Company as mentioned in the preceding paragraphs, operate two store formats, the Depot and
the Home Essentials. The home essential stores are confined within Metro Manila while the depots
are located in different parts of the Philippines.

Below is the breakdown of the number of the Company's stores per location and format:

Store format Region Number of stores
Depot Metro Manila 10

Luzon 23

Visayas 5

Mindanao 5

Total Depot 43

Home Essentials Metro Manila 7

Visayas 1

Total Home 8

Essentials

The Company outsources various logistics and distribution functions to third parties, which the
Company believes allows it to expand its store network rapidly while lowering its operating costs.

Replenishment of the Company's inventory is provided through direct store deliveries from suppliers
for ui^ent requirements or deliveries to the Company's warehouses for regular restocking.

Operational and Financial Information

Wilcon Depot, Inc.'s common shares has been trading in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
starting March 31, 2017. The high and low market prices of the Company's shares for each quarter of
2018 and month of January and February of 2019, as reported by the PSE are shown below:
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2019

February

January

2018

4^ quarter

3"^ quarter

2"** quarter

1®* Quarter

High

15.00

14.22

The market capitalization of the Compan/s common shares at the end of 2018 based on the closing
market price of P12.60 per share totaled to P51.657 billion.

Stockholders

The total number of issued and outstanding common shares of the Company as of 31 Marx^h 2019
were 4,099,724,116 and total number of stockholders as of 31 March 2019 was 22.

List of Top 20 Stockholders as of 31 March 2019

Stockholder's Name Holdings Percentage

1. Wilcon Corporation 2.680.317,916 65.378%

2. PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 734,282,158 17.9111%

3. PCD Nominee Corporation (Non-Filipino 684,436,300 16.695%

m
Timothy James Vorbach 450,000 0.011%

5. Ellis C. Maguan &/or Mingming C. Maguan 150,00 i 0.004%

6. Ming Ming C Maguan or Ellis C. Maguan 20,000 0.00%

m Joel M. Banaco 15.000 0.00%

8. Jovelyn Lavalle Gualberto 13,900 0.00%

9. i Mary Joy Mendoza Galamay 6.000 0.00%

10. Alma Bella Pit Alberastine 5,000 0.00%

11. Christine F. Herrera 5,000 0.00%

12. Veronica Aguilar Pedrasa 5,000 0.00%

13. Doreen Fatima Sanosa Peniila 4,000 0.00%



14. Divine Jesset Ramos Santos 4,000 0.00%

15. Myra P. Villanueva 4,000 0.00%

16. Adora Brigette N. Canlas 2,800 0.00%

17. Ofelia R. Blanco 2,000 0.00%

18. Nade^a Iskra F. Herrera 1,000 0.00%

19. Owen Nathaniel S Au ITF: Li Marcus AU 30 0.00%

20. Botschaft N. Cheng or Seville Ngo 10 0.00%

Dividends

On 9 May 2018, the Board of Directors approved the declaration of cash dividends in the amount of
PhP 0.08 regular cash dividend and PhP0.03 special cash dividend or a total of PhP 0.11 per
common share to all stockholders of record as of 24 May 2018, payat^e on 8 June 2018.

The Company has approved a dividend policy of maintaining an annual cash and/or share dividend
pay-out of up to 25% of its net profit after tax from the preceding year, subject to the requirements of
applicable laws and regulations, the terms and conditions of its outstanding bonds and loan facilities,
and the absence of circumstances that may restrict the payment of such dividends, such as where the
Company undertakes major projects and developments. Dividends must be approved by the Board
(and shareholders in case of a share dividend declaration) and may be dedared only from the
unrestricted retained eamings of the Company. The Compan/s Board of Directors may, at any time,
modify the Company's dividend policy, depending upon the Company's capital expenditure plans
and/or any terms of financing facilities entered into to fund its current and future operations and
projects. The Company can give no assurance that it will pay any dividends in the future.

Securities Sold

There were no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities, induding issuance of securities
constituting an exempt transaction.

Discussion on Compliance with Leading Practice on Corporate Governance

The Company understands that it is paramount to set the kind of corporate governance needed in the
attainment of the Company's corporate goals and ensures compliance with the leading practices in
corporate governance. Consequently, the Company has revised its Corporate Govemance Manual
which was approved by the Board on May 22, 2017. The Manual was des^ned to define the
fiamework of rules, systems and processes that govems the performance of the Board and
Management. It establishes the structure by which the Company executes and carries out its
Corporate Govemance. This serves as reference by all the members of the Board as well as its
Management in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities.

The Board and Management, employees and shareholders, believe that good govemance is a
necessary component of \Miat constitutes sound strategic business management and will therefore
undertake every effort necessary to create awareness thereof within the organization.

Further, on June 18,2018, the meml>ers of the Board as well as officers of the Company attended the
corporate govemance seminar, entitled "Coqjorate Govemance: Breaking Through Modem Controls"
conducted by the Center for Training and Development, Inc. This is In compliance vnth SEC
Memorandum Circulars No. 20-2013 and 2-2015 of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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To strictly observe and implement the provisions of the Manual, corresponding penalties shall be
imposed, after notice and hearing, on the Compan/s directors, officers, staff, subsidiaries, and
affiliates and their respective directors, officers, and staff in case of violation of any of the provisions of
the Manual.

The Company will submit its Integrated Annual Corporate Govemance Report (l-ACGR) for the year
ended December 31, 2018, on or before May 30, 2019, in compliance with SEC Memorandum
Circular No.15, Series of 2017.
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended December 31,2018 compared with period ended December 31,2017

Wilcon Depot, Inc. (WDI or the Company) recorded net income of P1.835 milflon for the year ended
December 31, 2018, up by 32.5% or P45D million from the PI ,385 million reported for the full year
2017 with net margin likewise improving from 7.8% in 2017 to 8.7% in 2018. The improvement was
driven by a robust comparable sales growth of 8.0% and margin-enhancing product mix strategy.

Net Sales

WDI's net sales for 2018 amounted to P21,041 million, 18.6% or P3,294 million higher than the
PI7,748 million generated in 2017. The growth was driven by a solid comparable sales performance
of 8.0% for the year and a healthy contribution from new stores opened in 2018 and 2017. Eleven
new branches, nine depot-format and two smaller-format "Home Essentials" stores were opened in
2018 but one depot was dosed temporarily as the old store building will be rebuilt into a multi-story
building by the property owner. The Company closed the year with 51 stores, 43 of which are depots
and eight are Home Essentials.

The depots contributed the majority of total net sales comprising 95.8% orP20,150 million, growing
by 20.6% or P3,443 million year-on-year with a same store sales growth of 9.5%. The new depots,
meanwhile, accounted for 53.8% of the total growth, contributing PI ,853 million for the year. Project
sales or sales to major property developers, on the other hand, dropped by 44.5% year-on-year
totaling P272 million for the year, accounting for 1.3% of total net sales.

The Home Essentials branches recorded total net sales of P619 million, accounting for 2.9% of total
net sales. The format grew 12.6% wth a same store sales growth of 9.7%. Two Home Essentials
were opened during the year while there was none opened in 2017.

Fourth quarter 2018 net sales grew 20.4% to tally atP5,682 million with a same store sales growth of
7.4%. Net sales from depots contributed 96.2% or P5,469 million, growing by 22.9% year-on-year.
Net sales from Home Essentials totaled PI 57 million accounting for 2.8% or PI57 million, up 11.7%
from the 2017 fourth quarter level. Project sales dropped by 56.9% year-on-year to total P57 million
for the quarter.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year amounted to P6,603 million up 25.4% or PI ,337 million year-on-year resulting
in a growth in the blended gross profit margin (GPM) to 31.4% from the 29.7% 2017 GPM. The
improvement is traceable mainly to the expanding contribution of tiie higher mai^in in-house and
exclusive products to total net sales, which accounted for 46.9% for the year versus 44.6% in 2017
and partly to improved margins from non-exclusive products.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased to P4,421 million for the year, increasing by 22.9% or P825 million
from the prior year's P3,596 million. The hike is brought about mainly by the increased volume of
business both from new and existing stores compounded by inflation effects on expense accounts
notably on trucking and salaries.

Interest Expense

The Company repaid its bank loans resulting in an 89.2% or PI 9 million drop in interest expense to
P2 million for the year.

Other Income (Charges)

Net other income for the year reached P359 million, up 94.0% or PI74 million from the PI85 million
generated in 2017. The jump is attributable mainly to:
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1) higher interest income eamed from placements of the balance of the proceeds from the initial
public offenng and cash generated from operations, increasing by 68.0% or P79 million year-on-
yearto close at ^194 million;

2) higher other revenues net of charges of P165 million from the prior year's P70 million, consisting of
rent income for the lease of billboards, gondola lights, etc. by merchandise suppliers and their
share of various operational and promotional/marketing costs and other non-merchandise sales
related income.

Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) / Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciadon and
Amortization (B^TDA)

EBIT as a result increased to P2,542 million for an EBIT margin of 12.1% while EBITDA amounted to
P2,707 million for a margin of 12.9%, increasing from the prior year's PI ,856 million with 10.5%
margin and PI ,960 million with 11.0% margin, respectively.

Income Tax

Income tax increased by 57.1% or P256 million to settle at P704 million in view of the higher taxable
income this year and a one-off tax benefit in 2017 arising from the increase in capital stock resulting
from the public listing of the Company's common shares.

Financial Condition

December 31. 2018 versus December 31.2017

Assets

Total assets as of December 31, 2018 totaled PI7,502 million, up by 9.2% or PI ,478 million from the
end-2017 balance of PI6,024 million accounted for mainly by the income generated during the year
partly offset by the repayment of bank loans and distribution of dividends during the year.

Current assets. Current assets declined by 3.2% or P380 million attributed mainly to the utilization of
cash and maturing short-term investments to fund the construction of new stores. Merchandise
inventories which account for 64.5% of total current assets, hiked by 5.2% or P363 million to dose at
P7,331 million by the end of the year to support the requirements of new store openings.

Noncurrent assets. Noncurrent assets dimbed 43.4% or PI ,858 million to total P6,134 million as at
end-2018 from the end-2017 level of P4,276 million. The hike is traceable mainly to the jump in
property and equipment which totaled P2,767 million as at end-2018, up 221.7% or PI ,907 million
from P860 million as at end-2017 in view of the construction of new stores. Property and equipment
accounted for 45.1% of total non-current assets.

Liabiiities

Total liabilities as at December 31, 2018 totaled P4,290 million, inching up by 4.5% or PI84 million
from the end-2017 balance of P4,106 million accounted for mainly by the increase in trade and other
payables partly offset by the payment of bank loans.

Current liabilities. Current liabilities totaled P4,171 million as at the end-2018, increasing by 12.0% or
P446 million from the balance of P3,725 million as at end-2017, primarily due to the rise in trade and
other payables which includes payables to suppliers and contractors for the construction of store
buildings.

Noncurrent liabilities. Noncurrent liabilities totaled P118 million, down by 68.9% or P263 million from
the end-2017 level of P381 million due to repayment of bank loans.
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Equity

Total equity reached P13,212 million as at December 31,2018, up by 10.9% or PI ,294 million from
the P11,918 million balance as at December 31,2017 accounted for by the net income earned during
the year and partly offset by the payment of dividends.

Key Financial Perfonnance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators 2018 2017

Net Sales 21,041,433,928 17,747,580,107

EBIT^ 2,542,019,176 1,855,569,319

EBITDA2 2,706,871,157 1,959,894,624

EBIT Margin^ 12.08% 10.46%

Current Ratio^ 2.73 3.15

Debt to Equity Ratio^ 0.32 0.34

Interest Coverage Ratio^ 1,083.87 85.14

1. Income before tax add Interest expense
2. Income before tax add interest expense and depreciation and amortization
3. EBIT/Net Sales

4. Current Assets / Current Liabilities

5. Total Liabilities / Total Equity
6. EBIT/ Interest Expense

Any known trends, events, or uncertainties (material impact on liquidity)

There are no known trends or events that will trigger any direct or contingent financial obligation that
is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

There are also no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entries or other
persons that was created during the reporting period.

Description of any material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of such
commitments for capital expenditure, expected sources for such expenditures.

There are no known regulatory or material contractual commitments of the Company for 2018.

The Company, pursuant to its expansion plans has allocated approximately P2.0G0 billion for
additional storesybranches, warehouses, acquisition of vehicles and equipment, and renovations of
select stores.

Any known trends, events, or uncertainties that will have material impact on sales and
continuing operations

The continuing economic growth, not only of highly developed and urbanized regions of the
Philippines but of emerging cities and pro>nnces outside the national capital and its immediate
surrounding regions has presented a vast potential for growth for the Company. Thus, the
Company's growth plan is to expand in these locations, in which most Wilcon Depot has scarce to no
presence yet

In these emerging cities and provinces, the home improvement space more particularly the
construction finishing materials niche is still dominated by traditional trade. As the economy of these
areas develops and the purchasing power of the market strengthens, demand for more convenient
and improved shopping experience, variety especially of higher quality products and overall better
customer service are expected to continually grow. Entry and success of current and upcoming
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Wilcon stores in these growing areas coupled with the aforesaid continuous economic growth of these
markets, it is expected that more modem trade channels for the home improvement space will
gradually flourish, shifting the balance and the competitive landscape.

Seasonal Aspect that has material effect on the financial statements.

There is no seasonal aspect that has material effect on the financial statements.
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PART!. BUSINESS AND GENSmji iWORMATfOM
Item 1. Business

Backorounri

subsldiaiy of Wte*m CotpoiaSoa. doinq biSnLr^2^2^^ on December 17, 2015 as a^C), Tormeiiy known as V\mcon Builder^s Deoot fnc ^ V^on City Center
businesses, ft ofRciaffy started operations on Apr^ 1 jrnprovement retaif

~5;;.ssits,i'ss:ss?

a^nety of local brands of files and fiS ^ store in 1977, carrying
products, and hardware add tools. Mr. Befo SS '̂ ting
busrness picked up. He opened three ^ bran* asto 1995. In 2002, the first store outeide of Metro Ms^te was eSISSin'SvIo '̂̂ .

^10.m sqm, the Depot format was
more comprehensive and included mor- intOT^^®b?nd? h'""' Pncduct selection

caregon^ such as fumrtufe. ftrrrfishings and horS^^U^ '"es and
«o^-~rapidiy

Sri^lrnd^b'S^nS^^TH'S^^^ ^ "tSSnteed in 2009 andthe old stores and subsequeyitiy a.Dpiied to3more new^Ses fiem 2ro^2m ®
Corporate Restruc&inr?rf

The foflowing transactions occurTed on AdpI 1 9nift ^
or WC Into the Company; , 2016 in refanon id the spin-off of the retai! operations

Company
by its stores

The spin off resulted in a99:06% ownerehip of WC in me Company.

stock, increa^ '̂ ^ 1,393,986,200 of Its' ^oZ
interest in the Company to 65.38%. 4,099,724,116 and dSuting WC's equity

.Bankruptcy, Receivefshin nr. Similsr Pmr^^riir^r^o

proceedings receivership or similar
of purchase or safe of significant amount of assets. ^ sunm/mg entity) consofidation

Products / Business Lines

needs Jo high-income hmneEwners whosefurnishing and design. The Companys •oor;-plete s;;ecir:4 ^^IJXngs'̂ SriTand



Sghflng p^duots,
among others. Jumisijn^ aov nojsas^. parts, appliances and buifcSng materials.among others.

Product Categones

plumbing

Companyr-—wvc»v>f^ iievy pioQucs aoG servic(
launching of severe in-house and exdusive prsxkic^ in the past

The table below enumerates the Bst of major produrt categories and Bs products.
Product Category PeserirttiolT
HiumoingandSanllaryware^ l.iOO^produote that mdude bath ar«i shower mixers,

bath n!le?s, laocets, shower, water systems, bath tubs bidet
pedestal, shower endosune, urinal,' water

——— raoset and oiher atxsssories.
Hardware and Tods Products Products such as door essentials, hand tools and hardware

, pipes, sundries, powK* tods and hand toote are
found m this csteoofv«es. . oonng Cwslsts^loc^ymadeandtifesfromcSfferentcountries
s^as ^ma, Inaonesra,.Italy and Spain. THes are available

different types sudi as ceramic, glass
—11, — PlocK. poTcdsin. and vinviElectncalandUghb-ng moluoes access and supplies, lamps, wiring
-ETi-iz =— devices, LSD and tlahfe ' ^

House>IS're""^ »"Ssand ^ bedroor^Tpmrng, K^en, hvmg room, omce, and outdoor. Products
ir^ude dscc^^e items, organizers, wall hang decors

-p^ curtains, andblinds ^
^ ^roviaes a.v^^e range d o^ts for different sigface tyne?;

air conditioner, decSic fan."ememiTrm^ aps^iances such as tefevidon, COnyVD player
&-n^er, Kltch^ appifances. washir^ madt^e, and vacuum
ctgsngr.mg Ma.enals indude buOding decors and supplies, ceiling and
wail, floor and roonno.

P>"n.bing and sanltery «.res

STsKui<-"^9to 37,700

exclusively tLributed by the Sn|Ly ^ intemaSt^ brands that are not
Store Formats

The Company operates 51 stores nationwids as of Der^emhor on-iatwo retail fonnats, namely the Depot store fon^atand^SaS^^f^^^

n conducts rfe operations primarily through a fonnat under the name
miHinn nf r Dscember 31, 2018, the depot fonnat accounted for 95.8% or P20 150
SKUs ard Pepot format store carries 90.000 to 200 DOCS''^^Ss-scalehome and construction sui^y produS Thenet seHif?g space of the Comr^nva ^ ^ proouas. . ne
an



dspots iocstsd in af! the fnajor cities scfdss Ih'- ,

^mp^y fiiso operates a smaBer fomat known as -Wilcon Home
fcssemrais rormst was launched in 2009 as a community store-type

access to abasic range of tocfe and materiai^r
sonfto niantenance, Hc»ne Essentials stores range In size from 1000
atonet>ranchiforatotel^

S5omS^fooS„2 Si-Sphere that wiH enhance the

SttiS^Tor r°^

^eSiall^at^ ^ 2.9% was con,rtt>uted by foe home
Distribution Methods of Prnrinrds

Th<

the *«° Store formats, the Depot and
are located in deferent pa4 ^
Below is foe breakdown of foe number of foe Company's stwes per location and format

yoferormat Region Number of stores
IVfetro Manila

Luzon

1otai Depot
Mindanao

HomeEssentials n^etro Manaa

Tot^ ' Hofl3e
Essentials

10

23
Vfsayas 5

5

43

Vfsayas \

Ihe Company outsource various iogistlcs and distritjution functions to third oarties which thp»
company oelreves allows it to expand its store network rapidly wtrBe

Replenishment of the Company's inveniory is provided through direct store defiveries from suDofiersfor urgent requirenients or delfvenes to the Company's warehouses for regular restocking.
Competition

5lainnS^f®?L® operating in the corrstruction and home improvement supply industry in foe
ifonSSSns^rii '̂®"^® °"'®° oompetitois are retaSera, vrfodesatera and distributors ofimprovement supply. The Company competes wifo these enlffies primarily in

rXorfwrir^T preducte and services oflered. pricing, target market, and sa^es



Suppliers

entn,c^eofo«.er,<fer.e,yatearK5o^^^^ '̂™
The Company is not dependent on any one or few suppfers given its extensive product offerings.
Consjonors

£^"SS«'IS8"1SK*^r?'^*2r' E—«»«o« ««-™™. ™»8,pi„rsisss™ • f-
Customers

Target Customers

buying pa4ms are°S^Jn'&jr^iWncome^^ehoids, whose
wes of home improvement n^. Wifcon o^er ,
oevelopers who require construction and building maieriais 'K'®PS"bera contraciofs and project
Customer Segments

The Company divides its customers into t«M> catteries:

~ ^ homeowners and smaS and indeoencfent confactQ-^
, f ®Company's revenues are generated from its retail con^mereaccounts - Consisting of property devefopers. Tne Company o^n-rates =

small portion or ns revenue from Institulional accounts. ^^psny es ^

rev^ui."° «^mer that accounts for more than twenty percait (20%) of the Companys
Loyalty andRewards Program - WUcofs Loyalty Card

" 2°"- '' ®® ^ program
Doints ha'«ofi nn ^ ^ customers iree or diatge.' Regi^ered members can accumuiaj"^ints oased on the omounr and quantity of meir pure^^ases from any WHcon Depot branch

^ converted its equivalent monetary value based on the proqram and
^11 if h^fnnU^ «oo any Wncon Depot store. From amembership of 89,118 In e'nd-•., - as now grov^ to 628,276 registered members as ofDecember 31.2018

Transactionswith and/or Dependence on RefatedParhes

operation of VVC, relies on the parent company and other relatedPonies Tonhe^uisinon of m^oriiy of the current and all ofme Identified future store sites. Of the 51
branches as of December 31 2̂018, only eight siigs. are leased from third parties.

on rnaleriai rented party transactions of the Company, please see noteTrsnsactfons and Balances of the attach,ed Audited Rnandal Statements of this



inteiiectual Property

The C^mp^y owns al. .^demartcs balng used in cpnnecflon with its hon,e in,p^ven,ant and retail

Government ApprovafR / RecHiatifv^

operating store bulldfngs. Sovemrnent and licenses for leasing and
Effect ofExfstfnq and Probable Qovemm^:^

Tfie Company Is not aware of any and foresep^ •'"ay have amaterial and adirerse effect on the operaSo^le°^any '̂̂ "^ regulations toat
Research and Devslnpnient'

The Company has no expendiiiirs on nssearcrir and development for the y^.
Costs and of Cnmnt[ance with Envlm»m^^t ?

The Company Is compifantrand incure exoens^ fnr «...
laws such as the Envlronmerstal Clearance Cerfficate complying with environmenta
stores with areas of 10,000 sqm anffc^w Ifsom.For
pmcunng these clearances aSt °W^ed. Fees for

Empiovees

out the breakdown Jfthe ^^"9 ^t^le sefe

1 Rank 1

j Key management, Manaaer S
j Kank ano File ~
{Total

795

1 1,491

1 2^286

Employment Sfeatttg
Regular

Probab'onary
iotai

i ^Pgnbsr of Empioveea

,994

292 I

2,2Se

Ite employees' incentives and loyalty The'ComiSf^^ mommting envhonmrari to enhancesiaff, including trainings tailored to ^edSojob ® trainings for different levels of
peraotrnel, a Leadership EfihanisSand
and also a Career Management Proo-am Program tor middle management
competent key cfScemvwthfn toe or^SSon/ - ®"PP'y o'"
effective until May ^^ ttargaWng agreement
pastyear orare threatening tostrKe. ^ ®



to toclude'̂ n employees withtn the next 12 months
R'tsks

1.

5.

• engaging quaSRed independent oonftacte-
• t^n^oction and devetopment tists of new ^es. pathouiaiy In compedSve

atto Beenses (mrtx&ig constructioft

P^ has vAirtt^ cooperatively with the

impiementafion ofthe expansion i^ans. the nsk of delays in the

the various regfons of the Phiton^ ®to open new stores in
market nthese areas is dominated fav'indeiSSf f "^h® ^®tea

the Company to operation^. ^=^0" '"to Hiese areas
territories. The Company has studied the demofH^p-yh' J <^0^19 business In new

susfamaWepnofitebir>tydftite.branohestoUo^ed-mTSL^^t. "" "™®fi®te and
Which may advereeiv

existing operaSonal, managerial' Rnknd addSona! burden on te
,Compan/s exisfing re^-4s to^m^SJT ^here is arisk that thein turn couid compromise the operations of exisiina stoiSf number of stores, vshich
^^omer service, lack of product sei=otion ooor through detenorating quality of its
Although the Company has an effective reoniiirhentaitoSte^ inventory, among others.a pool OT available competent personnel ihat can rwaninu^ pJ^ogram mptace to always have
nnancial condition to have resdv access to debt ~iri an^me and has kept a heafthv
that the accelerated expansion pfen^nt?^ "<« 9"arantees

source ^^?th6®appro|̂ te®m£'5^dud^?m^*m^^^^? confinuing capability tosuccess IS dependent on its abffity to>Lrce and Preferences. Tne Company^
the same time satisfy customer' pref^ences standards and at
responsible for sourcihg the rigS
customer behavior, and aporopriatelv^SnndinfTSi^ L^^"^ arrlidpatlng trends ir-
such products, or to ^ ®<«m=e and market
^e<S toe level of customer trlrsadfons ° Ptof®tonces, witi
toe Company's business. --ranp^.ny's stores, which could have aneffect on

toture suppfere, and fafare g'?'! reiationsl^ with its current and's r^iant on ffs retetionships wffh curre^m^^e^uTpir^e c2:|̂ arha^<^g!



7.

deliveries ofpreducis to its stores At 'tianspoftation andsendee provWe,^ or o?,^ ^ or
distribufen chains, could ha^mateda1dvffl&5w^«,^ changes in supply and
condition andresttfe ofoperaSons Po®i"ess. financial
improve Ss soBd long-standing i^iior-sHhs ^ '° ®®'®'>®®'' ^ continues to
Therecanbenoasslhce,h?we'̂ :i^"SoS«^J^ the yearn,
controlied'̂ te B^^sSiy Certain companiesCompan^s miated PertyttanSslSlS^St^?Sf
Will continue to enter Into transacSons with cnrmSf^SS^" ' ®xpects that it
associated with the Belo Famllv These irsnsSS^ ofec% or indiFectly corrtroBed by or
which could be detrimental to the '"terest
arise between the Belo FamBv and i-e may also
businesses. Indudlnr Company ma number of other areas relating to Its

iransrers oraffrhated companies into the Companv-
' P"®"?® to develop the respeaivebusinssses rathe'Company and. busmess opportunities that may be ^dve jo both th^ piily and the Company

Corp^;^bS:itiSsrS^^^^-^ ^ave amatena. advene etfect on the
~ to mtes detennined by an

ihese transactions. y the Company to ensure the fairness of

renew the^L^SSSi'"'aufhortzations, or fell to
authorizations, including licenses ° and other
required to obtain and renew various pennlts.lnducnnafaS?r!!b<f^^^ ^ Company Is alsofor example, health and safeti/. envirer^^^^ '
Company falls to meet the term^ of standards. If the
for ooerafions. thphjco m-ss/ ^ authorizations nece55<5«n.

8.

9.

or other adverse

an its establishmlnts to'dSSte"^ra"l^[£^° '̂̂ " '̂'! |̂̂ i®^^"}onitored
However,

Com(»nys busing'! ^"^^OOT^ys ^fte PhiBppines could affect the
favorable growth and perfbimance ofthe and rasiness is dependent on theof the Company is ^ ss^e markets. The largest retail market
half of its t^l sales. Der^for^.^'^ "" tor more than
^ate projects in the market including, ^
offices and commercial buildings. " ' ?©sident?al nouses, condommiums.



tiem Properties

P®«®®The Company pteis to enter into new {eases warehouses are sfejated.

the < '̂"i^ny 2018,

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company and its manag^ent are not lnvnn/«r< ?«
^ s material effect on fh? ^v^nental, legal or arb&ationP^bfifty. ^ A^mpany^s business, ffnandai posfeon or

None of the members of §ie Boaid of {Di^ect^-s ~
•S .nvoK^ed in any niateOa, crtmina,. '

Ite>n4. Subn«ssk.nofMaeerstoaVoteofS8car8yaolders

The following fen« «epe submitted to avote ofsacurify
1. ^ppnovai Of the Minutes of the Annual Stockhoidem- Meettog held on 19 June 2017.
2. Approval of Annual Report and HnandalSSatematts.

^ Of the Boaro Of Dheotom and Mans^ent dunng the
4. Erection of Directors

5, Appointment ofExternal Audits^

part II. OPERATK»iAL,ANDRRAi«Ci/M.ii«FORMAnOM
Item 5. Market for issuer's Cosamon £qu%and Rs^sd ^eSdiolder
Wiicon DeDot fnr 'c _! , .

ofuary

so.OG
13.70

14J22
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2"'^quarter 1
i 1Z30 1 1050

1

i
I

1®* Quarter
L 11.80

j
1 8.16

)

{

1

market atthe erei ra 2018 fa^ on the dosing

item S. RSanagemenfs Discussion and Anaiynis

FortheYenrenriPrinecember31 2018

^ tlrfP1,835miBion for fte year ended

^-enhyartfonstcornparahtesafosgnLhoiaStSfo^^^^
Atef Safes

^17,?48m{^g^2din201^%Sa^o^^^^ than theof 8.0% for the year and aheaifhy contnlSS ^ perfofmance
new branches, nme depot-format and two ^aferforrwrf %4 ^ evened oi 2018 and 2017. Eleven
2018 but one depot was clewed temncffariv ac Essaitiafe'' stor^ were opened In
building by the property owrfer. The Com^nv ^ ®mum-stoiy
and eight are Home Essentfafs. ' " ^ 51 stores, 43 of whfch are depots

gn^ving
meanwhile, accoim'^^ for 53 8ry o- frw^i saes growtn of 9.5%. The new depots
sales or fS
totaling P272 miilion to he W

net sales. ^ 2.9% of toil
were opened during the year whQe there was n^eopen^S??' ' EssenSais

7.°4^ °f
Net sales from Home EssehSais totafsd PI57 n2®nn J7^n,.^wlng by 2Z9% year-on-ysar.
from the 2017 fourfo 2.8% orP157mSion, up 11.7%
forthe quarter. y^^-o»>-yearto tofel P57 million

Gross Profit

improvement te jePM) to 31.4% from the 29.7% 2017 GPM. ni
exclusive ptodtx^ fo total net s^ wtii"h^S2Mto"X^'? ®2 m-house and
and partly toimpmved for the year versus 44.6% in 2017



Operating Expenses

e 2Z9«/. orP825 mffionbusiness ^ ^ n '̂̂ HTSo volume of
notably on^cCal^^Lari^® ^ compounded by inSafion effects on expense accounts
Interest Esqsense

ihe Company repaid its bank ioans resuiting in an 8S:?°A rx- ^iQ mioirtn • • ♦ ...
P2 minion for the year. y /o orM9 miaran drop in interest expense to

OtherIncome(Charges)

generated In^irf^-^ump ^ the P185 mlillon

pub^ ^ flte initial
year to close at ^194 rniOlon; 0P®f3 , increasing by 68.0% orF79 migfon year-on-

sham of various opemtidnai Sfs ?"<! S-eir
related income. ®ting cxjsts and oth©* non-rnefchandise sales

Amor^aeon (EBIT^^ ^ / Earnings Bsfore Invest, Tax, DepreciaOon and

^7ofmiB^?iSI%'hS^Stomargin and P1,960 million with 11.0% ma^Sm^^Sy ^ ^°-5%
Income Tax

income fS2017
from tne public listing of the Companys common shared. ^ increase in eapfef stock resulting
Financial Conditfon

December .^1.2018vem...rteee.r^a.i

Assets

partly onset by the repaymern Of banKtoans antrS^ '̂JSi^^^^

mvemones which account for64 5%oftota? ciirrp«^ n ^ steles. Merchandise
^7.331 mniion by the end of«,e yearto

end-20irfe^£ ^
prope^ and equipment which totaled ^>67 mlBion as^ ^ ^
irom mo mafion as at end-2G17 in >4ew if^e^Sr^nlw !' 221.7% or ^1,907 million .
accounted for 45.1% of total non-current assets. stores. Property and equipment

13



Uabili&es

Total iiabilffie^ at December 31, 2013 totaled P4,23D miSion. mching up by 45% or P184 million
^ byihe in<^ in Sde oSpayabies partlyoffset by the payrnentof bank icans.

^ntl^W^ Cuirert B^iliBes totaled P4,1?1 n«on as at the end-2018. increasing by 12 0% or
mllHonfesi^e balanra orP3,725 miBon as at end-2017. primanTy due to the rise in trade and

which mdudes payaHes to suppS^ and contractors for the coitotorcBon of store

toaed P118 mfflon, down by 68.9% orP^ mBlion from
me end-2017 fevef ofP381 miliron due to repayment of bankloans.

Equity

""fS"s'Decenrber31.2018, up by 10.9% orPI34miliion from
toe 31.2017 accounted for by Ihe net focome earned duringine year and paHy otfisetbythe paymeni of divkssrds.

Key Rnanciat P&formance laeOcsfors

Key Perfoiroance Indicators
i Net Sales

EBm

|EB!TDA2

EBrr MarcHn^

Cun"ent RaSo^

1Debt to EquityRatto^
! interest Cov^aoe Ratios

2013

21,04-1,433.^8

2,542,0iai78

2.706,871;157

12.08% i

Z73

0.32

1,083.87

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Income before tax addinterest expense

CurrentAssets / Cairent L^iJWes
Totamabimes/Total Equity
EBI//interest Expense

17.747.580.107

1,855,569.319

1,959,894.624 !

10.46%

3.15 !•

0.34 I

85.14

Any Itnown trends, everrts, or uncerSairrties {material impact on nquidify)

is ^te^i to focSSJa^iSSSSS

contingent ^^Sements, ofaligaiions {inrdudinopersoi that du^r^^e -JSrg^ unoonsolidatod entries or othef
Description of any material commitments for c^ita! expenditures oeneralcommltmenfo for capital eipenditure.ortoectedZnres^S^Ss'^^
There are no known regulatory or roateriai contracSuai commitments of the Company for 2018.

^ allocated ^rpraximateiy P2.00D faiilion forwarenouses. acquisition ofvehides and equipmenL and renovaflons of



nrateria. impact on saies and

^ conttnulng economic growth, net oniy of highiy deveiopea and urtianizsd reoions c'F^pin^ but of emergtog cS^ and;, provmpes otSside Ihe naBor^ <^^dTLnediSe
sui^amg regions has presented a vast poienliai for grewth for fhT^m^ 'Zs^!
t^^TyT^ most Wiicon DepoZs scame tol

oistomer service are

^ aforesaid continuous economic^TtZe

Seasonal Aspect that has materfai affect on the fSnantdal statements.
There is no seasonal aspectthat has materiai cffert or, the flnancrai sfetements.

Discussion oncrenpiiance wife teacand °mctice~. Comorete

ateinZrt^^ ""Porate governance needed in the

^ ®'® fiamewoht of rulesNfenagemenl J Z ^ (®'®
Corporate Governance. Z
Management in the oonductit# their Arties arri ^ Board as well as its

^ employees and shareholders, beiievs that

TolL" ^ "Ss-^t '̂"^reStr4ZZ

To^^y ote«ve and implement the provrsirms of this Maaiai, corre^nding penalties shail be

the iZuat • sSaff in case of woiaSon of any offee pmwsions of
Item?. Financia!Statements

The financ®} statements are incOTporsted in this report asExhibit 1.
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^emal Audit i-sfas

399^®S3i© biSsd by R6\^5- »scsnckjfjQ B: Oq '"RT&f^-rx ®\ •&%- ^4^ - *1. -

Audit Commtttee's ApbtovsI Policies and FTQr^grftgsa«a

:Msag,Be«^ ««, Accoms «, Acco«„&-^ and Hnanclal

PART If!. COPTTROLAMD

Items. Directors and Execunve Officers ofReggstrant

>ne Toitowing are the Directors and Omcsfs of Sis Osnpahy for Sie year 2018:

1 Mame 1 t

! Posff^ ~1
} Wliam T. Befo

'

73
f

1 Chairman tmerttiis !
1 Sertram B. Lim 1 81 t

F^lno Chairman i

Louable Bero-Cincochan j 39 1
j F^iisnG DsecBor, President said Chief Executive i

Of^c^ \
Mark Andrew Y. Beio 36

t

{
?

RiKno
i

Baecfor, Treasurer aid Chief Finandal i
-Ofncer j

Careen Y. Belo 35
1

1 FIOi^G Dsector and Chief Product Ofncer 1
Rolando S. Narciso y"^

i ^ >
\
} „| — 1

ipdep^dent Daector 1
Ricardo S. Fascua

Deinn L Warren
8S

4--i—
Fi%)jfK3

f
j
i

— 1

tTidep^dent Director {

Indep&ndeETt Drrector 1
Arthur R. Ponsaran 75

i

\ Flfxno I Corporate Secretary :
Sheite Pasicolan-Camerino 32 J

t AssL Corporate S^selarv 1
Rossmarie Bosch-Ong 60 Flupuio 1

- ^ ^ j
Senior Exeas&ve Vice President - Chief 1
Opeiatina Ofncer i

Eden M. Godlno 41
)

i Fiifpirro 1vice President- ProductDevelopment
Grace A.Tiong 44

♦
Ffepino 1\^ce President - Human Resources j

Michael D.Tiong 44
5

f i-iHpfno . 1
i Vice Preadent -- Gfrsal Operations |

MaryJean G. Alg«- 48 i
{ } Vice President - Investor Relations j

Lauro D.G Francisco 53 Flpino OaefAudit Executive

miarn T. Bdo IS the Chasroan Ementas of the Company. He is fhe founder of the WScon business

from 1^to complies established and/or acquiredrom 1377 to 2016 mduorns the parent. WO. .Cunerfdy. he is involved in other business undertakings
and serves as Drrector of Markeenio Reafty inc, Lontarkeen R^- Ukx; ibe Ptesiderrt of Corai-/i«n



'̂ BossmgAvvard, adistinc#op giveri to outstanding ertfBpf®neuis of the countrv in 2018

Chief Executive OfBcerof the Company and a

nr^."is~5I~3—under WC ^ T®^ ® ^a»"^aser-trai^

Msia &tne Pacific m2004. with a bachelor's cegree in Industrial Economics.

20^1 "Tl been aBusiness Devetopment
the Univetoity of Asia &the^aSc in ^06 " Management hom

his tenement . Oecemtton

»ujrt.a his career mBancom iDevetopment Coiporafion as AssL Vice President in 1972 and n/a'̂signed in Bancom intomationai Ud. in Hong Kong as Se^Si^eTS i975 ».IX '
hvolvpri^-^^ oiretSor in various coiporatitxis and foundations He is likewise

M ® Ca®""" Deveiop^inc Fad^ I
1^°®'®®''"®"' Phildevelopers. inc.: Chairman of die Executive

Hoso^clTr'M """""S®- '"®- C®«rai Luzon DootodsHospital de Madera Corp. ana Qurcksiiver Satcom Ventures, inc and the President n"
Bancom il Consultants, inc. Mr. Pascua has a of Budness Sfenag^ent fiom Asian Instihite



President and Chief Ooeratina r«ir»r ^ ConsSiuoboo, Inc. irom 2004 io 2014. He was
President and Chief ^ ^998 to 2004 andthe National Steel Conioration wi privaiiid^ 1^"^'
Officer from 1989 to 1995 and asicunenfly fiom 1989 w=., Operating
Phite. And Semirara Coal Corp ® ®Refractories Corp. of the
he held various positions ^ F>t«n 1974 to 1988,
Company. He also held various oosiBons in th= p ° ^ ®"hs3a!a!es of the Nattonal Development
a memljer ofprofessional oiBanfeations sud, ^
Wlation of the PhiBppines. He obtained his MasterTl^^^' Inc. and the Management

Realty Corp. He also held various orvsiSnn® • 'SA) Group and me Warren and Nolasco
Commodities Holdings. Ltd.. The H^^?St ^ PP^R^iies such as Rrat Pacific
Indonesia and Banoom Philtoine1^7 L ^ '"<^0 Ayala Leasing Corp.,
his Bachelor of Science in Chemioa! Engfne^no A Engineer and he obtained
a consistent dean's frster and a

Managing Partner of Corporate CotmsJ^PWpl^^flS'S^. He is the
vanous corporate oSents. He obtained'his from ^ i?^ ? DiiectotfCorporate Secretary

the Unrversity of the East and completed the MBP 9''®te Philippines. BSBa from
Philippine InsBtute of CerBfled Pulriic Account-^ i ^ R® i® a memtser of toe
Association and the New Yorit (USA) Bar. '"feffateJ Bar of the PhB^es. PhHppine Bar

and the AssistantCorporate^a^fe^^^rnSv '̂̂ ^ Ĉorp^ Lawyw of the Company
2016 after serving as a Senior Assodate in SvcSn fw" ®'te joined the Company in January
December2015. Prior to her admission to the Pha" • ^ Co. irom November 2014 tofte Office Of the Solicitor Gen^^ ^ ^ ®® a'egal intern at
Assistant for EducaBon of toe Office of toe Pr^^rfOffice rf toe Presidential
oompleted Bach^r of Arts in Hlstorv -mm •i *® Phil?JfAras ftwn 2009 to 2010 ShetooK up aMaster^s (Cum Laudejtn:
""PitteditorBacheiorofLawsatSanBeds

C^™riy"^S^iS^fe and Chief Operating Officer of theWee President for Sales and Marketing, which she Pn™-. she was Execuflve
business as aPurchasing Manager under WBS! fem laSl" ®'®
W}|(X)n Bujiders Foundation inc., which she has hearip^ She is also the President of the
Philippine Contrectore Association, President^f cSrff is aDirector of the
Treasurer of the Philippine Associsgon of and a formerhas aMaster's degree in Business Administration -m Ms. Bosch-Ong
-graduatedhom.eUnivere^..eH:^:-S;
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Eden M. Godmo is8ie Vice
|n«afiy as «,e Asst Vies
ioined WScon h 1997 and was assimed V
Depot Manager in 2004, aposiSon she heid for ihme m ^ later wrait on to become a
Development to 2007. She graduteed with - SachM™- ^ h^t^promofiOT to AVP in Product
Univeisity of the Assumption in 1997 and olistoert "le^ee to Accotmtancy from lte
Saile Cottege of St bSs on^,Sv ^ «Rl^ f»ogmm fiom the De U

' Operations in 2015. ' "agement major in Purchastog and Logistics

Resources f ^ he«i of Human
.promoted to various positions within the branch ihd " yPwas as^ned in Accounting. She was
Sheioined theHunra^esr^rT^^^t^f/^SSI^" 2005.
2005. Ms. Tiong graduated fiom
and obtained diploma courses in Human nar>}^a} tiA feai^^c»^s d^ree in Accountancythe School orProf^onJZ c^SZ^o^T^7'°'^^'^ Development
2014 to 2016. ^-ommumg Education or^ De La SaBe: CoJfege St. Bemlde from

President to J^ '̂l6!teI^dSs2sZi^ aWJOtoiment as Vice
f 11. Mr. rtong Joined Wr^a ^ T:«=p "-^sident since January
2009. when he was promoted to Asst Vice Prudent Iek- '̂ '̂ •^9®- in 2007 until
Scenes in Archttecture atthe Far Eastern ^ ""

^«rt fPcMyjtAttog Witeon, she
Corporation to 1991 as aCracSt Analyst Ccmcmi^ -<^paiiy. She,stated her career with Petron
and on a consuHatcy basis, shewas companies
'ssue management for public offerings and ca^^SSS P®*astoa advisory and
ranous positions in publicly listed mining and^^ ®®nve<1
Vice. President on Corporate Planntoq and 8-~S^n^ ^reiopment companies. Sie was the Asst
January 2013 to August 2016 to Benguet COTjoraSon^^Rnance fiiom
Planning to Basic Ene^ Corporation ft4 JuS^^r President for Corporate
she was appointed Woe Piasident for Prcaect Devetonrr^I '̂̂ /2®' fttaf h®-sfet vwih Benguet
Development Corporation. Ms. Afeer graduated ftom^ Ptarinmg to Macventures MiningBacneior Degree to Business Economics and a Duv®®^ofthe PhiBppines - Diliman with a
vacademic requirements completed in 2007) a De USall^ Candidate

^ extensive experience as an internal(MERALCO), praviousiy man^^ aTaudT^r « 81® ^anfe Electric Comrreny
Simultaneously delegated as the Internal Audit Head/ subsicflaries and afiBiates and
subsidiary Meraico industrial Engineering S»yices^J^^» ^ of
audit management tenure vrith GT Capital HoidtoaS^^^S,rJL^ He ateo had an internal
ce^ed internal Auditor, and Pubfic Acootmtant.
graduated from the Univetsity ta' the Ea^ wH, a ''Issuianca. Mr. Francisco
Accounting (Cum Laude). He hls^aJ^„®o,l®^:2 f Administration major In
graduate School of Business (Gofej Medal Honorsi 8®9ree from the Ateneo
Internal Auditors - Philippines ®®ated with the Institute of

roremostofwhichasVice-ChairmanofrtsBoardofTrtisS:" '̂̂ '' "S^oi^Son, '



Sigg^cant Emofovg^es

^ fi^J^Kient an She servfces aiy particuiar

Famfiv ReiaStg^^pa

''^afon^ps ^ osKisanguinity or aBmfty wiSiin the fourth civii
degree)i,eti»^D»BctofoandOffie«3oftheC£m^aBasft«»»s:

« V. Befo ate Cfoten of Mr.

Mr. Michael D. Tlratg is the husband of Ms. Grace A. 1icmg.
Involvement in Cetain ?. enai Proeeecftins rf pfcetann^ anri rxs^

None of the Compaiy'sdBectors, nominees for ^ciiffli as (SiBcfor o-»vo^-iK«= u • •Iwe-^rear perrodKior to the riafja rtfesc nbnr^r^ a«ecaHv c»i execaSve csficers have m tne
which such poson was aaenssi nlrh.?^ ^ ^sny p^8lon by eg- agasist any business ofwithin atw^Std rS °f»e ^kruptcy or
nature, domestic orfotetan ynds« judicid proceedmg of a criminai
subject of mSfor oflenses, (3) have been the
court of compeSmit jurtsdiction dometsSr-' rn- y rev^seo,euspended es" vacated, ofany
suspending rr olhenMse limWni their

civif action), the SEC or agnpaiabfe On a
organized tradaig market or seJf-requlatorv oras^^Ln exchange or otherlaw or regulation, such Judgment hat-ing^
item 10. Executive Compensation

Summary of Compensation Tabie

fhe following table sets outdie
Emerftus. summaiy of compensagonofthe top 5cimcersmclucBng the Chairman

; Name PosiSOTf . j
j WllfiamT. Beio Chainnan Emeritus |
j "-orraine Befo-Cincochan Directorand Cf^Execusve Officer i
}Kosemane BosdvOna SEVP- ChiefOo&r^KiOfncsr i
i Mark Andrew Y. Befo
] ^

"' j
Dfrector and Chief Rnsicfoi Officer I

1Careen Y. Befo Director and Chier R'oduct Ofiicss* •
' \

Below Is die aggregate compensation of executive cfnc«=*«? .• -^
2018 and projected for the year 2019: <^Jrectors or the CompsTy for the year
Actual

op 5 Offfcers
I 2018 24.30ft4 3.83M

I Oiner oTncers as 3 group
28.S7M 10.64M
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Proleeted for 9fHO

fi^Bus^ement omc^

i Top 5 Orncers

I Other offices asa ^oup

Arrantaafn^Tts

Coss^nssSosi

38.68IW

41.05ft4 I

6.3M

iiJm

Boatitorevery meeBng,

Other Arranoemante

There are no otf^ arrangemenls pursu^,t lo vshich anv «?«,
orto be compeiBated, direcSy orindinec8yforanyeen«i
Employment Contacts and Tarmmsiibn of Emofaymgart and nMnac fn-r:rtnt?ol Anannements

Tire Company has no spedal envkraooesecfs wito tte named ex^e effic^^
Warrant, and Qpgais

Pr^ktent, Ifte CEO. She named exeouBve

•tomll. Secu,ftyOemerehipofCertainRePo„,am.Ben^Ow„ersand«an^
AH 5^K23rAKi^y4A«»^ *

; I ffie of
• Class

ivaiSi^ Acfdress of
Record Owner and
Relationship wiSi
issuer

1
I

i^ame of j
Beneficial 1

_Owner | C^tosensihin Rusnher of
Shares Held

% of Totai j
Outstanding j

1
VVHUCHft oeio j j '

M^odrigu^jr. WSHamT. | FiBf^
Avenue, Ugong j Beio
Norte, Quezon City | 1

' Cha^an Emeritus 1 i

5i099,8^

Shares i

0.12% i
I

1Kusy Ohua Belo | | —

EATXSi i ™»»
Norte, Quezon City { 1
StockhoJder 1

r t

5,100,000
j

0.12% i
!

I—

Demam ts. Um

60 Sen. Gil Puyat
Ave., l^kaf City
Director

Bertrams. 1 Rgpim>
Um (

t

f

- 'i »

1 0.00% i

l-Offakie Belo-
Clncochan
90 E. Rcdr^uez. Jr.
Avenue, Ugong
Norte, Quezon CHy
Director

t^ine^o- j MSpino 1 5.100,(X)0
Cincochan i ' '

1 1
t !
t 1
>

i
^ 1

t

0.12% j

i



1 common
i

i
i
1

i •

Mark /Vidrew Y

90 E. Rodriguez, Jr.
Avenue, Ugonc
Ncjrte, Quezon City
D&ecior

i ' -

1Mark Andrew
1 V. Belo

1

i

1 Ffifpino
i

1
{ . .
t

!

i —

{

1 5:100,000
t
!

j

1
0.12%

» v-Ki/iitiTiOri

j
i
1

I

C3PS6n Y. Belo
90 E. Rodriguez, Jr.
Averiiie,, Ugong
Norle, Quezon CHy
Director

Cafe©! Y.
Befo

Filipino

t

i

1 "

1 5^100,000
t

1

1
j

0.12%

—

Rolando S. Narciso
Le}dngton Garden
Village, san
Joaquin, Pasig City
Independent
Dffector

Rolando S.
Narciso

1
j Filipino
1

I

1
1

! 1
1 0.00%

i
1
i
t

i
i

Kicardo S. Pascua
3 P^^blewood cor.
Falrwood McKinley
HiH VKage, Taguia
CHy
Independent
Director

1
f^cardoS.

Pascua

-

Fgfpino

. •

1 0.00% 1

i

ujeinn L. Wanen
2 Sneguelas St.,
Valfe Verde 1, Paslg
City
Independent
Director

Deifin L
Warn^

RSpino

i

0.00% 1

1

i

i
AiUfUrR. Ponsarsn '
5 Aurelio St, BFRV,
Las Pifias City
Corp<»ate Secreter^ |

Ar8%irR.
Ponsaran

FiSpino 10,000
!

0.00% j
i

1

Common

^"neifa P. Pasfcoian-
Camerino
90 E. Rodriguez, Jr.
Avenue, Ugong
Norts. Quezon City
Asst Corporate |
SeCTetarv 1

Sheila P.
Pasicolan- i
Camerino |

1
j

i

i

FIHpino

1
!
!
1

19,900 0.00% 1

f

Common

Kosemarie B. Ong |
90 E. Rodriguez, Jr.
Avenue, Ugong
Morte, Quezon City"
SEVP-COO
Eden M, Godino

Rosemarie B. j
Ong 1

i
!
!
i
1

Eden M. !

RHpino j
1
i
i

1

1;069,401

t

]
1

0.03%

90 E. Rodriguez, Jr.
Avenue, Ubis.
Quezon City
VP- PmHi

Godino 0.00%

1Common
1PeveloDment
GracsA. Tiong
90 E. Rodriguez, Jr.
Avenue, Libis.
QuezonCity

i

Grace A.
Tiong

1

RSpfno
i

i

1
!

!

j Common

148,700 0:00% 1

i
j

!
' - 1

iviicnaa D. Tiong I
90 E. Rodriguez, Jr. 1
Avenue, i }

Michael D. |
Tiong i

i

FHIpinc j
i

1
1

148,700 0.00% i

j
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;

Quezon City
! i i

i i 1
: Common

i

c

i
>

Witcon j
Con^ofation- 1

RHpmc 1 2,680,317,916 {
1 i

65.38% j

owner.

sst<; ^orfh ac6ng onbehsif ora foenerfcfal cmierm«3 is non-Figpino The table beiow
sJC."i^ss;jiss.Tsr s » ?s

Name and
; Address of
iRecord Owners

Wilcon CorporatiOTT

Name of
Beneficial Owner
and Reiadonship

widi Record
Owner

Record Owner
CIdzenship

Fgfplno .

of Gwronon
Siares Held

-.2,680.317.916

% of Total

Oatsfanding
Shares

SECURmr OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS AMU BSANAGEMENT

Management ofthe Companye common

65.38%

Title of

Ciass

Common

Common

Common

Common
Common
Common

Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common

Common

v^mmon

Common

Name of Beneficial
Owner

WiSam T. Belo
Bertram B. Lim
Lorraine
Cincochan
Mark Andrew Y. ESefo
Careen Y. Belo
Rosy C. Belo

Rosemarie B. Qno
Rc^ndo S. Narcaso
Rtcardo S. Pasaifi
Delfin LWairen
Arthur R. Ponsaran
Sheila P
Camerino

Pasicoian-

Grace A. tfono
Michael D. Ttonn
Eden M. Godinn

Amoimt and Nature of

^•.099,995.00(Dim»^>
^.OOYOfrectj

^5,100,000.00 (Dir^)

1QQ.OOQ.OQ(Dmqrf>
10OjOOO.OOfDirecd:

^,1OO.OOO.OOfDtrectI
^,069,401.00 (Direcf) !

^.00 (Direct)
fn.QO (Dkecl\
PI .00 (Direct)

P10,m?0.00 flndimnM
P19,900.00 (Dlrea)

Pt48,70a0Q (Direrll
P148JOQ.OO (Oirect)
^67,500.00 (Direct) I

Cfiizansliip

FSipinc

Rllplno

F^ptno
Riipino i

RBpino

Rgpino

% Of Total
Outstanding

Shares

0.12%

0.00% I
0.12%

0.12%

0.12%

0.12% i

0.03%o
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

The Allowing table sets forth ownetship of directors and execiiSve officers as agroup:

Title of

Class

• r
_ _ 1Amouirit andNstuie of—Beneficiai Owner Ben^cial OwnerRhip

Cldzenshtn

% of Total
Outstanding

ana executive ^7,164.200.00 (Direct
sndlnriir^\

Filipino
Shares

0.63%

1

Vbtino Tni5;t Holders of .^o/, ^

""Ofe fan 5% of a class oftrust or similar agreement as of December 31,2018.

more

shares of the Compaiy under a voting
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Chance In Control

31.^lT in achange in coiin^ of Sre Company as of December
item .12. Cert^ ReiationsHlps ancf Ref^ec Traifesextk^s

engag^ in hahsacSons with related parties,

tiansacfesis <rf 8ie Company, pleasesee note
Sm^r^^ Transactions and Balances of the atlached Audited iSisS^i^tr^e
PARTfV. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

rt^n 13. Corporate Governance

Of cotpotete governance needed in the
oOTJorate govemffltce Conseou^w rhl ereures i»mf«ance with the ieacSng practices inwhiih was ai^^by Governance Manual
ftameworic of ndas. sy^ms and ^ 5^"®' ™3® designed to define the
Management it estates tee sti^^^ P^^ance of tee Board and
(;>Drporate Gov^nancs Thfe the Company executes and carries out Its
Management in the conduct oftee^duties'̂ ^1^:^^. ^ as well as its

employees and sha^^!oiders, :fa^eve that gocri governance is a

C«ee^^n^l^r^' 'business managedery enon necessary to create awareness teereofWithin the oiganization.

of tee Company at^^^
conducted by^^S to SK, Aft4,n Corrfrofe'Memorandum Csr^iars No. 20-2013 an®d 2-2015 oft:Se^,fS-aS'lx5i;grS^i2,-or
ended SifloiS, ^a- tee year
Circular No.16. Series of2017. ^ ' f cxsmpliarrce SEC Memorandum

PART V. EXHiBITS AND SCHEDULES

item 14. Exhib^ and Reports on SEC Form 17^

SEC FORM17-C

Date of
May 10, 2018

j l^ce of .Annual Me^ng of the ^ockhoJdem nf !
June 21,2018 ^ ime CorporaSon on 18 June 2Q18 |
• ' I or Anmial StocldJokiaB* Meeting and '

! MeeSng ofthe Board on 18 June
8 jdVrO
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corporate Secretarv
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Ghalfman
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W Reyes Tacaj^dong <& Co.
• FIRM PRTNCIPLES. WISE SOLUTION'S

30A/TSC i4.cc:eofe2t!0f) No. "782

Ccrobo.'<•2025.v?rio' un:3AugustiS. 2021
SHC .AccrediaTion No.C207-FR-2 (GroupA)

S=st9rr>P;' 27..2016. vsfi uati!Septembsf 27,2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
VVILCON DEPOT, !NC
Doing Business under the Name and Style of
WiLCON DEPOT and WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS
No. 90 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue
Brgy. Ugong Norte, Quezon City

Report on the Financial Statements

Coinion

ata»nlc Tower

8741 Paseo da Roxas

Ma'oti Csy1226 Philipoines
Phone ; -632 982 9100

Pax -632 982 9111

Website • www.rsvesacandon

WeV have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vv^LCON DEPOT, INC. Doing Business under the
Ncme and Style ofWiLCON DEPOT and WILCON HOME ESSENTiALS (the .Company), a subsidla.ry of WILCON
CORPORATION Doing Business under the Name and Style of WILCON CITY CENTER, which comprise the
Siatements of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements ofcash flows for the years ended December 31, 20.T8,
20i7 arid 20x6, and notes to financial statements, including a summary ofsignificant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present.fairly, in qli. material respects, the financial position of.the
Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial iperformance and its cash flows for the years'
then ended, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards tPFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted ouraudits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in theAuditors" Responsibfiitiesfor the Audit ofthe Financiol Statement^
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics ^or
P:Csessional Accountants In the Philippines (Cods of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audits of financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethYal
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the atdit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KeyAudit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionai judgment, were of most significance in our audit
or the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

j MAR 18 25;j
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Reyes Tacandong & Co.
FIRM PRINCIPLES. .SOLl'TiQTv'<^_

Accountingfor the Compfete Recording and Valuation ofMerchandise Inventories

Merchandise inventories, net of ailowance ,for inventory ;write down and losses, amounted . to
merrh' December 31, 2018. ihe accounting for the compiete recording and valuation ofmerchandise inventories are significant to our audit because merchandise inventories represent 42% of the

Delb^ll 2oTro:et^h'°"T -ound,37,700 stock keeping'un.s (SKU as adetermtTnf;hl , ^KU, establishing the existence and completeness and
degree of judgment anreSma«on,rIs^ett^^^^^ Inventories .requires an extensive monitoring and high

inciuded, among others, the physical observation of the conduct of the inventory count test of
"""it"'-."—..."r"c::

Accountingfor the Use of the Proceedsfrom the Initial Public Offering (iPO)

rne pra"e?sTom°th!'%n"'''''"'̂ P.hiiippine Stock Exchange, Inc. on March 31, 2017.
amounS toPlSO oLm- 4'"°" toe6,749.3 miiiion, net of offer expenses incidental to the. !P0
unapplied ororepdt ?• ' ^ i^ '̂ignificantto our audit because tiipunapplied proceeds amounting to ^3,573.1 miiiion as at December PI 2018 reomsent 20% of tho t4=i '

«» ""<!•«'« «.» .b»inl.s

Other Information

•mruS^The^ErP^mTo [riDeOn?'" --P-= the informationyear ended De^mbe ^l iifw ^ information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the
thereon. The SEC Form 20 IS iDef r Tf ' financial statements and our auditors' report
vear ended DecelerTi 44 ' '"f^^in^tion Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for theyear December 31,2018 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors' repo4

"rs™.™ "b«- «„,o,„.

:'de4"fed1n4hrf^^^^^^^ read the other information
is materiaiiy nL4S financH whether the other information
appears to L "aSrmTssJated r--; j I



Ri^yes Tacandong & Co.
W!Sfc:>OIAiTtON«,

- 5

Responsibilities ofManagement and Those Charged with Governancefor the FinanciaiStatements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statemenrs jn
a.,cordance with PFRS and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
p. eparation of financial statements that are free from matariai misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

rortinurisV^L^r""' '"^"sssment is responsible for assessing the Company's abllitv to
conLrn balT t""' matters related to going concern and using the going
Te atTons nr h« to liquidate, the Company or to ceasfoperatjons, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeingthe Company's financial reporting process. '

Responsibilitiesfor theAudit ofFinancialStatements •

f°om°™terial' masonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are fiee

fri-'ud or errl anTam ^ r T"^ when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
e;p4°dXflueletheT r ' r i" the aggregate, these could reasonably bep.ct^d .0 influence the economic decisions of users taken on.the,basis of the financial statements.

in^iment and maintain professional

ermr^"'̂ m'̂ tPtefiient of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
sufficient and^al" "? procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a mate iil •

cXslorfrrlew'imenfir"! resulting from error, as fraud may involvelusion, forgery, intenuonal omissions, misrepresentattons, or the override of internal control.

are®"ditin orderto design audit procedures ^hat

tes"et''on Thf! managemenfs use of the going concern basis of accounting and
condto th r Whether a material uncertalntv exists related to eveL or
If we conclude thrimateialf''m -°mpanysability to continue as agoing concern,
to the related di^rir, •' ex.sts, we are required todraw attention in our auditors' report
Ipintn our '"P^PPPPte, to modi^^u^
However future events o- d ®.i®^W^!?®fiP??PWned up to the date of our auditors' report.er, future events o, conditions may pause ^qm,p^ny, to cease to continue as agoing concern
drctofureftnXhe'h'Ir^tr^~"° Phf^SnteiTW-the-financial statements, including the
manner that achieves'fairpreseJI^.'*T'"^1'®°^*J^2® '̂''''̂ ®''"'"'7'°"' ®



Mf Reyes Tacajjdong & Co.
HRM PRTNC(PI,HS. WI.SH SOLl'TrOKS.

-d.

Wrth those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scopedtiming of the audit and significant audit findings, inciuding any significant deficiencies in internal control
tr,at we identifyduring our audits.

We-also provide those charged with governance, with a. statement that we have compiied with reievant
regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other

s?feguards reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of mo^ significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore
considered the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report Lless iaw oMgu abn
mat^thoufd n '̂h the matter or when, in extremely rare circum^nces,. w" determinetat a
rea^nnaWv h """"^""'cateo in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so wouldeasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such corhmunication.

of rnter^^l g'eveTOe Information Required under Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010 of the Bureau

whole" TheTuIlemt^^^^ ^^tements taken as a
fo- n, 'r ^"PP'®nientary inrormation on taxes and licenses in Note 24 to financial statements is presented
ststememr Such'hrfJi^matt'̂ ^ ®required part of the basic financial
P- c:inoc ri 4.K M responsibility of the management of the WILCON DEPOT IIMC Doing
Lin aubletted tolLTdv" WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS. The Information has '
oni.,!., < ®"<lrting procedures applied in our audits of the basic finandai statements and in our
tS:wh:[~'

ReyesTacandong & Co.

.(^C
H.AYDEE M. REYES
Partner
CPA Certificate No.83522
Tax identification No. 102-095-255-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until August 15 202'
StC Accreditation No. 0663-AR-3 Group A

Valid untilAugust 30,2020
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-006-2017

Valid until January13,2020
PTRNo. 7334335

Issued January 3,2019, Makati City

iViarch 5, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila i.t 1 ^
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Jil Reyes Tacandong & Co.
FLRM PRINCIPLES. WISE SOLUTIONS.

SOA'r.^C Accrediation No. 4732
OcKSgr4.J018,•'sEd untf Augw;13,2021
SsCAccradtaSon No.02u7-FR-2 (Group A)

Ssotsnbfi' 27.2016k valid •jndl.Seotenrljer 27,2019

CSbanS: Tower

8741 Paseo de Soxas

Makati City1225 Philippines '
Phone k '632 982 9100
Fax : -632 982 9111

Website . wviv/.-eyestacandonc cor

REPORT Of INDEPENDENT AUDSTORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE

BUREAU OF INTERNAL RPi^ENUE

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
WiLCON DEPOT, INC.
Doing Business under the Name and Style of
WILCON DEPOT and WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS
No. 90 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue
Brgy. Ugong Norte, Quezon City

vye have audited the accompanying financial statements of WILCON DEPOT, INC. Doing Business under
the Name and Style of WILCON DEPOT and WiLCON HOME ESSENTIALS (the Company), a subsidiarv of
WiLCON CORPORATION Doing Business under the Name and Style of WILCON CITY CENTER, as at and for
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, on which v/e have rendered our report dated March 6,
2019,

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is related by
consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal stockholders of the Company.

Reyes Tacandong & Co.

HAYDEE M. REYES

Partner
CPA Certificate No. 83522
TaxIdentification No.102-095-265-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid untii August 15, 2021
SEC Accreditation No. 0663-AR-3 Group A

Valid untilAugust 30, 2020
B!R Accreditation No. 08-005144-006-2017

Valid untilJanuary 13, 2020
PTR No. 7334335

IssuedJanuary 3, 2019, MakatiCitv

March 5, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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?0 S.Rodriguez >. Av<i., Ugo^e f^orrr .ibis.. Ovftzw CiN

Tei$; 63A-83S7 (connecting c'i decsrrrren-'s:

rox:636-2?50. 636-1857

Websita- www.wjieon corao.n

"STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RcSPONSISIUTY
FOR ANNUAL fWCOME TAX RETURN"

The management of WILCON DEPOi, INC. Doing Business under the Name and Style of WilCON DEPOT
and WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS (the CorriDany), 3 subsidiarv of WILCON CORPORATION Doing
Business under the Neme and Style ofWiLCON CITY CEMTER,: is responsible for all information and
represe.ntations contained in the Annual income Tax Return as at and forthe year ended December
31, 2018. Management is likewise responsible for ail information and representations contained in
the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting
period. Furthermore, the management is responsible for all information and representations
contained in all the other tax returns fiied for the reporting period, inciudmg, but not iimited, to the
value added tax and/or percentage tax returns, withholding tax returns, documentarv stamp tax
returns, and any and all other tax returns.

In this regard, the management afhrms that the attached audited financial statements as at and for
the year ended December 31, 2018 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in
accordance with the books and records of the Company, complete and correct in all material respects.
Management likevyise affirms that:

the Annual income \ax Return has been preoared in accordance with the provisions of the
National internal Revenue Code, a? amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
issuances ofthe Department ofFinance and the Bureau ofInternal Revenue;

any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financiar
statements pursuant to Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and the preparation of the
income tax return pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling Items and
maintained in the Company's books and records in accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances:

the Company has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements required to be filed
under Philippine tax iaws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions shown
thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting oeriod, except those
contested ingood faith.

Signature:

Bertram B. Urn

Signature:

Lorrair^ Belo-p^r^ochan
Preside'fit—

Signature:

Mark Andrew Y. Belo

Chief Financial Officer

MAPv 18 ZL 'J
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Bertram B. Lim

i-orraine Belo-Cincochan

Mark Andrew Y. Belo

PASSPORT NO.

P3551043A

EC7174249

P761123SA

DATE OF ISSUE
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90 ERodriguez Jr. Ave., Ligong Norte Libis, Quezon CiV

Teis: 634-83S7 (connecting oii o'epBrimertts;
Fox: 636-2950. 636-1837

Website: www.wi!con.eom.ph

STATEIViENT OF MAriAGEMEiVT'S RESPONSiBiUTY
FOR FfNAMCIAl STATEME^iTS

'WiLCON DEPOT, INC. Doing Business under the Name and Style of WILCON DEPOTan WiLCON HOME ESSENTIALS (the Company), asubsidiary of WILCON CORPORATiON Doing
•smess under the Name and Style of WILCON CITY CENTER, is responsible for the preparation and

Sd 2015 ""'"d" f 'r
'?nld;--=-^-ce with Philippine Financial Reporting.randards, and tor such rnternal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
.reparatron of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

!o rntinuTas'a ability
to 4 eorr^ T ^^her intends to liquidate the Company or^-ease operauons, or hasno realistic alternative to doso.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

jLhrdlemin rd"'h"fT^L.ached therein, and submits the same tothestockholders.

fin^rcill St t'°"® f independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the- al statements or the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and in its

Signature:

Signature:

Bertram B. Lim

CbsTfrnan

Lorra^e Bel&jipj^cochan
Presid^rjT—

Signature:

Mark'Andrew Y. Belo

Chief Financial Officer

Signed this 14th day ofMarch 2019

' ii:. A
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WILCOiM DEPOT, INC.
Doing Business underthe Name and Style of

WILCON DEPOT and WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS
(ASubsidiary of WILCON CORPORATiON

Doing Business under the ftianie and Style ofWILCON CiTY CENTER)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Trade and other receivables

Merchandise inventories
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Property and equipment
Financial asset at fair value thro

comprehensive Income
Net deferred tax assets I
Other noncurrent assets •

Total Noncurrent Assetsi

UABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Income tax payable
Current portion of long-term debt

Note

^^5 o 5^. a S
>0 •otrr-; 9-r-» 5 E3.53-

MAR't 9 »
J±

^ OFFICE I
Sicetroa»e Seeords Ka'ffs/eie3v6!''''s'<'0 5
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•rpn \ ^ JAl 18
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12

13

2018

P2,842,073,524

551,222,663

7,331,056,540

643,670,234

11,368,022,961

2,767,160,840

2,906,721,106

137,519,693

322,757,153

6,134,158,792

P17,502,181,753

P4,00i,096,864

170,167,805

2017

23,016,815,150

600,580,715
552,025,050

6,968,144,107
610,372,3-27-

11,747,937,349

860,060,702

2,996,946,620
• 115,781,341

303,726,631

4,276,515,294

^16,024,452,643

P3,491,311,355
78,888,675

, Total Current Liabilities 4,171,264,669 3,725,200,030

N-oncurrent Liabilities

Long-term debt - net of current portion
Net retirement liability

13 20,000
14 118,427,835

248,461,539 ,

132,535,711
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 118,447,835 380,997,250
Total Liabilities 4,289,712,504 4,106,197,280

Equity

Capita! stock

Additional paid-in capital
Other comprehensive income
Retained earnings

15 4,099,724,116

5,373,738,427

82,902,070

3,656,104,636

4,099,724,116

5,373,738,427

173,130,917

2,271,661,903
Total Equity i , :is;z3:2;453r,249 11,918,255363

1 • •317,502,181,753 216,024,452,643
•

Seeaccompanying Notes to FinancialStatements. IS iiij ' ^
I



WILCOiM DEPOT, INC.
Doing Business under the Mama and Style of

WILCON DEPOT and WILCGM HOME ESSENTIALS
(A Subsidiaryof WILCON CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OFCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
Note 2018 2017 20"! 6

'net SALES P21,041,433,928 £17,747,580,107 P12,298,415,794

COST OF SALES 8 (14,438334,301) (12,481,667,970) (8,999,485,092)

GROSS INCOME 6,603,099,627 5,265,912,137 3,298,930,702

OPERATING EXPENSES 16 (4,420,552,891) (3,595,688,634) (2,286,996,656)

INTEREST EXPENSE 13 (2,345,308) (21,793,510) (30,239,828)

OTHER INCOME 17 359,472,440 185,345,816 33,663,092

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,539,673,868 1,833,775,809 1,015,357,310

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)
Current

Deferred

18

725,998>406

(21,736,924)
459,519,649

(11,158,692)
308,482,953

(179,902,951)
704,261,482 448,360,957 128,580,002

NET INCOME 1>835,412,386 1,385,414,852 886,777,308

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Item to be redassified to profit or loss -
Linrealized loss on fair value changes

of financial asset

Item not to be redassified to profit or loss -
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement

liability, net of deferred income tax

6

14

(90,225,514)

(3333)

(3,053,380)

185,824,622 (9,640,325)
1S0,228,847) 182,771,242 (9,640,325)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME gl,~745,183,539 ^1,568,186,094 ^877,136,983

BASICAND PILUTIVE EARNINGS PER SHARE 21 pq.45 ?0.37 P0.43

Se« accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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WiLCOM DEPOT, hMC
Doing Business under the Nameand Styleof

WILCON DEPOTand WILCOM HOME ESSENTIALS
{A Subsidiary of WILCON CORPORATION

Doing Business under the Name and Style ofWILCON CITV CENTER)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended Decembpr

Note 2018 2017 2016

CAPITAL STOCK

Balance at beginning of year
Issuances

15

^4,099,724,116 22,705,817,916

1,393,906,200
P50,000,000

2,655,817,916
Balance at end of year 4,-099,724,116 4,099,724,116 2,705,817,916

ADDrnONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 5,373,738,427 5,373,738,427

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Curhulative Remeasurement Gain (Loss) on

Retirement Liability
Balance at beginning of year
Remeasurement gain (loss), net of deferred

income tax

14

176,184,297

(3,333)

(9,640,325)

185,824,622 (9,640,325)
Balance at end of year 176,180,964 176,184,297 (9,640,325)
Fair Value Changes on Financial Asset

at Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income
Balance at beginning of year
Unrealized loss on fair value changes

6

(3,053,380)
(90,225,514) (3,053,380)

Balance at end of year (93,278,894) (3,053,380)
82,902,070 173,130,917 (9,640,325)

RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at beginning of year
Net income

Cash dividends 15

2,271,661,903
1,835,412386

(450,969,653)

886,247,051

1,385,414,852
(530,257)

886,777,308

Balance at end of year 3,656,104,636 2,271,661,903 886,247,051

S^e accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

^13,212,469,249 ^11,918,255,363 ^3,582.424,642

MAR 18 2i:j

"~r
/



WflCONDEPOl

Doing Business under the f^anss and S%ls of
WilCON DEPOT and ¥/?lCQM HOME ESSENHAIS

(A Subsidfsryof WilC0f3 CORPORATION
Doing Businsss liodsr Ifie Name and Sry^ie of WIICON CITY CENTER)

STATEMEflTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM Ol^vATfNG ACTIVmES
income belbre income tax

Adjiistments for:

Interest Income

Depreciation and amortization
Net provision {reversai ofallowance) for:

impairment losses on recelvafaiss
invaritor/ wrfie-down and losses

Retfrerrjent benefits

Interest expense
Di.-ect wrfte-cff of receivabies
Offer expenses

Operating Income before working capital
changes

Decrease (inaeasa) in:
!rsde and other receivables

Merchandise inventories
Other cunent assets

••ncraase (decrease) intrade and other payafales
Net cash generated from operations
'ncome tax paid

Contributions to retirement plan
Retirement benents paid
Net cash providedby operating activities
CASH ROWSFROM INVESHNS ACtiVrfiES
Addrticns to:

Property and equipment
Computer software
Finenclai assetat feir value through other

ccmprehensivs income
Short-term investments

iTcceeds from maturity of short-term
Investments

interest received

Decrease (Increase} inother noneurrent assets
r . ....Net cash used in investingactivfties'

iForward)

Y^rs Ended December 3i
Note 2018 2017

?2.S39,^,86S ^1,833,775,809 PI,015,357,310

5 {194331,047} (115,788,780) (658,452)
10 Xg4;^5i,9Sl 104,325,305 52,714.507

7 26.^4,535 (3,726,780) •(10,894,782)
8

- 29,175,121 51,594,828
14 23,521,^3 34,017,328 29,745,365
13 2345,308 21,793,510 50,239,828

50,149 - —

15
- 18,315,120 -

14

14

10

11

2^24^4>83 • 1,921,887,633 1,178,088,722

(^3S2,£22)
(352,912,433)

(85,408,752)
510,014,364

2391,576,540
(581,608,431)

(37,633,926)
{1,753,546)

l,5753g0.637

(2,065,776,777)
(31,904,348)

®3Qj6S{L715

201,6^,018
5,558,484

(91,433,713)

(421,475,327)
159,564,677

(150,953,004)

1,417,530,266

(534,725,739)
(28,393,857)

{105,420}

(34,571,955.^.
585,540,880

(755,725,076}
157,027,599

1,131,453,170

(154,388,188)

854359,250 977,070,982

(619,269,798)
(30,455,588)

(3,000,000,000)
(500,580,715)

81,517,809
(55,494,501)

{64,796,579}
(ia9S5,325)

558,432

(151,025,332)
{1,288,736,9081 (4,234,292,893) (226,139,805)

Bl KK.-J" i r:
Bak;•

Date MAR 18 2G;i
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of:

Cash dividends

Long-term debt

interest

Short-term debt

Proceeds from issuance ofcapital stock
Availments of long-term borrowings
Cash transferred from Parent Company
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities

Note

15

13

13

13

15

13

4

Years Ended December 31

2018

{^450,969,653}
(403,441,539)

(2,574,163)

2017

(722,820,513)
(21,292,833)

(445,000,000)
6,749,328,507

198,461,539

2—

(173,846,153)
(30,239,828)

(158,504,383)

199,731,283

(858,985,355) 5,758,676,700 (162,859.081)

(^Y4,741,626) 2,378,743,057 588,072,093

3,018,815,150 638,072,093 50,000,000

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR 5 ^2,842,073,524 ^3,016,815,150 ^638,072,093

NONCASH INFORMATION

Retirement plan assets transferred from
Parent Company 14

Netasssets transferred from Parent Company
in exchange for shares of stock of the
Company, net of cash transferred of
P199,731,283 ^

Ses accompanying Notes to FinancialStatements.
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WIICON DEPOT, mC.
Doing Business under the Hame and Style of

WILCON DEPOT aud WllCOH HOME ESSENTJALS
{A Subsldlasy of WILCOf\i CORPORATION

Doing Business undertheName and Styte ofWILCON CITY CENTER)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEiVlENtS

1. Corporate Information ^ —

WILCON DEPOT, INC. Doing Business under the Name and Style of WILCON DEPOT and WILCON
HOME ESSENTIALS (the Company) was Incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on December 17, 20115. The Company is engaged in
buying and selling of all kinds of goods, commQdities, wares and merchandise at wholesale and
retail.

The Company is asubsidiary of WILCON CORPORATION Doing Business under the Name and Style.of
WILCON CITY CENTER (the Parent Company), a holding company Incorporated In the Philippines.
The Parent Company is primarily engaged in acquiring and investing stock or securities of
government agencies or public or private corporation, and in persona! property of all kinds
The ultimate parent company is LIAM ROS HOLDINGS INC., a holding comoany incorporated In the
Philippines. . .

f On March 31, 2016, the Board of Directors (BOD) and stockholders of the Parent Company approved
the transfer of its Trading Business, including the related assets and liabilities, to the Company In
exchange for shares ofstock of the Company.. On the sarne date, the BOD and stockholders of the
Company approved the acquisition of the former's Trading Business effective April 1, 2016.
The transfer of net assets in exchange for shares of stock of the Company and the increase in
authorized capital stock of the Company were approved by the SEC on November 15 2016
(see Note 4). ' ' "

!he transfer of net assets, assessed tobe tax free-exchange, was approved by the Bureau of internal
Revenue (BIR) on January 26, 2017.

On September 13, 2016, the Company's BOD and stockholders authorized the Company to
undertake an initial public offering (IPO) of its-shares with the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE)
Subsequently, on February 23 and March 8, 2017, the SEC and the PSE, respectively, approved the
Company's application for IPO.

On March 31, 2017, the 1,393,906,200 common shares of the Company were listed In the PSE at an
offer price of ^5.05 ashare. Net proceeds from the IPO amounted to P6,749.3 million, net of offer
expenses of P289.9 million (see Notes 4 and 15).

The registered office address of the Company is at No. 90 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue, Brgv. Ogong
Norte, Quezon City.

statements of the Company as at and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017
and 2016 were approved and authdrized-fQ.nissue'rb^thT^ 2018, as reviewed and
recommended for approval by the A|j.dit,dpH!m bn'the'sarne datre, ;



Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies • •• ^ ~

Basisof Preparation and Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
inancia eporting Standards (PFRS). This financial reporting framework Includes PFRS, Philipoine

Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine interpretations from international Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee;(IFRie) issued by the .Philippine Financial Reporting Standards CouJ.
and adopted by theSEQ including the' SEC provisions. ^

The sipiTicant accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements have be-n
consistenJy applied to all theyears presented, unless otherwise stated.

Measurement Bases
The financial statements have been presented in Philippine Peso, which is the functional currency of
the Company. All amounts are in absolute values, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis of
accounting, except for financial asset at fair vaiue through other comprehensive income
(financial asset at FVOCI) that Is measured at feir value. Historical cost is generaiiy based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for an asset and change In fair value of the
consideration received in exchange for incurring a lisbitity.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or' paid to transfer a liability in an
oraerly transaction between market participants at the transaction date. The Company uses
va nation techniques that are appropriate in the cir-cumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizihg the use of relevant observable Inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable Inputs. : ' • '

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized withrn the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,-based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement asa whole:

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for Identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair va.iue
measurement isdirectly or Indirectly observable.

Level 3- Valuation techniques tor which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is uniobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels In the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest lever input, that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement asa whole) at the endofeach reporting year.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Co«rsp5ny has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis ofthenature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fairvalue hierarchy as explained inthe foregoing.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value Is Included in the folloy/ing
notes:

® Note 6, Investments

® Note 23, Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption ofthefollowing new and amended PFRS effective January 1, 2018:

o PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - This standard will. replace PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. (and all the. previous versions of PFRS 9). It contains
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
impairment, hedge accountingand derecognition.

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financsal assets to besubsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on their
classification by reference to the business mod.e!'within which these are held and their
contractual cash flow characteristics.

For financial liabilities, themost significant effect ofPFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken - the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is-
recognized in othercomprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an
accounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an "expected credit loss" model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of acontract. It will no longer be
necessary to have an objective evidence of Impairment before acredit loss is recognized.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9introduces asubstantlai overhaul allowing financial statements to
better reflect how risk nqanagement activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-
financial riskexposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39.

Based on the analysis of the Compan/s business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of its financial assets and liabilities as at January 1, 2018, the Company has
concluded that all financial assets and liabilities should be classified under the new classification
categories of PFRS 9.



Ihe following table shows the original classification categories under PAS 39 and the new
classification categories under PFRS 9for each class offinancialiassets as atJanuary 1, 2018.

PFRS 9 Classification

January 1,2018

Classification under PAS 39

Balance as at

December 31,2017 Note
Financial Assets at

FVOCI

Loans and Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments

Trade and other receivabies*

Container deposits

Security deposits

Electricity deposits

Availabie-for-sale financial asset

23,016,815,150 i •

500,580,715 • i

395,199,335 • 1

8,037,715 i

• 112,191,181 i

36,938,404 ">

g- 23,015,815,150

500,580,715

395,199,335

8,037,715

112,191,181

36,938,404

Retail treasury bond 2,995,946,620 ii 2,996,946,520
-

?f2,996,946,620
"deluding advances tosuppliers amounting to ^1S6.8 million:

I. Cash and cash equivale.nts a.nd other financiai assets that Were previously classified as loans
and receivables under PAS 39 will continue", to be meakured at amortized cost. These
financial assets are held within a business model whose Objective is to collect contractual
cash flows representing solely payments ofprincipal and interest.

ii. The retail treasury bond previously classified as availabMor-sale (AFS) financial assets
under PAS 39 are now classified as financial assets at FVDCI under PFRS 9. This financial
asset IS held withip business nhodel whose objective Is achieved by both co[lectirt<^
contractual cash "flows and selling financial assets. °

The Company assessed that the adoption of PFRS S. spedficallyi on determining Impairment ibss
using simpimed approach, has no significant impact on the carrying amounts of the finan-iai
assets carried at amortized cost.and FVOCI.

'̂ ""tracts with Customers - The new standard replaces
AS 11 Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, and their related interpretations. It establishes

a single comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently across
transactions, industries and capital market, with acore principle (based on afive-step model to
be apphec to all contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or improved
guidance (e.g. the point at which revenue is recognized, accounting for variable considerations
costs offulfilling and obtaining a contract, etc.).

Amendment to PFRS 15„ Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarification to PFRS 15 -
Ihe amendments provide ciarificatipns on the foilowing topics: (a) identifying performance
obligations; (b) principal versus ,agent considerations; and (c) licensing. The amendments also
provide some transition relieffor modified contracts and completed contracts.

Based on the Company's assessment, all of the agreements with customers generally undertake
to provide single perfornrjance obligation at afixed price which is mainly the delivery of goods.
The Company recognizes :revenue as the goods are transferred'to the customer at the point of
delivery. Accordingly, the adoption .of PFRS 15 has no impact in the timing of revenue
recognition.

R4,169,762,500



New andAmended PFRS Issued but Not yet Effective
Relevant new and amended: PFRS, which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31 2018
and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements, are summarized below. '

Effective for annual period beginning on or after January'-1,2019:

be'brouehfonrifintroduced by the new standard is that almost all leases will
less than IrmonSr ^atement ot financial position under asingle model (except leases of
operating and flnanrL T' eliminating, the distinction between

® accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the'distinction between operating and finance lease is retained.

. Philippine Interpretation IFRiC 23, Uncertolnty Over income Tax Treatments - The interpretation
provides requirements maodition to those set in PAS 12, Incbme Taxes, by specifying how m
an \ position when the.-e is .uncertainty over tax treatments It requ''e'an entity to (a) detemnine whether uncertain tax positions are assessed sepamtely or as rgrouo
and (b) assess whether it is probable that atax authority will accept an uncertain tax treaL-S

° SeSn -%he'amf;dmen« alloreTt'"'" "•assets with negative compensation at am'ortLed Tosror XeTrough"'"h''
™hensnre income (instead of at fair value through profit or loss, ff

(as opposed to adjustinglhTeirt'elnte^^t;^^^ " clerecognition

expectedrhrveanTm'aW -"«

tha?th\L° arTng:r::™tnfi^ k ^ »'"^-atesCompany will Lv^To ^^thH^
these leases - unless these qualify f '
^FRS 15 - Which mfghrha^e a snort-termJeases upon the application of
financial statements. However it is rot ora-'irahl amoums recognized in the Company's
until the Company completes the rLtew "



Financial Instruments

Date ofRecognition. The Company recognizes a flnanciai assets or iiabilitles in the statement of
financial position when the: Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a flnanciai
instrument.

initiai Recognition and Measurement. Financlai instruments are recognized initiaily at fair value of
ihe consideration given (in the case of an asset) or received (in the case of a liability). The initial
measurement of all financial instruments, except for financial Instruments classified as fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL); includes transaction cost.

Day 1 Difference. Where the transaction price In a non-active market is different from the fai--
va ue from other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data observable from the market, the Company
recognizes, the difference between the tran.saction price and fair value (a "Day 1" difference) in
profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type'of asset. In cases where there is
no oDsenrable data on inception, the Company deems the transaction price as the best estimate of
rair value and recognizes "Day 1" difference in profit or loss when Inputs become observable or
when instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate
method of recognizing a "Day 1" difference amount.

Financial Assets

In the case of regular wayi purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognltlon
as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.

ClassificaJon. The Company classifies its financial assets at initiahrecognitlon under the following
Tf P^JorT^TK amortized cost, (b) financial assets at FVPL and (c) financlai assets
itc -h ^ of nnancial asset largely depends on the Compan/s business model a.hd•ts contractual cash flow characteristics.

The Company does not have financial assets measured at FVPL.

at^orf/zed Cost. Afinancial asset should be measured at amortized cost If both of
the following conditions are rnet:

the financial asset Is held with abusiness model whose objective Is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

specified dates to cash flows that aresolely payments or principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After Initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized •
calculated hv^\ 'T allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
integral oart o4hrfff"rt- discount of premium on acquisition and fees that are an
^n-nr^i r r . ^ in profit or loss when the
cos aeinrfd' T amortization process. Financial assets at amortized
"'11 if reallzabllity or cotlectablllty is within 12 months after thep Ling year. Otherwise, these areclassified asnoncurrent assets.
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receivables {excluding short-term mvestments, trade and other
assatsa securitynoncurrent assets") are included under thU caCoiT-W? part of "other
receivables under PAS 39 as ^ Deceniber 31,2017. " ' " ^Pre^uslV classified as loans and

monerm5cemS Which inciude cash on hand, cash in banits,less that are readily convertible to known arnoants months or
nsK orChanges in value. suojecttoan insignincsnt

measured at rairvaLe°ttroJ^rotti.^^pi|̂ insfrument, should bemet: ^ "-both of the following conditions are

contractual cash is achieved by both collectmg

^^rrency ^reign<iirectly in profit or loss. ChangiTi^v ^
comprehensive inco.me and accumulated in oquitv recognized In other
curnusativegains orlosses prsviouslvreccwniyfr^-m *•• ^nancf3! asset is derecognfzed, the

to profit or loss

as AFS finandai asset under PA$ S^asdt'Semblsi,^^"previousiy classified

(-U for-ne contraetua! cash flows due in accordanc="'with "he"*' betv/een
Company expects to receive. TOe difference i;thfd^eT"-n
oiigrnalerrective interestrate. '"=n approximation to the asset's

S

losses, me Company has established aprowsionlSk «5° expected credit
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors spe-ific 'to ^
-i.y.,onmantandanass6ssmentofbotha5ecuiTentasv-hli»\ - and dre economicor ".e .=portingdate, including time vsiue of money, where appropifetr^ '̂ direcuon o. conoitions

®t_amort.ed cct, the ECt
'esuic rrom default events on - fin-nr- i• pertains lO the portion or lifetime ECL fhar
tooorting date. However, whertoem ha" beST-' —^
recognition, Siealiowance wili fad based on the r!fedn!L^™TvJr-T-
-s.< or a fmancisi asset hss inr-«»-«ior^ crs •- • ' vvhedie,''the creditset h=s mc.e=sed signmcently since initiai recognition, the Company co.mpares



the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicativeof significant increases in credit risksince Initial recognition.

Under PAS 39, the Company assesses, at the end of each reporting period, whether objective
evidence of impairment exist for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. For the purpose of a collective
evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped together 017 the basis of such credit risk
characteristics such as customer type, payment history, past-due status and terms.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the assefs carrying amount and the
present value of estimatedifuture cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's origina! effectiveinterest rate (i.e., the effectiveinterest
rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of theesset is reduced through the use
ofan allowance account. The amount of loss is recognized In profit or loss.

For debt instruments classified as AFS financial assets, the impairment is assessed based on the
sarhe criteria as financial assets earned at amortized cost. Interest income continues to be
recognized on the reduced carrying amount using the Interest rate; used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose ofmeasuring the impairment loss. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a
debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment ioss was recognized, the impairment loss is reversediin profit or loss.

Reclassification. The Company reclassifies. its financial assets when, and only when, it changes Its
business model for managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively
rrom the lirst day ofthe first; reporting year following the change in business mode! (reclassification
date).

ror a financial asset redassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVPL, any gain or ioss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of
the financial assetand fair value is recognized in profit or ioss.

For a financial asset redassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost of
the financial asset and feir value is recognized in other comprehensive income.

For a financial asset redassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets at
amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized In other comprehensive income, and any
difference between the new;amortized cost and matunty amount, are amortized to profit or loss
over the remaining life of th,e finandai asset using the effective interest method, if the financial
asset is subsequently impaired, any gain or ioSs that Has been recognized in other comprehensive
income is redassified from equity to profitor loss.
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In the case of a financial a^set that does not have a fixed matudty, the gain or loss should be
recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset Is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is
subsequently impaired, anyiprevlous gain or loss that has been recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or bs.

Derecognition. Afinancial asset (or where applicable, a part of afinanciai asset or part of agroup of
similarfinancial assets) isderecognized when:

o the right to receive cash flows from the asset hasexpired;

® the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financiai asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without materiai delay to athird party under a"pass-through"
arrangement; or

® the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither '
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks andrewards ofthe asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial
asset, the financial asset Is recognized to the extent oftheCompany's continuing involvement in the
financial asset. Continuing iinvoivement that takes the form of alguarantee over the transferred
financial asset is measured at? thelower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the
maximum amount ofconsldebtion that.the Company could be required to repay.

Financiai Liabiifties

Classification. The Company classifies its financial liabilities at initial recognition under the foilowing
categories: (a) financial liabilities at amortized cost or (b) financial liabilities at FVPL

As at reporting date, the Company does nothave financial liabilities measured at FVPL.

Financia! Liabilities atAmortized Cost, rinanciai liabilities are categorized as financiai iiabiiities at
amortized cost when the substance of the contractuai arrangement results in the Company having -
an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to settle the
obligation other than by the ^change of afixed amount of cash or another financial asset for afixed
number of its own equity instruments.

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, these finaiicial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part' of the effective interest rate.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized or impaired or
through the amortization process.

As at December 31, 2018, the long-term debt and trade and other payables (excluding statutory/
liabilities, unredeemed gift ce.rtlficates and unearned revenue) are included in this category. These
were previously classified as other financiai liabilities under PAS 39 as atDecember 31, 2017.



Derecognition. A financial liability is dereccgnised when the obligation under the iiabiiity is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. Vvhen an existing financial- liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in profrt or loss.

Amodification is considered substantial ifthe present value of the cash flows under the new terms.
including net fees paid or
is different by at least 10%
original iiabiiity.

received and discounted using the original effective interest rate,
from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the

The rair value of the modified financial liability Is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at v«/hich the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original iiabiiity and fair
value of the new liabili-ty is recognized in profit or loss.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is'not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or
fees paid or received in the restructuring.

Classification ofFinanciai Instrument between andEquity
Afinancial instrument is classified as liability if itprovides for a contractual obligation to;

® Deliver cash or another financiai asset to another entity;

® Exchange rinanciai assets or financiai ilablllties with another entity under conditions that are

potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

® Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount ofcash or another financiai
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

if the Company does not haye an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash oranother financial
asset to settle {"ts contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of afinancial liability.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financiai assets and liabllities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amouf.ts
and there is an Intention to settle on a'net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Merchandise Inventories

Merchandise inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost, whicn
includes ail costs directly attributable-to acquisition such as purchase price and freight-In,
is determined using the weighted average method, mv is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course ofbusiness, less estimated costs necessary to complete the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those Inventories is recognized to profit or loss in
theyear when the related revenue is recognized.



11

When the NRV of inventories Is iower than the cost, a write-down is recognized as expense at the
period inwhich it occured.The amount of reversals, if. any, of write-down of Inventories arising from
an increase in net realizable value are recognized as" reduction in the amount of inventories

recognized as expense in the; year in which the reversal occurs.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets mainly consist of input value-added tax (VAT), deferred input VAT, prepaid
expenses, supplies and container deposits,

VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized, net of the amount of VAT, except;

0 where VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services Is not recoverable from the taxation
authority; or

• receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

1he net amount of VAT recoverable from the taxatiori authority is Included as part of "Othercurrent
assets" account in the statement of financial posiilon.

Deferred input VAT represents the.unamortized amount of input VAT on capital goods and input
VAT on consigned goods already sold, wherein the suppliers' invoices are received consequently.
Deferred input VAT that are expected to be claimed against output VAT for no more than 12 months
after the reporting date a^e classified as current assets. Otherwise, these are classified as
noncurrent assets.

Prepaid Expenses. Prepaid expenses are expenses paid in advance and recorded as asset befo.^e
these are utilized. Prepaid expenses are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and
charged to appropriate expepse accounts in profit or loss when incurred. Prepaid expenses that'are
expected to be realized for po more than 12 months after the financial reporting date are classified
as current assets. Otherwise; these are classified as noncurrent assets.

Supplies. Supplies arecarried at cost and are recognized asexpense upon consummation.

Container Deposits. Container deposits qualify as financia! assets and are disclosed under financial
instruments. These are measured at cost less any impairment invalue.

Property and Eouipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and any
impairment in value.

The Initial cost of property and equipment comp.rises of its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes and any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the asset has been put into operations, such as repairs and
maintenance, are normally recognized as expense in the year the costs are incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly derrionstrated that the expenditures have Improved the condition of the
asset beyond the originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as
additional costs of property dnd equipment.
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Construction in progress represents structures'• under constrijction and is stated at cost.
Cost includes costs of construction, labor and other direct costs. 'Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the construction ofproperty and equipment are capitalized during the construction
period. Construction in prpgress is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are
ready for use.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line basis overthe estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Asset Type ^ Number of Years : .
Buildings and improvements 20
Furniture and equipment 5
Leasehold improverpents 5 or term of lease,whichever Is shorter
Transportation equipment 5

The estimated useful fives and depreciation and amortization are reviewed and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each reporting date to ensure that such years and method of depreciation and
amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from, the items of
property and equipment.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until these are no longer being used and no
further depreciation and amortization arecredited orcharged to profit or loss.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances Indicate thatthe carrying value may not herecoverable.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising from
derecognition ofthe asset {measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included In profit orloss in the year the item is derecognized.

Other Noncurrent Assets

Other noncurrent assets comprise of security deposits, computer software, advance rent, electricity
deposits and refundable cash bonds. Other noncurrent assets, except advance rent and computer
software, qualify as financial assets and are disclosed under financial instruments.

Security Deposits. Security deposits represents deposits made in relation to lease agreements
entered into by the Company and are carried at cost less any impairment In value. These will be
returned at the end of the lease term.

Computer Software. Computer software acquired Is measured on initial recognition at cost
Subsequent to initial recopition, computer software is carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any impairment losses. Internally generated computer software, excluding
development costs, is not capitalized and expenditure Is charged against profit or loss In the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.
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Computer software is amortized over the economic useful life of eight years and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the computer software may be impaired.
The amortization period and| method for cortiputer software are reviewed at least at each reporting
date. Changes in the expected useful iife or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied In the asset h accounted for by changing the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, andjtreatedas changes.in accounting estlrhates.

Gains or losses arising from disposition of computer software measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and thecarrying amount ofthe asset areirecognized in profit or loss In the
period when the asset Isderecognized.

Advance Rent Advance rent represent advance payments made in relation to the lease agreements
entered into by the Company and are carried at cost less any irnpairment in value. This will be
applied at the end of the lease term.

Electricity Deposits. Electricity deposits ere carried atcost less any impairment In value, and will be
refunded upon termination of the contract.

impairment of NonfinancisI Assets

At each reporting date, nonfinanciai assets are reviewed to determine whether there is any
Indication that those assets may be impaired. If there is an Indication of possible impairrnent,
the recoverable amount of any asset (of group of related assets) is estimated and compared-with its •
carrying amount. An assefs ^or group of assets^) feccyerable anhount is the higher ofan assefs fair
value less cost to sell and Itsyalue in use, and is determined for an; individual asset unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of thoise from other assets or group of
assets. If estimated recoverable amount is lov/er, the carrying amount Is reduced to its estimated
recoverable amount, andimpairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

if an impaiYment loss subsequently reverses, the carn/lng amount of the asset (or group of related
assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
{or group of related assets) in prior period. Areversal of an impairment loss is recognized
l.mmediately in profit or loss.

Nonfinanciai assets include property and equipment and computer software.

Equitv

Capital Stock and Additional f aid-in Capital. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares
issued, incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of hew;shares or options are shown In
equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax. The excess of proceeds from the issuance of shares
over the par value ofshares is credited to additional.paid-in capital.

Other Comprehensive income, (Loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) comprise items of income
and expenses (including items previously presented under the statement of changes In equity) that
are not recognized In profit or loss for the year in accordance with PFRS. Other comprehensive
income (loss) includes fair valde changes on financial asset atFVOCI and cumulative remeasurement
gain (loss) on retirement liability.



Retained Earnings. Retained earnings represent the CL=mulative balance of net iricome or loss,
dividend distributions, correction of prior year errors, effects of changes in accounting policy and
other capital adjustments.

Dividend Distribution. Dividend distribution to the Compan/s stockholders is recognized as a
liability and deducted from equity in the year in v,/h]ch the dividends-are declared as approved by
the Company's BOD. Dividends that areapproved after the reporting year aredealt with as an event
after the reporting year.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the
contract has been satisfied, either at.a point in time or overtime. Revenue is recognized overtime if
one OT the following criteria is met: (a) the. customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits as the Company performs its obligations; (b) the Corhpan/s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or (c) the
Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the
Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. Otherwise,
revenue Is recognized at a point in time.

Ihe Company assesses the revenue arrangements to determine If it is acting as a principal or as an
agent. The v,ompany assessed that it acts as principal i.n all of its revenue sources.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue Is recognized.

Net Sales. Revenue is recognized when the controf of the goods Is transferred to the buyer, which is
normally upon delivery or pick up ofgoods, and measured at the fair value ofthe consideration
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and unearned revenue from loyalty program.

The award credits from the Ipyalty program are identifiable component of sale transactions in which
these are granted. The fair value of.the consideration received or receivable in respect to the sale is
allocated between the award credits and the othe.- components of the sale. The Company
recognizes the consideration; received allocated to award credits as sale when award credits are
redeemed and it fulfills its obligations to supply the award credits. The amount of revenue
recognized is based on the number of award credits that have been redeemed in exchange for '
awards, relative to the total number that are expected to be redeemed. Any unredeemed award
credits as at reporting date are recognized as unearned revenue included under 'Trade and other
payabies" account in thestatement offinancial position.

•'nterest Income. Revenue is; recognized as the Interest accrues, taking Into account the effective
yield oTthe asset.

Rent Income. Revenue arising from rent of property is-recognized on astraight-line basis over the
lease term.

Other Income. Revenue is recognized when the.re is an incidental economic benefit, other than the
usual business operations, thpt will flow to the Company through an increase in asset or reduction in
liability and that can be measured reliably.

Cost and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon receipt of goods, utilization of services or at
Lhe date the costs and expenses are incurred.



Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits. The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and
an expense tor seivices rendered by employees during the year, AJiability is also recognized for the
amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the Company has a present iegai or
con.structive obligation to pay this amount as a result-of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Short-term employee benefit liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service Is provided.

Retirement Benefits. Retirement benefit costs are actuarialiy determined using the projected unit
credit method, which reflects services rendered by employees: to the date of valuation and
incorporates assumptions concerning employees' projected salaries.

The Company recopizes service costs, comprising of current service costs, past service costs, gains
and losses on curtailments and non-routine settieraents and net interest expense or income in propt
or loss. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net retirement liability o-
asset. ' '

_ Past service costs are recognized In profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment
o, curtailment and the date that the Company recognizes restructuring-related costs.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and anv change in the
efrec. of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit obligation) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the year in which these arise. Remeasurements are •
not redassiTied to profit or ioss in subsequent year.

The retirement liability is the aggregate of the. present vaiue of thfe defined benefit obligation and
efeir value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. The present value

o^L e retirement liability is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using

'T approximating the terms of theIelated retirement liability.

Actuanal valuations are made with sufficient reguiarity so that the amounts recognized in th-
•inanc^l statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be determined at the
reporting date. c....i..cu di tne

Leases

The determination of whether the arrangement is, or contains alease is based on the substance of
-he arrangement at inception date, of whether thg fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on

e use o. a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset,
reassessment is made after inception on the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. There is achange in contractual terms, other than are.newai or extension of the arrangement;
D. Arenewal option is exercised or extensron granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension ^

was initially included in the leaseterm;

c. is achange in the determination of whether fulnliment is dependent on aspecified asset;

There is substantial change to the asset.



Where a reassessment is made, jease accounting commences on ceases from the date when the
change mcircumstances gave rise to reassessment for scenariosJ(a), (c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal orextension period for scenario (b).

h^trp ^ reward of ownership over the asset are retainedVthe lessor, are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
recognized mprofit or loss on astraight-iine basis over the period of the lease.

Income Taxes

current Tax. Current tax assets and Habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate and, tax laws used to compute the '1^,0 °^^=
those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at end of the reporting year.

Provided on aii temporary differences atthe reporting date between- . Xbases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financiai reporting purposes. '

Deterred tax liabilities are recognized for aii taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets am
.ecognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
is'̂ no' ^ ^ which the deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax, however
-hat Vn h 't arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction

reponmg date and reduced to the

or part of the Lft h®®' ® """ ^® all°w ail
the e^ri pf h ® '̂®* ''® ." '̂"red. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed et~ . reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable thatulicient future taxable profit will-allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

oeJtod whe^r®^ measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to th=period when .he asset is realized or the liabiiitv is settled, based on tax rate and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantiveiy enacted at the end of reporting year.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if alegally enforceable right exists ro set off current
income tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority, ®

Seared ''4'''items'"am recognized outside profrt or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
r • tecognized in relation to the underlying transaction either inOther comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Earnings per Sham

I! P®^ Basic earnings per share are calculated
thetea;" DuteTer"' average number of common'shares outstandS duriSall drurive prntlaTZ™^^^^^^^^
The Company has no dilutfve potential common shares.
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Related Party Relationship and Transactions
Related party transactions consist of trasisfers of resources, sea^ices or obligations between the
Company and its related parties.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
signincant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This includes:
(a) individuals who, by owning directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or'
are controlled by, or under common control with the Company; (b) associates; and, (c) individuals
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them
significant influence over the Company and close members of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is: directed to the substance of th«
relationship and not merely on legal form.

Segment Reporting

Operatmg segments are components of the Company: (a) that.engage in business activities from
which ihis may earn revenue and incur expenses,- including revenue and expenses relating to
transactions with other component\ts of the Company;, tb) whose operating results are regularlv
reviewed by the Company's senior management, its chief operating decision maker, to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and
(c) for which discrete financial information isavailable.

For purposes of management reporting, the Company has only one reportable operating segment
Company has only onegeographical segment as all of its assets

are located in the Philippines. The Company operates and derives all Its revenue from domestic
operations.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal- or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that atransfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required to settle the
obligation using apre-tax rate that reflects market assessments of the time value of monev and the
risks specmc to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized asinterest expense." k s ui ume .s

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to
financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
-s remot^ Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date
Events after the reporting date that provide additional information about the Company's financial
position at .he end of the reporting year (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements
when material. Events after the reporting date that are non-adjusting events are disclosed in the -
notes to Tinancial statements when material.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Company to exercise judgment, make
^ es mates and use assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements =nd

accompanying notes. The judgments and estimates are based on management's evaluation of
rdevan. fa^ and circumstances as of the date of the, comparative financial statements
Attual resute could differ .rom these estimates, and as such estimates will be adjusted accordingly
when the effects become determinable. avvoraing.y

Judgments

loa!r ®̂PP'yi"g the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,apart mom those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.

Determining the Operating Segments. Determination of operating segments Is based on the
ormation about components of the Company that management uses to make decisions about »he

operating matters. Operating segments use internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the
^ompa,n/s chief operating decision maker, which is defined to be the Company's BOD, In order to •
allocate resources to the segment and assess its performance. The Company reports separa-e
mformanon about an operating^ segment that meets any of the following qLntS"n;e
thresholds: (a) its reported revenue, including both sales to external customers and intersegment
stme°:t^Thf '̂ the combined mvenue, interrial and external, of all opei^hgegments, (b) ihe absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater in

fosf and reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a
' reported ,loss of all operating segments, that reported a loss; and(c) the assets o, the segment are 10% or more of the combined assets of all operating segments.

'•®P°'̂ '''®.«P®rating segment which is the trading business and onegeographic^ segment as ail of the assets are located In the Philippines. The Company operates and
h f domestic operations. Thus, no further disclosures of operating andgeographical segments are necessary. operating anc

T In '̂̂ rnents. The Company exercises judgments inlassifying a financial instrument on initial recognition either as a financial asset, a financial
and me HTv " in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement
of afina . °'®""A"®'®' A^set, afinancial liability or an equity Instrument. The substanc=
ffnanclirpolltlom clarification In the statement o^
hi addition, the Company classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the
asset IS quoted or not in an active market, included in the evaluation on whether afinancial asset

quoted in an active market is the determination on whether the quoted prices are readily and
regularty available, and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurr ^market
iransactions on an arm's-length basis. & y <mg marKei

•agrZm^ ^th'^Sf Amangements. The Company, as alessee, has various lease
t-ansDortafforln, . scfP-'S'-e and.ansportation equipment, ine Company has determined that the lessor retains all significant risks
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Rent expense amounted to 2919.9 million, ?780.7 million and 2502.1 million In 2018 2017 and
2016, respectively (see Mote 19). '

The Company, as a lessor, has existing lease agreements on commercial spaces, gondola lightings
racade billboards, window displays and street banners. The Company has determined that the
signi, leant risks and benefits of ownership over the leased properties remain with the Company,

ccordingiy, the Company accounts for the lease agreements as operating leases.

Rent income amounted toP20.1 million, §17.3 million and^S.S million in 2018, 2017 and 2016
respectively (see Note 19).

Evaluating Contingencies, The Company is a party to certain lawsuits or claims arising from the
ordinary course of business. However, the Company's management and legal counsel believe that
Lhe eventual liabilities under these lawsuits or claims; If any, will nbt have amaterial effect on the
financial statements.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions used In the financial statements are based upon management's
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances ofthe financlaf statements. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Presented below are the relevant significant estimates performed bv
management in preparing the financial statements.

Determining Fair Value of Financial Asset at FVOCl: The Company carries the financial asset at fair
value, which requires the use of accounting estimates and judgment. In cases when active market
quotes are not available, fair value is determined by reference to the current market value •of
another instrument which is substantially the same or is caiculated based on the expected cash

° underlying net base ofthe instrument. The amount of changes in fair value would differif uhe Company utilized different valuation methods and assumptibns. Any change in fair value of
these financial assets would affect other comprehensive income.

Unrealized loss on fair value changes on financial asset at FVGCl recognized in other comprehensive '
mcome amounted to 290.2 million and ^3.1 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 6).
!he carrying amount of financial asset at FVOCl amounted to ^2,906.7 million and 22 996 9million
asat December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 6).

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities are presented in Note 23 to financial statements.

.Assessing Expected Credit Losses on Trade and Other Receivables. The Company has adopted the
simp i led approach in measuring ECL based on lifetime expected credit losses on its trade and other
receivables. The Company has established a" provision matrix that uses historical credit loss
experience adjusted for forward-looking factors, as app!"opriat6.

Net provision for impairment losses on .receivables recognized in 2018 amounted to 226.3 million
(see Note 7).

receivables (excluding advances to suppliers) amounted to
^2 .5.8 million as at December 31, 2018 (see Note 7). Allowance for impairment losses on
receivables amounted to P63.4 million as at December .31, 2018 (see Note 7).
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In«/f t r r other Receivables. Under PAS 39, allowance for impairmentlosses on trade and otner receivables as at December 31, 2017 Is made for specific and groups of
accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. The cdmpany evaluates these accounts
based on available racts and circumstances affecting its coilectabillty.

!°sses on receivables amounted to?3.7 million and. 10.9 millton in 2017 and 2015, respectively (see N'ote 7).

2"'̂ at"®"" receivables (excluding advances to suppliers) amounted to«95.2 million as at December 31, 2017 (see Note 7). AKoviiance for Impairment losses on
receivables amounted to P37.4 million as at December 31,2017 (see Note 7).

Assessing Estimated Impairment Losses on Other Financial Asset at Amortized Cost. In assessing
expected credit losses for other financial asset at amortized cost, the Company uses historical credit

experience adjusted for forward-looking factors, as appropriate. The Company, except for
rerundable cash bonds, hasno history ofactual losses. •

No provision for impairment losses on other financial assets at amortized cost were recognized m
2018,2017 and 2016 (see Note 11). ecognizeo ,n

The carrying amount ofother financial assets at amortized cost follows:

Note 2018 2017
Security deposits
Electricity deposits
Container deposits

11

11

9

^103,587,631
47,818,940

8,010,715

^112,191,181
36,938,404

8,037,715
P15S,417,2S6 ^157,167,300

amortized cost also include refundable cash bonds, amounting to
. mi ion, which the Company assessed to be unrecoverable. Accordingly, refundable cash

bonds were fully provided with allowance for impairment losses as at December 31,2018 and 2017.

Determining NRV of Merchandise Inventories. The Company recognizes Inventory write down and
bsses whenever NRV becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsol^cence
t-nanges m pnce levels or other causes. '

Estimates of NRV are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are
made of the amount the Inventories are expected to be realized. These estimates take Into
considerrtion fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after reporting date
to Lhe extent that such events confirm conditions existing at reporting date. The adequacy of
al owance for inventory write-down and losses Is reviewed periodically to reflett the accurate
valuation in the fmanciai statements.

The carrying value of merchandise inventories amou.nted to R7,331.1 million and P6,968.1 million as
teir f w (see Note 8). Allowance for Inventory write-down andlosses amounted to R130.8 million as at December31,2018 and 2017 (see Note 8).
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^umaimgUs^ul Uvss Property and tquipinsnt end CordputerSoftware. The Compeny estimates
Ae useruf lives ofproperty and equipmajt and computer software basedotthe veers over which -
assets are expected to be available for use. TteesSmated usefui liva of propertvand equipmentar.

't-!Penooiraltyand are updated if e^ectations di^rfrom previous estimates due to ohvsiceiw-e. end tear, .achnicaIorcommeraaiobsotescer.ceend iagai or other limits on the use of the assets.

mere is no change in esSmated useful lives of property and equipment and comouter software as =t

^>^ote 2018
Property and equipmenf^ . iC S2,3S3379,^ 2626,480,765
Computer software H 63,531,683 37,802^687

22,446,914573 P664,283,453

201:

<!rr,oafrJn9 to^^;8 tr,i3i^ otto ff2S3.-g mliion ^ gt D^csmbsr 3X ^18 and2027

assessing JmpGirmsnt of NQnfmandal Assets. Tne Company assesses any impairment on its
nonnnanoai assets whenever events or changes in erircumstances indicate that the carrying vaiue of
asseui^or group of assets may not be recoverable. Factors that the ibompany considered in decldlPsg

•C perform impafrment review indisdes Ihe following among oihersiwnen

s Significant under-performance ofa business in relation toexpectations;
s signincant negative industn/ oreconomic trends; and
® Significant changes orplanned changes in the use of the assets.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever thecarrying amount ofan asset exceeds its recoverable
smou^ The estimated re(X)verable amount is the higher of an asset^s net seiiing price and value in
u^e. The net seiiing price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's-iength
transaction. Recoverable amount represent the value in use, detained as the present value of
^imated future cash flow expected to be generated from the^ continued use of the assets,
ihe estimated cash P.ow is projected using growth rates based on historical experience and business
p.tar.s and are discounted using pretax discount rates that reflect Ihe current assessment of the dme
value oi m^ey and the risks specific to the asset Recoverafaie amounts are estimated for individui
ass^«, orh It IS not possible, for the cash generating unit tcwhich the assets belong.
«nere were no indications thatthe canyingvalueofnonfinandai assetsmay be imoalred. Accordingiv.
no impairment losswas.-ecpgnized in2018,2017and 2916.

ine carrying values of nonfinandai assefe essess&i for possible impairment are presented below:

Note 2018 2017
Property and equipment 10 P2,767,iS0;S40 2860,060,702
Computer sofevare 11 • 63,531>6S3 37,802.687
—— 22,g30,692>533 P897,863,389
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stisSms se.lt.i,tlng >.ch .mo™. Th.,. .nom^raVm JirS "."5" w'rnt— f'""""
include, among others discount ra'-P anw c=t " 1•to financial statements and
com,..« f'sLTf """•

sssirs:r.T«=*•"'" "• '»•»

=~~

'f ^ISS.3 millio.n and P139.1 million as at December 31 2018and 2017, respectively (see Note 18). ^ecfemoer rji, zo^s

Initial Public Offering and Transfer of the Trading Bulsiness from thiei Parent Company
Initial Public Offering

off^rprlce'c '̂sTos f H ^^ares of the Company were listed In the PSE at an
^ ^mion, net of offe;

Portion of the net proceeds from the IPO were used to settle short t^rm ^r.ri i ^
constroct store for the Company's network expansion and pay general corporate exie'?^« ™

DecemTeT'̂ '̂oTand 201";''' ""O . '̂""""ted to =3,573.1 million and =5,611.5 million as atmcernber 3 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are maintained in various current and savira-
accounts, cash equivalents, short-term Investments and financial asset at FVOCI

Details are as follows:

•;r-r—:— l^£!£ 2018 2017Cash and cash equivalents T" _

Financial asset at FVOCI c , n™'! ''2,010,956,207
Short-term investments f 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000

^ 600,580,715 •
P3.,573,063,018 P5,611,536,922

are^TO^toT^^^^^^ Company, which
Transfer of the Trading Businpss

i^clirtfiVreteteVasT^t transferred its Trading Business to the Company,
2555 8milllnnrn I amounting to =2,655.8 million In exchange formrftt^xreroftrir^'L;^^^^^^—---r also i.fciud::



5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

23

2018 2017
Cash on hand

Cash in banks

Cash equivalents

P8,794,295

777,279,229
2,056,000,000

67,454,592
879,360,558

2,130,000,000
^2,842,073,524 ^3,016,815,150

Cash in banks earn interest at prevaiiing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents represent monev
market placements with interest ranging from 2.0% to 7.50% and have amaturity of 15 to 90 days.
Details of Interest income are as follows:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Financial asset at .R/OCI

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term Investments

6

6

P99,450,000

93,347,153

1,733,894

P77,566,667

34,341,398

3,880,715

9-

668,432

17 P194,531,047 P115,788,780 P668,432

5. Investments ^

Short-term investments

Short-term investments amounting to 2600.6 million as at December 31, 2017 represent money
market placements with maturity of four months and bear Interest of 2.74% and 2.75% inte^-est
income earned from short-term investments amounted to ^1.7 million and ^3.9 million in 2018 and
2017, respectively {see Note 5).

Financial asset at FVQCI

' fITsv' investment in retail treasury bond, which bears an annualinterest of 4.25% and will mature on April 11, 2020. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017 financial
asset at FVOCI amounted to P2,906.7 miiiion and ^2,996.9 million, respectively.

Interest income frorn financial asset at FVOCI amounted to P99.5 million and g77.6 million in 20lS
and 2017, respectively (see Note5).

Unrealized loss on fair value changes of financial asset at FVOCI amounted toS90.2 million and
. million in 2018 and 2017, respectively. The fair value-measurement for financial asset at FVon

has been categorized as level 2.



Trods and Otfi®* Rscsivsbiss

Details ofdiis account areasibilows:

jsade:

Third parties
Related psrtls

dvances to suppliers
Accrued interest
Advances toofficers and empioyees
Rent receivables

Others

Allowance for impairment losses

24-

Note 201S

^234,981,128
785,933

305385,150
27,137,

8,508,102
3,713325

34,1^321
614,672,059
(63,449356)

^551,222,663

^288,596,551
83,125,103

156,825,715
34,270,971

^307,452

2,942,160

18,741,244

585,40/,l/5
(37,382,1251

^552,025,050

Trade receivables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and have credit terms of 30 to SO days.

ca,h and caah adnivaianis.

dedSOT.'" employees are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled through salary

T y^r. Include receivables from the lease ofgondo-'c."~ s , TBvade biilfaoords, window displays and street banners.

Otzters mainly pertain to marketing support granted by suppliers.

Movements of ailowance for impairment losses on rscervables are as follows:

Sslsncs at b^inningofyear
Provision

Reversal

Write-off

Balance at end of vear

3. .Merchandise Inventories

zoic

P3?382,126
30305326
(4,251,291)

(187365)
P63;44S3%

Merchandise inventories are stated atcost and ?4RV. Details are as follows;

2017

#45,334,578
7,502,555

(11,229,315)
(4,725,472)

#37,382,126

2018 7r-i7
AI COS!

At NRV
P?,GlS,261,lu/

S-?^,795,433
#6,511,505,565

^— P7331,056,540 #6,968,144,107
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Merchandise inventories pertain to goods being traded under the normal course of business
which include construction supplies, bathroom and. kitchen supplies and equipment and furniture
among others, soldon wholesale and retail basis.

The cost of merchandise inventories stated at NRV amounted to »442.6 million and RS87 5miiiion
as at DecemberSl, 2018 and 2017, respectively. '

Movements of allowance for invento.«7 write-down and losses are as follows;

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year
Provision

Balance at end of year

P130,826,546 ^101,651,425
29,175,121

P13j0,826,546 ^130,826.546

Inventories charged to cost of sales amounted to P14,438.3 million P12 4817 millio-i snH

and?osser'''°" respectively, including provision for inventory write-down

Other Current Assets

Details of this account are as follows:

Input VAT

Current deferred input VAT
Prepaid expenses
Materials and supplies
Container deposits

2018

P240,316,969

175,886,317
115,623,344
103,832,889

8,010,715

P643,670,234

?m7

^402,056,029
186,590,797

10,962,386

2,725,400

8,037,715

^610,372,327

Deferred input VAT pertains to unamortized portion of input VAT
on consigned goods already sold. on property and equipment and

advertising, membership dues, rent and taxes bvLhe Company which is beingamortized over ayear. '

Materiais and supplies pertain to unused construction materials, office supplies and uniforms.
Container deposits poitain to moneta^ deposits for containers used for Imported goods.
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Depreciation and amortization aresummarized below:

Note 2018 2017 2016Property and equipment
Computer software

16

^158,676,639
6,175,342

^101,106,995
3,218,310

^62,284,537

430,020
P164,851,981 ^104,325,305 ^62.714.607

°?h'" Stores in various strategiclocations withm the Philippines and is expected to be completed in 2019.

11. Other Noncurrent Assets

Details of this account are as follows:

Security deposits
Computer software

Advance rent

Noncurrent deferred input VAT
Electricity deposits

Movements of computer software follow:

Cost

Balance at beginning of year
Additions

Balance at end of year!
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginningof year
Amortization .
Balance at end of year
Carrying Amount

Note

19

19

Note

10

2018 2017

P103,587,631 P112,191,181
63,531,693

54,886,102

52,932,787
47,818,940

37,802,687

77,749,502

39,044,857
36,938,404

P322,757,153 ^303,726.631

2018

P41,451,017

31,904,348

73,355,365

3,648,330

6,175,342

9,823,672

2017

Pi0,985,329

30,465,688

41,451,017

430,020

3,218,310

3,548,330
^63,531,693 S37.802.687

Electricity deposits pertain to noninterest-bearing refundable deposits to various elecvric
companies. These will berefunded upon termination ofthe contract.

The Company has refundable cash bonds amounting tog83.4 million. These refer to payments
made to the Bureau of Customs (BOC) for the release of imported goods purchased by the Par=nr

published values covering importations as required in Repubiii
. No. 8181 Transaction Value Act. The amount of cash bonds to be paid by the Parent Company

IS determined by the BOC. The amount is refundable once the correct dutiable value or values for
tne importation have beer, established. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the refund of cash
bonds IS still pending with the BOC Consequently, this has been fully provided with allowance



1-i. !rade and Other Paysbiss

Detssis of thisaccountareas follows:

Trade:

Third parties
Related parties

Nontrade:

Third parties
Related parties

Accrued expenses:
Rent

Salaries and wages
Outside services ;
Utilrties

Trucking services
Others

Acvances from custonsers
Dueto Parent CofTtpaiiy
Others

28-

Mote 201S 2017

P2,62S,936,351 22,482,513,704
20 141,177,998 / 2,588,754

526,656,476 179,041,748
20 694^004 64,791,264

19 164,857,248 49,418,543
38,432,195 3,787,165
39,498,905 213,029,431

9,551,143 13,546,631
1,342,.S80 43,147,511

24,578,865 21,242,539

20

280,983,544 227,261,002
- 22,084,182

151,576,854 97,058,801
54,001,096,864 23,491,311,35:

^rade payafaies snd accrued e^ensss are generaHy setded in varying periods dependin= on
crrangament wash suppliers, normally within 30 to90days.

Nontrade ^yafaies pertain to unpaid advertising and prwnoaons, rent, utilities, osnstruction and
transportation and travel, which are payable in thesucceeding month

Acct ued expenses are payable In thesucceeding month.

Advances from customers pertain to payments and deposits made by the customers, which a-a
rerundaole.

Others penam so u.n^rned revenue on ioyaity program, unredeemed gifi: certificates, saiarl'-c
payaole, witnholding taxes andstatutory obligations.

L5. Long-term Debt

Details of long-term debt are as follows:

Loan i

{Fo.-ward)

lerms

mmp sum paymsrst in August 2021

"®~n - Lump sumpayment inAugust 2021
•_Oen 3 Lump sum psymsnt inJune 2022

indpal

2210,(300.000

170,000,000

1SS,-4S1,53S

Outstanding Balance

2018

P10,(SK;

10,000

201"

225,000,000
"51 nrj.-s r-

198,451.539



iierms

Loan 4 Quarterly Instailiinent payment until
March 2020 :

Loan 5 Monthly installment payment until
March 2018

Current portion

Noncurrent portion

29

Principal

}2320,000,000

10Q>QOO,000

2998,461,539

Outstanding Balancg

2018

g-

20,000

220,000

2017

^100,000,000

55,000,000

403,461,539

(155,000,000)
2248,461,539

ihe loans bear interest rariglng from 2.25% to 5.75% In 2018 and 2017.

interest expense issummarized below:

2018 2017 201 F.Long-term debt
Short-term debt

22,345,308

22,345,308

215,168,951
6,624,559

221,793,510

220,169,546
10,070,282

230,239,828

As at December 31, 201f and' 2017, certain loans are collateralized by the Parent Comoa-.v's

reTpTS(sTXe 20)J'
The maturities ofthe long-term debt are asfollows:

Less than one year
Between one to two years
Between two to fiveyears

2018

20,000

2017

2155,000,000
50,000,000

198,461,539
220,000 2403,461.539

The Company paid In advaiice long-term debt amounting to 2248.4:m{llion in 2018.

Changes in the liabilities arising from financing activities for 2018 are as follows:

2018

Balance at beginning of year
Payments

interest expense

Balance at end of year ;

Long-term Debt Interest Payable
2403,461,539 2228,890
(403,441,539) (2,574,163)

• 2345,308
220,000 235
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2017

Short-term Debt Long-term Debt Interest Payable
Balanceat beginning of year
Payments

Proceeds

Interest expense

^445,000,000
(445,000,000)

^927,820,513

(722,820,513)
198,461,539

a-

(21,292,833)

21,793,510
Balance at end of year

^403,461,539 ^500,677

There are no noncash transactions arising from these liabilities.

14. Retirement Benefits

The Company is aparticipant of the Wiicon Depot Multiempioyer Retirement Plan together with the
arent Company and another related party. The plan is non-contributory and provides a retiren^ent

oenefit equal to 100% ofPlan Salary for every year ofcredited service. ' "

The plan is exposed to interest rate risks and changes in the life expectancy of qualified emplov-es
but IS not exposed tosignificant concentrations ofrisk on the plan assets.

Actuarial valuations are m^de periodically to update the retirement benefit liability and the amcunt
OT contributions. The latest actuarial valuation report was dated as atDecember 31, 2018.

Details of retirement benefits are as follows:

Current service cost

Intei^est expense
interest income

2018

Plo,S89,34i

10,435,646
(3,903,698)

P23,521,2S9

2017

P15,913,503

19,277,579
(1,173,754)

^34,017,328

2016

^29,745,363

^29,745,363

The cumulative remeasurement gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive Incom.e follows:

2018

Balance at beginning of year
Remeasurement gain
Balance at end of year

Balance at beginning of year
Remeasurement gain
Balance at end of year '

Cumulative

Remeasurement

Gain (Loss)
P251,59i,852

(4,761)

Deferred Tax

(see Note 18)

(P75,507,555)
1,428

Net

P176,184,297
(3,333)

P251,687,091 (P75,506,127) P17S,180,964

Cumulative

Remeasurement

Gain (Loss)

(P13,771,S93)
265,463,745

2017

Deferred Tax

(see Note 18)

24,131,568

(79,639,123)

Net

(P9,540,325)
185,824,622

^251,691,852 (^75.507,555) gl76.184.297
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Ihe amounts of net retirement liability recognized in the statements of financial position ar- as
TOIIOWS-

^^ 2018 2017
Present value orthe obligation P200 113 371
Fair value of plan assets ^,685,536 ^183,081,500

50,545,789
gll8,427,835 ^132,535,711

1he changes in the present value of thedefined benefit obligation are as follows:

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P183,081,500 2414,571,587
Current service cost 16,989,341 15,913,503
Interest expense 10,435,646 19,277,579
Remeasurement gain (8,639,470) (266,575,749}
Benefits paid (1,753,646) (105!420)
Balance atend ofyear P2Q0,113,371 ^183,081,500

The changes in the fair value of plan assets are presented below:

— 2018 2017
Balance at beginning ofyear P50,545,789 b-
Contributions 37,633,926 28,399,857
Remeasurement loss (8,644,231) (1,112,00^)
Interest income 3,903,698 1,173,754
Benefits paid (1,753,646) ' -
Transfer from Parent Company _ 22 084182
Balance at end of year P81,685,536 P50,545^^

Details of plan assets are as follows:

Unit investment trust funds 72.07%
Mutual funds iq£^qo>(;
others "8.34%
Balance at end ofyear 100.00%

The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine the retirement liability are as follows:

2018 2017
Discount rate 7 53^
Annual salary increase rate 4.00%

Sensitivity analysis on retirement iiability is as follows:

5.70%

4.00%

Discount rate
^ Basis Points Amount

+100 (P22,478,933)
-100 27,490,621

Salary rate ^200 28,225,083
-100 (23,369,424)

turnover rate _ 40,468,019
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As at December 31,2018, the expected future benenis payments are asfollows:

fear

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024 to 2028

l5. equity

Details of capital stock are as foUow:

Wanierof
Shares

202S

Asjoant

' Kumbsr cj

Shares

Amoi

§46,178,066
2,284,785
5,661,804

10,288,937
3,712,804

56,200,465

2124,326,861

2027

K'lfjjjfcar of

Shares

5,000,000,000 S5,C0S,0S0,S0?? 5.500,000,000 P5,Q£S3,CGO,OCO 200,000,000
4,S0eL0C0,0G5

2015

S2CO,CC<..GC'3
4,scio,oo:;,ogo

Airrhorized - at PI a share
Ealsnca st besnring of year
increase

Balance at end ofyear Bs,OOOJOQ,ogS. 5.000.000.000 S5,OCO.OaO.OOQ 5,iaa}.000.0C0 ?>5,0CQ.C-5O,Cg;

Hsued and oucsiandh^
Ssiance at beginningef ya
issuances

Bsiance at end gf year

4,035.724,125 S5,C9S,72«16 2,?CS^?,S-5 32,70^17,315 50,000.;
1,333.305,250 1.3S3SOS.2QO S,55S.P.17.915

O.CCC.CCC

2,555,817.5154,039,724,233 34.093,724,115 4,039,-24,116 34,0S3,724.11g 2.705^817^16 P^.l^SlT-SiS

fviarch 3^, the i,3S3,306,200 common shares of the Company were listed in the PS£ at an
Gfter pnce orss.OS ashare {see Mote 1). Met proceeds from the IPO amounted togS 7^9 ^

OTTer expenses Oi a289.9 miliion. ihe Company incurred transaction costs incide,ntal tothe i=ij
emountmg tog271.6 miiiion, wrhich was charged against additional paid-in capital and other offer
expens^ charged to prpnt or loss amounting to S18.5 miiiion. Net additiona! oaid-in caoirai
amounted to P5,373.7 miiiion. '

=0n^sha^°" '̂ BOD approved the declaration of a regular cash dividend of
to "^91^ ® ora total of g0.11 per share eaui-raient- . .5_0 muton .o stockholders on record date of May 24,2018 and payment date ofJune 8, 2018.

S/^plfs-f.-tanL'"® Companys BOD approved toe declaration of ar^ular cash dividend of°f 50.05 pershare, era total of#0.16 per share eauit<ai=..r

"priitfoois 22, 2019 and paymerrt'date of



16. Operating Expenses

Details of this account areias follov/s;

Rent

Salaries,wages and employee
benefits

Outsourced services

Trucking services
Utilities

Taxes and licenses

Credit card charges
Depreciation and amortization

Supplies
Advertising and promotions
Repairs and maintenance

Postage, telephone and telegraph
Professional fees

Transportation and travel
Donations and contributions

Others

- io

Note 2018 2017 2016
19 ^919,910,158 ?780,737,052 P502,084,353

10

830,904,777
769,736,714

473,945,501

436,646,588

181,280,353

173,251,280
164,851,981

117,998,573

104,360,976

86,825,007

30,639,159

18,220,905

17,636,609

11,318,431

83,025,879

643,369,575

711,320,626

351,607,772

331,922,472

162,320,458

149,839,772
104,325,305

86,810,376

100,806,258

56,257,962

27,983,000

17,841,741

17,309,280

22,600,054

30,636,931

506,252,125

395,207,253

192,066,482
258,233,463
115,227,877

99,176,655
62,714,607

35,583,411

42,734,794

33,054,848
17,971,279

5,573,013

6,642,676

5,604,997

8,868,805
g4,420,552,891 P3,595,688,634 P2.286.996.656

Other expenses include director's fee, fuel & oil, net provision (reversal of allowance) for
impairment losses on receivables andother operating costs. -

17. Other Income

Details of this account are as follow:

Note

Interest

Rent

Others

5

19

2018

P194,531,047

20,147,518
144,793,875

2017

^115,788,780

17,311,963

52,245,073

2016

^668,432

5,768,648

27,226,012
g359,472,440 ^185,345,816 P33,663.092

Rent income pertains to lease of gondola lightings, facade billboards, window displays and str»»r
Dsnnsrs-

other income includes amounts charged to and from the suppliers for the use of billboards and
signages, office supplies, marketing support for new stores from the suppliers and other
reimbursable costs.
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L8. Income Tax ~~ ^

The current income tax expense In 2018 and 2017 represents regular corporate income tax.
The Company will be subject to minimum corporate income tax In the taxable year 2019, which is
the fourth taxable year inamediateiy following the year of the Company's registration with the SIR
on December 17, 2015,

The reconciliation between income tax expense at statutory tax rate and income tax expense
presented In the statements of comprehensive Income Isas follows:

2018 2017 2016
Income tax expense at statutory rate P761,902,160 ^550,132,743 §304,607,193
Income tax effects of: 1

Interest income already subjected
to final tax (58,359,314) (34,736,634) (200,530)

Nondeductible interest expense 703,592 6,538,053 82,718
Other nondeductible expense 15,044 — , _

Effect of net assets transferred -
- (174,032,434)

Offer expenses
- (80,198,460) (1,876,945)

Derecognition of deferred tax assets

resulting from retirement plan assets
transferred - 6,625,255 —

P704,251,4S2 ^448,360,957 P128,580,C02

Netdeferred tax assets relate to the tax effect of the temporary differencesas follows:

Deferred tax assets:

Allowancefor inventory write-down and losses
Retirement liability
Accrued rent on straight-line basis
Allowance for impairmient of refundable cash bonds
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables
Unearned revenue from loyalty progra.m

Deferred tax liabilities:

Advance rent

Prepaid taxes

Unrealized foreign exchange gain

2018

P39,247,964

35,528,351

28,788,008

25,022,980

19,090,999

17,633,245

165,311,547

(23,324,851)
(4,460,864)

(6,139)

2017

§39,247,964

39,760,713

12,043,496

25,022,980

11,214,638

11,817,4'98
139,107,289

(23,324,851)

(1,057)
(27,791,854) (23,325.9481

^137,519,693 ^115,781,341

rhe presentation of net deferred taxassets (iiabiiities) are as follows:

Ihrough profit or loss
Through other comprehensive income

Note

14

2018

P213,025,820

(75,506,127)

2017

^191,288,896

(75,507,555)
P137,519,693 ^115,781,341



9. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Agreement«;

-35-

The Company as a Lessee

agree'"ents with the related parties and third parties for the us- ofand, buildings, transportation equipment and computer softwareifor aperiod of one to 15 years
hese leases are renewable upon mutuai agreement. The annual rent is subject to escalation. ^

Security deposits amounted to P103.6 million and ?112.2 million as at December 31 2018 and 2ni7
respecbvely (see Note 11). Advance rent amounted to .54.9 million and .TT.T mlfon aS a^

(^ee Note 11). Accrued rent as at December 31 2^18and 2017 amounted to .104.9 million and M9.4 million, respectively (see Note 12).
Rent expense amounted to .919.9 million, .780.7 million and .502.1 million in 2018 2017
2016, respectively (see Note 16). '

Future minimum rent payments under operating lease are as follows:

Within one year
2018 2017

u 5^532,328,641 ^774 251 2^°After one year but not more than five years gAo 830 337 tcqoo-
More than five vears - 759,03^,^36

— 1,028,895,858 731.410.419
P2,411>054,831 ^2,264.597.204

TheCompany as a Lessor

renewable upon mutual agreement by the parties. ' ®leases are
Rent income amounted to .20.1 million, .17.3 million and .5.8 million in 2018 2017 ,r-r
respecbvely, (see Note 17). Rent receivables amounted to.3 7mnHon and'l 9milPn '
December 31,2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 7). ' "

Agreement with Imonrting Suppligrc

.940.0 miliio^ in 2018 andfoi7, r^^^^^^^^^ -"'P"
Contingencies

The cSa^y '̂arld IM '̂̂ crunse^^ P°"rse of business,wii, not have amateria:' effect on the financtrtatemeT .

rr —-Sc^r
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20. Related Party Transactions and Balances ~ ~

The Company, in the normal course of business, has various transactions and balances with its
related parties, as described below.

Related Party Year.

Parent Company 2018

2017

Entities under Common 2018

Control 2017

Stockholders 2018

2017

2018

2017

Revenuefrom

Related Parties

551,481,307

9,262,333

27,514,251
27,553,319

1,628,245

1,776,012

830,723,843
38,592,164

Purchases

from Related

Parties

P522,392,993

458,272,214

1,062,592,864
977,712,798

16,111,462
14,347,525

81,601,097,319
1,460,332,537

Amounts

Owed by
Related Parties

P112,001,511

108,366,402
85,009,911

108,298,232

1,800,315

633,515

8198,811,737
217,298,149

Amounts Owed to

Related Parties

810,657,818

72,847,581

225,799,020
96,290,971

8236,456,838
169,138,552

Aniounts owed by related parties consist mainly of trade and other receivables amounting to
Pi7.5 million and ^93.3 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 7) and
securi^ deposits and advance rent (included as part of "Other current assets" or "Other noncurrent
assets } aggregating 2181.3 million and P124.0 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
respectively. No impairnjient loss was recognized on trade and other receivables and security
deposits in 2018, 2017 and 2016.

aggregating P236.5 million and8159.1 million as atDecerriber 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 12).

The following are the significant related party transactions of the Company:

a. The Parent Company transferred retirement plan assets amounting to P22.1 million in 2017.

0. Purchases and sales of goods and services with Parent Company and entities under
control.

common

parties aggregated 8 749.7 million and
P757.2 million in 2018 and2017, respectively.

and 7°n77 and sendees to related parties a^regated g30.7 million and P38.6 million in 2018and 2017, respectively.

and reimbursable certain expenses mamly

Lrtain »° ®'®^"eitY, water, postage, telephone and telegraph. Reimbursement of'certa.n expenses from related parties amounted to P59.5 million and R65.3 million In 2018 =nd
2017, respectively. -<.w >uu

d. Lease agreements with the Parent Company and related parties for the use of land buildings
transportation equipment and computer software for aperiod of one to 15 years (see Note 19)

7"" amounted to g791.9 million and e637.8 million In 2018 and
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Corapsnsation of key management personnel lay beneSt type, are as follows:

2018 2017 20^6Shoifc-term employed benefits
Retirement benefits

P67,640,1?7
2.-234,212

247,842,537
3,077,046

P28,S63,361
2,079 1^^

^9375,089 P50;926,583 #31,042,475

carnmgsperShsre " ~

Bssfc and diiutive earnings per share were computed as foflcws:

2028 7017
r-set income

Divided bythe weighted average
numberof outstanding shares

#l,S35,4i23SS

4,092,724,116

#1,385,414,852

3,754247,565

#885,777,308

2,041863 ^37
#0.45 #0.37 A "S

-'ii. HHen^al Risk Mansgenrsht Objectives end Policies

^ insu-umente consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments.-d and o^er receivables {excluding advances to suppliers!, trade and oth®- payabies {=xdudi,ng
I-uCiSS ^ certificates and unearned revenue), financial asset i FVOCi.
d7b'̂ » ^ contein® deposits, reftmdefale cash bonds and short-term and long-termecu 1h- mam purposeoi th®e nnandel Instruments is to fund the Company's operations.

® risks vrfrich r®u!t from both its operating arrd
1^;. {.^ risk management Is coordinated with the BOD, and ?ocu^es or

-inlmltlng the expos'̂ rtc '
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Maximum credit risk hequal tothe gross amount of these

C^sn in bonksand cash soiilvalents
Short-temi iJivestments
irsds and other rsceivsbies*
^-Ontainer Qsposrts
Bnanclal asset at FVOC!
Security deposits
Electncity deposits
Refundable cash bonds

instruments as follows:

2018

S2,g33^:^^9

309,286^^9

8,010.715

2,306,721,206
103,587,631

47,818,340
83,403,934

^,009,350,558
600,580,715
432,581,451

8,037,715

2,936,546,520

112,191,181

36,938,404

83,405,934

•: . ^^2434.464 S7.280

IaeCompany does not have major concsntratjon ofcredit risk.

The table below summarizes the Compan/s nnancial assets based on aging:

Casn in banks and cssh

sqarval^ts
Trade and othe* rscesvafaie^*
Container deposits
Rnandal asset at FVOCi
Securityd^osits
Sectricity deposits
Remnd^ie cash bonds

NerthsrPasi

Due Ncr

Imzsaired

32>S3S,27S,22S
131,426,248

8jiQ10,715

2,205,721,205
103337,631

47,818,340

201S

Past Diigbut notfropsir'x^
lass e!»n

One Year

47,860,173

One Year

and Over

P-

65,551^92

Past Das and

tnnjiaired

P-

63,449.396
?2,853,279,229

3D3,2S43Ce
8,010,715

2,506,721,105
iC3,537,5Sl

47,813.940
83,409,934

gS,G3Q,843,85S P47>86G;
Excluding advances tosuppliers amoiOfdngto ^305.4 miiUon. gS6,551,C^ gl46,859,33G P5,252.114.4S4

Cash in banks and cash

equivslents
Short-term investments
Tradeand other receivables?'
Container deposits
AFSnnancal asset
Security deposits
Efectridtydeposits
jtefundabte cash bonds

Neither Pas

Due »\'or

"Tipatrea

?3,CG9,3S0,S5S

500,580,715
184,264,514

a,CS7,7::3

2,595,946,620
112,191,182

35,933,404

Past &ie but not Inspaired
less fean One Year
OfiS Yssr ana Over

10S,9o4,270 106,970,451

Past Due and

impaired

37,382,126

?3,C0S3£0p5S
500,580,715
432,581,451

8,037,715

2,535,945,620
112,151,181

SS,S5S,4C4
83,403,534

^.548,319,807 gl03,9S4,270
Excluding advances to suppiikrs amoimdhg to S35S.B .•n^JJcw. ^106,970,451 ^20,792,060 P7,28G,046.58S

r'asi due but not impaired" are items with history of freauent defaults
are stin collectible. *

nevertheless, the amounts
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The table below shows the credit quality of the Compan/s financial assets that are neither past due
nor impaired based on their historical experience with the counter parties.

2018

Cash in banks and cash

equivalents
Trade and other receivables'
Container deposits
Financial asset at FVOCi
Security deposits
Electricity deposits

High Grade

P2,833,279,229

2,306,721,106

Standard Grade

131,426,248

103,587,631
47,818,940

Substandard Grade

P-

8,010,715

Total

P2,833,279,229
131,426,248

8,010,715

2,906,721,106
103,587,631
47,818,940

P5,740,000,335 P282,832,819 P8,010,715 P6,03Q,843,869
Excluding advances to suppliers omounting to (1305.4 miiiion.

2017

Cash in banks and cash
High Grade Standard Grade Substandard Grade Total

equivalents

Short-term investments

Trade and other receivables'"

Container deposits
^FS financial asset

Security deposits
Electricrty deposits

5:3,009,360,558
600,580.715

2,996,946,620

184,264,614

112,191,181

36,938,404

8,037,715

?3,009,360,558
600,580,715
184,264,614

8,037,715

2,995,946,620

112,191,181
36,938,404

g6,606,887,893

"Excluding advancesto suppliers arhounting to P156.8 miiiion.

High grade receivables pertain to those receivables from counter parties that consistently, pay
before the maturity date. Standard grade includes receivables thatare collected on their due dates
even without an effort from the Company to follow them up while receivables which are collected
on theirdue dates provided that theCompany made a persistent effort to collect them are included
under substandard grade receivables.

Liquidity Risk. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle its obligations
when these fall due. The Company monitors and maintains a level ofcash deemed adequate bv the
management to finance the Compan/s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Compan/s financial liabilities basec op
contractual undiscounted payments.

^333,394,199 888,037,715 ^6,948,319,807

Trade and other payables'
Long-term debt

On Demand

2018

fVJo.'e than Three More than One
Within Tnree Months to Year but less

Months One Yrar than FiveYears
P- ii3,85i,iSl,S10 P45,6D3,626

Total

P- P3,896,765,436
20,000 20,000

P3,851,161,810 P45,603,626
"Excludingstatutory liabilitiss, unredeemed gift certificates andunearned revenue aggregating fil04.3 million.

P20,000 P3,896,785,436
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Wttbin Three

Months

2017

More than Three

Months to

One Year

More than One

Year but less

than Five Years Total
Trade and other payables*
Long-term debt

2-

B3,221i247,380
55,000,000

2180,915,694

100,000,000

23,276,247,380 2280,915,694 2248,461.539
Excluding statutory liabilities, unredeemed gift certificates and Unearned revenue aggregating R89.1 million.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, Company's cash and cash equivalents aggregate ^2,842.1 miilion
and ?3,016.8 miilion, respectively. The Company's cash and cash equivalents resulting from the net
cash flows from operating and financing activities are sufficient to cover payments due on its
financial liabilities and theicost ofail firm orders due in the next financial year.

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk pertains to the fluctuations in interest ofcash in banks andcash
equivalent, short-term investments and financial assets at FVOCI. The interest rates on these assets
are disclosed In Notes 5 and 6.TheCompany regularly monitors interest rate movements and on the
basis of current and projected economic and monetary data, decides onthe best alternative to take.

The primary measure of the Company's interest rate risk is the duration of its financial assets. !t
quantifies the effect ofchanges In interest rates In the value offixed income securities. The longer
the duration, the more serisitive it should be to changes in Interest rates.

The following table illustra[tes the sensitivity ofthe Conipany^s profit or loss to a reasonably possible
change in the interest rates of its cash in banks and Cash equivalents, short-term investments and
financial asset at FVOCI with ail other variables held constant.

8-

248,461,539
23,402,163,074

403,461,539

Cash equivalents

Financial asset at FVOCI

Short-term investments

0.30%

0.03%

2018

Effect on Profit

or Loss

P376,127

43,633

i-/-%

0.79%

0.19%

0.79%

23,805,624,513

2017

Effect on Profit

or Loss

2506,509

237,596

130,433

The changes in Interest rates used in the analysis of cash equivalents, short-term investments and
financial assets at FVOCI are based on the average volatility in interest rates of the said investments
in the past 12 months.

Capital Management

The Company monitors its debt-to-equiry ratio.

!he primary objective ofthe Company's manageme.nt is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
ratingand healthy capital ratios in order lo support its businessand maximize shareholder value.

The debt-to-equity ratio isas follows:

Total debt P4,289,712,504 ^4,106,197,280 .
Total equity 13,212,469,249 11,918,255,363
Debt-to-equity 0.32:1 0.34:1
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equity includes cspitaf ssock, sddilaonai paid-in capital; other comprehensive income and retBihed
earnings.

25. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The table below presents la comparison bycat^oryofcarrying am«^nts andfairvaiues of tnefinanclai
instruments:

2SiS 2017

CarrylngAmoant Fair Value Garrylng Amount .^air Value
FinarrfiaiAssets

Cesh end cash equivalents e2;S42;073;524 P2342..073324 >3,016315,150 53..GiS,S15,15G
Short-term imfestmients

- - 600,580,715 SC0..5aG,715
Trade and other recehrables* Z4533?;5i5 245337313 395,193,335 3S5.iSS.335
Container deoosits S,i:<LQ;/i5 8,010,715 8,037,715 3;G37,715
Financial asset at FVOCi,/

•APS finsnciai asset 2,S)S,72i3S 2,^,721,105 2,996,946,520 2,995.945,520'
Security deposits 103357.631 88,338,772 112,191,181 55.545.254
ciectricrry deposits 47,818,340 47318,940 36.938,404 35,938,404

^0,154349.429 ^,13S3«»359 F7,166,709,120 37,154.063.193
Finandal LM>lifdes

Trade and other payables** P339S.?65;436 P33SS,765,436 ?3,402,1S3,074 33,402,163,074
Long-term debt 20,000 20,0CK) 403,451,539 403,46T5S5

P3;8SS,785;43S ^S^3e;?85.d36 53,805,524,513 53,805;S24,£13
'Exduding a<ivsr,ces so supplis^cmounting to^BG5A mUlioo and^lSdSmmon asatDecaabsrSl, 2018 and2017, raspecdesly.

•"Exctudmg stadstory Habimes, unrsdssmsd csmpcates andunscmed revent's eqgreggdnq ^1043 mUUon andPSB.l miiiior: as er
December32,2013and, 2017, respsctr/dy.

The following methods and assumptions are used to sstlmste the fair value of each class of financlai
instruments:

Cash andCash Equivalents^ Short-temi Investments, Trade andOtherReceivables, ContainerDeposits,
Refundable Cash Bonds, Short-term Debt and Trade andOther Fayables. The carr/ing amounts of
cash andcash equivalents; short-term investmeiitS; trade and other receivables; container deposits.,
short-term debt, arsd tmda and other payables approximate theirfair values primarily due to the
.relatively short-term rnatursb/ ofthesefinancial Instruments. Container deposits are under Level 2of
the fair value measurements hisrarchyfor financial instruments.

Fincndal Asset at P/oa/AFS Financial Asset Tne fair value of financfal asset at FVOCI xvhich
represents investmentin. reall treasurybondsIsestimatedby referenceto directly observable inputs
at the end of the reporting period and is categorized as Levei 2.

Securir/ Deposits. Fair values of security deposits are based on the present value of the expectec
fuiure cash Hows. These arecategorized under Levsf 2ofthe feir value measurements hierarchy for
financial instruments.
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E/ectricity Deposits. Management estimates that the carrying ambunt of the electricity deposits
approximate their fair values-. These are categorized under iLevel Ziofthe fair value measurements
hierarchy for financial instruments.

Long-term Debt, ihe carrying amount of idng-term debt approximates its fair value because the
interest rate that it carries approximates the interest rate forcomparable instrument inthe market.

In 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair'value
measurements.
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30A/PRC Acceditation No. 4782
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j£C Accreditador. No.0207-PR-2 (6.-oup A)

FIR.M PRINCIPLES. WISE .SOLUTIONS.

Citibanic Tower

8741 Paseo fle Roxas

Mateti City1225 Pniiipoines
Phone -532 982 910C
Fax -632 982 9111

Website •wwwreyestacano'onc;

REPORT OF sNDEPENDEMU AUDITORS

TO ACCOiyiPANY FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors

WILCON DEPOT, INC.

Doing Business under the Name and Style of
WILCON DEPOT and WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS

No. 90 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue
Brgy. Ugong Norte, Quezon City.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WILCON DEPOT, INC. Doing Business under
the Name and Style of WILCON DEPOT and WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS (the Company), a subsidiary of
WILCON CORPORATION Doing Business under the Name and Style of WILCON CITY CENTER, as at and for
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, on which we have rendered our report dated March 5,
2019.

!n compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Company has
151 stockholders owning 100 or more shares.

Reyes Tacandong & Co.

HAYDEE M. REYES

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 83522

Tax Identification No. 102-095-265-000
SOAAccreditation No.4782; Validuntil August 15,2021
SEC Accreditation No.0663-AR-3 Group A

Valid until August 30,2020
SIR Accreditation No. 08-005i44-006f2017

Valid until January 13, 2020
^TR No. 7334335

IssuedJanuary3, 2019, Makati City

March 6, 2019

.Makati City, Metro Manila

-r -nwrrt 0= 3£i>.!G CNIOSSSTOOC

"amenO^r of the RSM retworic member of the SSM is eo indeperdent accounting and consulting firm, and practices in its own rignt. The RSW,o. .sel. a ispa.-ate legal entity ofanydescription inanyjurisdictiorj.



SSf Taq\.ndong & L.O.
FiRlvI PRINCIPLES. WISE SOLLTIONS.

dOAplfC Accreditarion No. 4782

October 4,2018. vaEd untij August IS,2021
ssC Accreditation No. 0207-H-Z (Group A)

Seoariti&sr27,2016, vaW untilSeptember 27,2019

REPORT OF independent AUDITORS

ON SUPPLEIV5ENTARY SCHEDULE

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors

WiLCON DEPOT, INC.

Doing Business under the Name anidStyle of
WILCON DEPOT AND WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS

No. 90 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue
Brgy. Ugong Norte, Quezon City

Citibank Towei

8741 Paseo ce Roxas

Malati Oty 1126 Philippines
Phone : -632 582 5102

Fa* . -632 582 9111

Website 'Aiww.reyestacendonc.ccn"

We have audited- in accordance with Philippine Standards in Auditing, the financial statements of WILCON
DE.?OT, INC. Doing Business under the Name and Style of WILCON DEPOT, and WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS
(the Company) as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2015,
and have issued our report thereoh dated Mai'ch 6, 2019. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Supplementary Schedules for
sub nission to the Securities and Exchange Commission are the responsibility of the Company's management.

These supplementary schedules include the following:
® Schedule of Retained Earnings iAvailablefor Dividend Declaration for the year ended December 31, 2018
® Schedules Required under Annex 58-E of Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68 as at and for the year

ended December 31, 2018

® Corporate Structure as at December 31, 2018

® Schedule of Application of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering as at December 31, 2018
• Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators as at and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
o Schedule of Adoption of Effective Accounting Standard.*:and Interpretations as at December 31,2018

The supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of complyingwith SRC Rule 68, and are not part of the
basic financial statements. The supplementary schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the
financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Reyes Tacandonq & Co.

HAYDEE M. REYES

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 83522

Tax iiJentification No. 102-095-265-000

BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until August IS, 202]
SEC Accreditation No. 0663-AR-3 Group A

Valid until August 30, 2020
B!RAccreditation No. 08-005144-006-201-7

Valid until January 13, 2020
PTR No. 7334335

Issued January 3, 2019, Makati City

Ma-ch 6, 2019

Maoti City, Metro Manila

•-£ ; OWES Or UNDERSTOOD

•Reyes Taes.idong 8t Co. is smerrier of the RSM networis. each member of the RSM network is-ap indeiTe.ndent accoundng and consulting nrtr. and practices In Its own rioht. The RSM networ
-5o; 'tsel, a separate legal entity ofany description inanyjurisdiction.



WJLCOJVI DEPOT, INC.
Doing Business under the Name and Style of

WILCON DEPOT AND WILCQN HOIV1E ESSENTIALS
(ASubsidiary of WILCON CORPORATION

Doing Business under the Name and Style ofWILCON jCITY CENTER)
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,20ll8

Retained earnings at beginning of year as shown in the financial statements ^2,271,651,903
Niet income during the year closed to retained earnings i 835 412'386
Dividends declared during the year "(450,969,653)
Deterred tax assets related totemporary differences that flow through

^ (213,025,820)
Retained earnings as at end of year_available for dividend declaration ^3,443,078,816

Reconciliation
Retained earnings at end of year as shown In the financial statements ^3,656,104,635
t^eferred tax assets related to temporary differences that flow through ' '
— (213.025.8201

Retained earnings as at end of year available for dividend declaration ^,443,078,815



WilCON DEPOT, INC.
Doing Business under the Name and Style of

WILCON DEPOT AND WILCGN HOIVIE ESSENTIALS
(ASubsidiary of WilCON CORPORATION

Doing Business under the Name and Style ofWiLGON CITV CENTER)
SCHEDULES REQUIRED UNDER ANNEX 68-E OF SECURITiES REGULATION CODE RULE 68

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 33i, 2018

Table of Contents

Schedule Description Page

A Financial Assets

B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties,
and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) 2

C Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the
consolidation of the financial statements M/A

D Intangible Assets-Other Assets 3

E Long-term Debt 4

F Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term Loansfrom Related
Companies) [M/A

G Guarantees of Securities ofOther Issuers [m/a

Capital Stock 5

N/A - Not applicable



WllCOf^ DEPOT, mc.

Doing Businessunder the filame and;Style of
WILCON DEPOT AMD WILCOM HOiVlE ESSENHAIS

(ASubsidiary of WILCON CORPORATiOM

SCHEDULE A

FIMAMOAl ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Amounts in Tnousands

Number of

Shares or Principal

Description . Amourst of Bonds

Amount Shown

in die Statement of
Financial Position

Income Received

and Accrued

Cash In Banks

Banco ds Ore (EDO) -
Phiiippine National Bank (PNB) -
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Companies (MBTC) -
China Banking Corporation (CBC) ~
Bank of the Philippine Island (BPI) -
RizasCommercial Banking Corporation (RCBC) -
Asia United Bank (AUB) -
Eastwest Banking Corporation (EEC) —

§333,150

139,139

137,655

90,316

43,456

24,608

8,905

50

P545

67

411

55

187

129

23

777,279 1,427

Cash Equlvaients
CBC

BPI . -

China Bank Savings, Inc. (CBS) -
Metrobank Card Corporation {MCC) -
RCBC

First Metro investment Corporation (FiVlIC) -

1,683,000

373,000

42,925

12,213

16,186

12,864

6,237

1,495

2,056,000 91,920

Short-term investments

MCC . 1,734

Trade and Other Receivabfes

T ^^0

Rent. ~

Others -

172,319

3,713

59,806

-

245,838

Financial asset at FVOCi

investment in Bonds - 2,905,721 99,450

Others* 159,417 -

^,145,255 ?194,531

'Others pertain to container, security and electricity deposits.
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WILCOS^ DEPOT, INC.
Doing Business under the I^Jame and Style of

WILCON DEPOT AMD WILCOM HOME ESSENTIALS
(ASubsidiary of WILCON CORPORATION

Doing Business under the Name and Style ofWILCON CITY CENTER)

CORPOP^TE STRUCTURE
DECEMBER 31, 2018

LIAM ROS HOLDINGS INC.

59%

WILCON CORPORATION
Doing Business under the Name andStyle of

WILCON CITY CENTER

65%

WILCON DEPOT, INC.
Doing Business under the Name and Style of

WILCON DEPOT AND WILCON HOME ESSENTIALS



WILCON DEPOT, mc.
Doing Business under the Name and Style of

WILCON DEPOT and WIICON HOME ESSENTIALS
(A Subsidiary of WiLCON CORPORATION

Doing Business under theName and Style ofWILCON CfTY CENTER)
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS FROM

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2018

Estimated Actual Balance
Gross Proceeds

Offer Expenses
Net Proceeds

P7,03&,226,310 P7,039,226,310
(289,13i001) 1(289,897,803) (765,802)

P6,750,094309 P6i,749,328,507 (P765,802)

Ihe actual offer expenses are less than the estimated amount. Accordingly, the Company allocated th=
p. oceeds amounting to g9.5 million to store network expansion based On the Prospectus.

Details of the estimated and actual application of the proceeds:

Gross Proceeds

Use of the Proceeds

Debt repayment
Generalcorporate purposes
Store network expansion

Offer Expenses

Unapplied Proceeds

Estimated Actual Over (Under)
P7,039,224310 ^7^039,226310

428,100,000
200,000^,000

6,121,994309
6,750,094i309

289,132,001

428,100,000

200,000,000
2;548,165,489

3>176,265,489

289,897,803
P- P3;573,063,018

P-

3,573,828,820

3,573,828,820

(765,802)
P3,573,063,018



WilOSN OEPOr, IMC
Doing Busine^ under theSame and Slyfe of

WLCON DEPOT AMD WiLCOW HOME ESSENTIALS
{A Sufosldiar/ of WILCON CORPORATION

Poing Business under the Name and Style ofWilCON OTy CENTER)
SCHEDULE OF Fil^ANOM. SOUI^DI^ESS IMDICATORS

AS AT AND FOR T>IE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018,2017 AND 2016

liquidity Ratio
Current ratio

Quick ratio

Solvency Ratio
Debtto equity ratio

ProfHabilityRatio
Return on assets
Return on equity
Bookvalue per share
Gross margin
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciaSon and

amortization (EBiTOA) margin
Net incomemargin

2.73:1

iUJ.!

3.15:1

0.81:1 1.12:1

0.32:1 0.34:1

10.49% 8.65%
13,89% 11.62%

R3.22 P2.91
31.38% 29.67f/c

12.86% 11.04?4

8.72% 7.81%



WSLCON DEPOT; INC.
Doing Business under the Name and Style of

WILCON DEPOT and WiLCON HOME ESSENTIALS
(A Subsidiary of WILCON CORPORATION

Doing Business underthe Name andStyle of WILCON CFTY CENTER)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEfVIBER 31,2018

1 ^^

! Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicablej
jFramework forthe Preparation andPresentation ofRnanciai
jStatements

jConceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics
1 • —

i

1PFRos Practice Statement Management Commentsrv'
jPFRSs Practice Statement 2: Making Materiality Judgements

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)

PFRS Title

r
PFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption ofPhilippine Financial Reporting

Standards

PFRS 2

Amendments to PFRS 1:Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1:Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe HyperinTlation and
Removal ofFixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1:Government Loans

Amendments to PFRS 1:First-time Adoption of
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Deletion of
Short-term Exemption for First-time AdontPr^:

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2:Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

/



2-

PFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

PFRS 4

PFRS 5

PFRS6

PFRS 7

PFRS 8

PFRS 9

PFRS 10

Amendment toPFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent
Consideration ina Business Combination

Amendment to PFRS 3:Scope Exceptions forJoint
Ventures

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4:Financia! Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4:Applying PFRS 9, Financial
Instruments with PFRS A, Insurance Contracts

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposal
Exploration for and Evaluation of^/iinera! Resources

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Redassification ofFinancial

Amendments to PFRS 7: Redassification ofFInanciai
Assets - Effective Dateand Transition

Amendments toPFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures -Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures -Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendment to PFRS 7; Servicing Contracts

Amendment toPFRS 7: Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements

OperatingSegments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments ^

Amendments to PFRS SrRec.onciiiation of the Total of
the Repoitable Segments' Assets to the Entit/s Assets
Financial Instruments

Consolidated Financial Statements

Adopted iMot

Applicable



PFRS

PFRS 11

PFRS 13

PFRS 14

PFRS 15

iJtJe

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: investment Entitles

Amendments toPFRS 10: Investment Entitles; Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Joint Arrangements

Amendmentsto PFRS 11:Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests inJointOperations

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: iransitionGuidance

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entitles

Amendments to PFRS 12: investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Fair Value Measurement

Amendment to PFRS 13:Short-term receivables and
Payables

Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Revenuefrom Contract with Customers

Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)

PAS

PAS i (Revised)

PAS 2

PAS 7

Title

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 1: Puttable Financiai Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1:Presentation ofItems ofOther
Comprehensive Income

Amendment to PAS 1: Clarification of the
Requirements forComparative Presentation

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable



PAS

PASS

PAS 10

PAS 11

PAS 12

PAS 16

PAS 17

PAS 18

PAS 19

(Revised)

PAS 20

PAS 21

1 PAS 23 (Revised)

i PAS 24 (Revised)

PAS 27

(Amended)

-4-

Title

Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estlrriates
and Errors

Events after the Reporting Period

Construction Contracts

Income Taxes

Amendments to PAS 12- Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendment to PAS 15: Classification ofServicing
Equipment

Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Depreciation

Amendment to PAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment
- Clarification of Acceptable Methodsof Depreciation
and Amortization

Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Amendment to PAS19: Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional Market
Issue

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

The Effects ofChanges In Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

Separate Financial Statements

Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable



1

1 PAS
i

Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable
1
1

i Amendments to PAS 27: investment Entities y

i
!

i
Amendments to PAS 27: Ecfuity h/iethod in Separate
Financial Statements

y

1 PAS 28
j (A-mended) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures y

1

1
1

1
!

Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception y

i PAS29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies y

j PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

1 Financial Instruments: Presentation

i
1

f

Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Financial instruments
and ObligationsArising on Liquidation y

1
1

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues y

!

i
1

i

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting FinancialAssets and
Financial Liabilities

1

1

1
i

Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to

Holders of Equity instruments
y

j PAS 33 Earnings per Share y

i PAS 34
1

Interim Financial Reporting y

j
j
i

Amendmentto PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and
Segment Information for Total Assets and Liabilities y

I Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information
'Elsewhere in the Interim-Financial Report' y

\
1 PAS 36 Impairment of Assets y

i

i

1

Amendments to PAS36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

y

! PAS 37
1

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets y

i PAS 38 Intangible Assets y

1

!

i

Amendment to PAS38: Revaiuation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

1
y

Amendment to PAS 38:Clarification ofAcceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 39 Financial Instrumerits:Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
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PAS Title 1Adopted
i

Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39:Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The FairValue Option " /

1
1

Amendments to PAS 39: FinancialGuarantee Contracts

!
1

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassiflcationof Financial
Assets

1

i
i--

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassiflcation of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

1
[
1

Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives •/

1 Amendmentto PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items

1
1

!

Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

i PAS 40
f

Investment Property
•

1

v/ j

1 Amendment to PAS 40: Clarifying the Interrelationship
between PFRS3 and PAS 40when Classifying Property
as investment Property or Owner-occupied Property

V I

1 PAS 41 Agriculture
•

1 Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants i ^

Philippine Interpre

— —! J

tations

Interpretations Title Adopted

1

Not

Adopted
Not !

Applicable i
iFRICl

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities

i

1
!

i

iFRiC 2
Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Instruments v/

IFRiC4
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease

IFRIC 5
Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration andEnvironmental Rehabilitation Funds y

IFRIC 6
Liabilities arising from Participating in aSpecific Market
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment y

IFRIC? Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
Financial Reporting In Hyperlnflationary Economies y

i

>FRIC9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
- 1
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!
i Interpretations Title Adopted

Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable i
i Amendments to Philippine Interpretation lFRIC-9:

Embedded Derivatives y

iFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment y

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
y

IFRIC 13

1

Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC14
PAS 19- The Limit ona Defined Benefrt Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements andtheir Interlaction y

i
•

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC-14,
Prepayments ofa Minimum Funding Requirement y

1 iFRIC 16
I

Hedges ofa Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
y

iFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
y

IFRIC 18
1
i ————j.

1ransfers of Assets from Customers
y

!

j IFRIC 19
i

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

1

1 IFRIC 20
•

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase ofa Surface
Mine

iFRIC 21
•

Levies

PHILiPPiNE INTERPRETATIONS - SIC

interpretations

SIC-7

SIC-10

SIC-15

SiC-25

SIC-27

5IC-29

SlC-31

SIC-32

Introduction of the Euro

Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Operating Activities

Trtle

Operating Leases - Incentives

Income Taxes -Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity
or its Shareholders

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease

Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

Revenue -Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services

Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

v/



CERTmCATION OF INPEPF.NDENT DIRECTOR

I, BERTRAM B. LIM, of legal age, Fi%3no and with postal address at 60 Sen. Gil
Puyat Ave., Makati City, after being duly sworn in accordance with law, depose and state that:

1. I am a nominee for Independent Director of Wilcon Dqjot, Inc., and have been its
Independent Director sinceMay22,2017.

2. I am aftiliated with the following companies or oiganizations (including Government
Owned and Controlled Coiporations):

CompanyADrganization Position/Relationship Period ofService
United Neon Advertising Chairman 1971 - present
Center for Community
Transformation

Chairman 1997-present

Trinity University Board Treasure- 2000 - present

3. I possess all the qualifications, and ncs^ of die disqualificatimis to serve as an
Indep^dent Dnector of Wilcon Depo^ Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code and its implementing rules and regulations and other
issuance ofthe Securities and Exchange CcHnmission (the "SEC").

I am related to the follovring director/ofiicer/substantial shareholder ofWilcon Depot
Inc., or any ofits subsidiaries and affiliates other than the relaticmship provided under
Rule 382.3 ofthe Securities Regulation Code (where applicable)

Name of

Director/Officer/Substantial
Shareholder

Company NatureofRelationship

William T. Belo Wilcon Depot hic. Brodier-m-law
Lorraine Belo-Cincochan Wilcon Depot Inc. Niece
Mark Andrew Y. Belo Wilcon Depot inc. Nephew
Careen Y. Belo Wilcon Depot Inc. Niece

To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject to any pending criminal or
administrative investigation orproceeding.

Offense charged/investigated Tribunal or agency involved Status
N/A N/A N/A

6. To the best of my knowledge, I am neither an officer nor an employee of any
government agency orgovernment owned and controlled coiporation.

7. I shall feithfully and diligently comply vrith my duties and responsibilities an
mdependent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing rules
and regulations, the Code ofCorporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. I shaU infom the Corpbr^e Secretary of Wilcrrn Depot Inc., of any changes in the
above mentioned information within five (5) days fi-om its occurrence.



Done this - in

Bertram B. Lim

JSUpCRBED AND SWORN to before me this
m

affiant exhibiting to me his competent evidence of identity as

2022^ '̂ issued on 04 July 2017 at DFA Manfla valid until 03 July

Doc. No. (l^ ;
Page No. ^
Book No.

Series of 2019.
:.3c



CERTIFICATION OF IMIEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, RICARDO. S PASCUA, of legal age, Filipino and withpostal address at 3 Pebblewood cor.
Fairwood Mckinley Hill Village, Tagnig City, after being dufy sworn inaccordance with law, depose
and state diat:

1. I am a nominee for Indepeadent DirectOT ofTOcon Depot, Inc., and has been itsIndependent
Director since September 13,2016.

2. I am affiliated with thefollowing companies or organizations (including Government Owned
and Controlled Corporations):

3.

Company/Organization Position/Relationship Period of Service

Caelum Developers, Inc. . Chairman ofthe Board 2002-Present

Facilities& PropertyMgmt
Technologies, hic.

Chairman ofthe Board 2002-Present

Ascension Phildevelopers, Inc. Chairman ofthe Board 2002-Present

Bancom n Consultants, Inc. President 2002-Present

Phoenix Land, Inc. Chairman ofthe Executive

Committee
2002-Present

Boulevard Holdings, Inc. Director 2002-Present

Central Luzon Doctor's
Hospital

Directed- 2002-Present

Quicksilver Satcom Ventures,
Inc.

Director 2002-Present

I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualiftcations to serve as an Independent
Director of Wilcon Depot, Inc^ as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation
Code and its implementing rules and regulations and other issuance of the Securities and
£xchange Commission (the "SEC^.

I am related tothe following director/offic^/substantial shareholder ofWilcon Depot Inc., or
any of itssubsidiaries and affiliates otih^ than therelationship provided under Rule 38.23 of
the Securities Regulation Code (where ^plicable)

Name of

Director/Officer/Substantial
Shareholder

Company Nature ofRelationship

N/A N/A N/A

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject to any pending criminal oradministrative
investigation or proceeding.

Offense charged/investigated | Tribunal or agency involved Status
•N/A IN/A N/A

6. To the best of my knowledge, I am neither an officer nor an employee of any government
agency or government owned and controlled corporation.



7. I shall faithfully and diligently comply widi my duties and responsibilities an independent
director und^ the Securities Reflation Code md its impl^entingrules and regulations, the
Code ofCorporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. I shall mfbrm the Corporate Secretary of Wilcon Depot, Inc., of any changes in the above
mentioned information within five (5) days firom its occurrence.

Done this in

Ricardo S. Pascua

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this in
affiant exhibiting to me his competCTt evidence of identity as follows:

Passport No.P0352687B issued on22 Januaiy 2019at DFAManila validuntil21 Januaiy 2029.

Doc. No. [j^
Page No.
Book No

Series of201



cerhficationofiwdefendentdirector

I, ROLANDO S. NARCISO, of legal age, Filipino and with postal address at Lexington
Garden, Village, San Joaquin, Pasig City after being dnly sworn in accordance wUh law, depose and
state that:

1. I am a nominee for Indepaident Directs of Wilcon Depot, Inc., and have been its
lndepen(tent Director since ^ptember 13,2016.

2. I amaffiliated with thefollowing companies or oiganizations (including Government Owned
and Controlled Corporations):

Company/Organization Positimi/Relaticai^i^ P«iod ofService

St. Joseph Groiqi Inc Chairman/Director 2014-Present
CVM Finance Corp Chairman/Director 2016-Present
CVM Pawnshops Corp Chairman/Director 2016-Present
St. Joseph Fish Brokerage Inc Chainnan/Director 2016 - Present
Ciystal Cold Chain Corp Chairman/Director 2016-Present
Kai-Anya Foods Inc Chairman/Director 2016-Present
CVM Realty Iqc Chairman/Director 2016-Present
Info Alchemy Corp Chairman/Director 2016-Present
Rekom Manila Corp Chairman/Director 2010-Present
OWN (Rural) Bank Director 2016 - Ihesent
Phil. Galvanizers and Coaters

Association
Executive Advisor 2010-Present

I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualffications to serve as an Independent
Director of Wilcon Depot, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation
Code and its implementing rules and regulations and other issuance of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "SEC").

I am related to die following director/officer/siibstantial shareholder ofWilcon DepotInc., or
any of its subsidiaries and affiliates other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of
the SecuritiesRegulationCode (where apphcable)

Name of

Director/Officer/Substantial

Shareholder

Company Nature ofRela.tionship

N/A N/A N/A

5- To the bestof my knowledge, I am not the subjectto any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or proceeding.

Offense charged/investigated Tribunal or agency involved Status
N/A N/A N/A

To the best of my knowledge, I am neither an officer nor an employee of any government
agency or government owned and controlled ccnporation.



7. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities an independent
directOT under the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing rules and regulations, the
CodeofCorporate Governance and other SECissuances.

8. I diall infom the Corpo^e Secretaiy ofWilcon Depot, Inc., ofany changes in the above
mentioned mfbrmation within five (5)days from itsoccurrence.
Done this in

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to befiHB me m
affiant exhibiting to me his competent evidence of identity as follows'

Passport No. P75I8036A issued on 11 June 2018 atDFANCR Central valid until 10June 2028.

Doc.No.|4^ :
Page No. 22LJ
BookNo.yTii ;
Series of2019.

b S. Narciso



CERTmCAHON OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, DELFIN L- WARREN, of legal age, Filipino and with postal address at No. 2 Sineguelas
St., Valle VerdeI, Pasig City, after being duly sworn in accordance with law, depose and state that

1. I am a nominee for Independent Director of Wilcon Depot, Inc., and have been
Independent Director since May 22,2017.

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including Government Owned
and Controlled Corporations):

Company/Organization Poshicm/Relationship Period of Service

One Incentive Systems
Advocates (USA) Group

Founder, Principal, and current
Chairman

1998 - Present

Wanen and Nolasco Realty
Corp.

Founder, Principal, and current
Chairman,

1991 - Present

Procuratio, Inc. (Bugsy's Bar
and Bistro)

Major Principal and current
Chairman

2014-Present

Bancom n Consultants, Inc. Director 2015 - Present

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent
Director of Wilcon Depot, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation
Code and its implementing rules and regulations and other issuance of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "SEC").

4. I am related to the following director/officCT/substantial shareholder of Wilcon Depot Inc., or
any of its subsidiaries and affiliates other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of
the Securities Regulation Code (where s^licable)

Name of

Director/Officer/Substantial

Shareholder

Company Nature ofRelationship

N/A N/A N/A

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject to any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or proceeding.

Offense charged/investigated Tribunal or agency involved Status

N/A N/A N/A

6. To the best of my knowledge, I am neith^ an officer nor an employee of any government
agency or government owned and controlled corporation.

7. I shall faithfully and diligently comply witih my duties and responsibilities an independent
director under the Securities RegulationCode and its implementing rules and regulations, the
Code ofCorporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Wilcon Depot, Inc., of any changes in the above
mentioned information within five (5) days fiom its occurrence.



Done this in

A.

Del£m L. Warren

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this in
affiant exhibiting to me his cconpetant evidence erf" identity as follows:

Passport No. P9147770A issued cm 16 OctobCT 2018 at DFA NCR Central valid until 15 October
2028.

Doc. No. Ijrf ;
Page No. ;
Book No. Vllj ;
Series of2019.


